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QUALITY NATURE - QUALITY HERITAGE - QUALITY LIFESTYLE

BUSINESS PAPER
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
24 AUGUST 2022

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act
1993, and pursuant to Clause 3.3 of Council’s Code of Meeting Practice that an Ordinary
Council Meeting will be held in the Community Hall, Drake, on Wednesday 24 August
2022 commencing at 9:30 am.

Daryl Buckingham
Chief Executive

Website: www.tenterfield.nsw.gov.au Email: council@tenterfield.nsw.gov.au
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COMMUNITY CONSULTATION - PUBLIC ACCESS

Community Consultation (Public Access) relating to items on this Agenda can be made between 9.00 am
and 9.30 am on the day of the Meeting. Requests for public access should be made to the General Manager
no later than COB on the Monday before the Meeting.

Section 8 of the Business Paper allows a period of up to 30 minutes of Open Council Meetings for members of the Public
to address the Council Meeting on matters INCLUDED in the Business Paper for the Meeting.

Members of the public will be permitted a maximum of five (5) minutes to address the Council Meeting. An extension
of time may be granted if deemed necessary.

Members of the public seeking to represent or speak on behalf of a third party must satisfy the Council Meeting that he
or she has the authority to represent or speak on behalf of the third party.

Members of the public wishing to address Council Meetings are requested to contact Council either by telephone or in
person prior to close of business on the Monday prior to the day of the Meeting. Persons not registered to speak will
not be able to address Council at the Meeting.

Council will only permit two (2) speakers in support and two (2) speakers in opposition to a recommendation contained
in the Business Paper. If there are more than two (2) speakers, Council’s Governance division will contact all registered
speakers to determine who will address Council. In relation to a Development Application, the applicant will be reserved
a position to speak.

Members of the public will not be permitted to raise matters or provide information which involves:

e Personnel matters concerning particular individuals (other than Councillors);
e Personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer;
e Information that would, if disclosed confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom Council is
conducting (or proposes to conduct) business;
e Commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed:
- Prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it, or
- Confer a commercial advantage on a competitor of the Council; or
- Reveal a trade secret;
. Information that would, if disclosed prejudice the maintenance of law;
. Matters affecting the security of the Council, Councillors, Council staff or Council property;
. Advice concerning litigation or advice that would otherwise be privileged from production in legal proceedings
on the ground of legal professional privilege;
. Information concerning the nature and location of a place or an item of Aboriginal significance on community
land;
. Alleged contraventions of any Code of Conduct requirements applicable under Section 440; or
. On balance, be contrary to the public interest.

Members of the public will not be permitted to use Community Consultation to abuse, vilify, insult, threaten, intimidate

or harass Councillors, Council staff or other members of the public. Conduct of this nature will be deemed to be an act
of disorder and the person engaging in such behaviour will be ruled out of order and may be expelled.
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CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

What is a “Conflict of Interests” - A conflict of interests can be of two types:

Pecuniary - an interest that a person has in a matter because of a reasonable likelihood or expectation of appreciable
financial gain or loss to the person or another person with whom the person is associated.

Non-pecuniary - a private or personal interest that a Council official has that does not amount to a pecuniary interest
as defined in the Local Government Act (eg. A friendship, membership of an association, society or trade union or
involvement or interest in an activity and may include an interest of a financial nature).

Remoteness

A person does not have a pecuniary interest in a matter if the interest is so remote or insignificant that it could not
reasonably be regarded as likely to influence any decision the person might make in relation to a matter or if the interest
is of a kind specified in Section 448 of the Local Government Act.

Who has a Pecuniary Interest? - A person has a pecuniary interest in a matter if the pecuniary interest is the interest

of:
Ll The person, or
. Another person with whom the person is associated (see below).

Relatives, Partners

A person is taken to have a pecuniary interest in a matter if:

. The person’s spouse or de facto partner or a relative of the person has a pecuniary interest in the matter, or

. The person, or a nominee, partners or employer of the person, is a member of a company or other body that has
a pecuniary interest in the matter.

N.B. “Relative”, in relation to a person means any of the following:

(a) the parent, grandparent, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, nephew, niece, lineal descends or adopted child of the
person or of the person’s spouse;

(b) the spouse or de facto partners of the person or of a person referred to in paragraph (a)

No Interest in the Matter

However, a person is not taken to have a pecuniary interest in a matter:

. If the person is unaware of the relevant pecuniary interest of the spouse, de facto partner, relative or company
or other body, or

. Just because the person is a member of, or is employed by, the Council.

. Just because the person is a member of, or a delegate of the Council to, a company or other body that has a
pecuniary interest in the matter provided that the person has no beneficial interest in any shares of the company
or body.

Disclosure and participation in meetings

- A Councillor or a member of a Council Committee who has a pecuniary interest in any matter with which the

Council is concerned and who is present at a meeting of the Council or Committee at which the matter is being
considered must disclose the nature of the interest to the meeting as soon as practicable.
. The Councillor or member must not be present at, or in sight of, the meeting of the Council or Committee:
(a) at any time during which the matter is being considered or discussed by the Council or Committee, or
(b) at any time during which the Council or Committee is voting on any question in relation to the matter.
No Knowledge - A person does not breach this Clause if the person did not know and could not reasonably be expected
to have known that the matter under consideration at the meeting was a matter in which he or she had a pecuniary
interest.
Participation in Meetings Despite Pecuniary Interest (S 452 Act)
A Councillor is not prevented from taking part in the consideration or discussion of, or from voting on, any of the
matters/questions detailed in Section 452 of the Local Government Act.
Non-pecuniary Interests - Must be disclosed in meetings.
There are a broad range of options available for managing conflicts & the option chosen will depend on an assessment
of the circumstances of the matter, the nature of the interest and the significance of the issue being dealt with. Non-
pecuniary conflicts of interests must be dealt with in at least one of the following ways:

. It may be appropriate that no action be taken where the potential for conflict is minimal. However, Councillors
should consider providing an explanation of why they consider a conflict does not exist.

. Limit involvement if practical (eg. Participate in discussion but not in decision making or vice-versa). Care needs
to be taken when exercising this option.

. Remove the source of the conflict (eg. Relinquishing or divesting the personal interest that creates the conflict)

. Have no involvement by absenting yourself from and not taking part in any debate or voting on the issue as if
the provisions in S451 of the Local Government Act apply (particularly if you have a significant non-pecuniary
interest)

Disclosures to be Recorded (s 453 Act)
A disclosure (and the reason/s for the disclosure) made at a meeting of the Council or Council Committee or Sub-
Committee must be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

~r~oQov v
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ORDER OF BUSINESS

Community Consultation (Public Access)

HOONOURWN=

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

Opening & Welcome
Civic Prayer & Acknowledgement of Country
Apologies
Disclosure & Declarations of Interest
Confirmation of Previous Minutes
Tabling of Documents
Urgent, Late & Supplementary Items of Business
Mayoral Minute
Recommendations for Items to be Considered in Confidential Section
Open Council Reports
e Our Community
e Our Economy
e Our Environment
e Our Governance
Reports of Delegates & Committees
Notices of Motion
Resolution Register
Confidential Business
Meeting Close
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CLOSED COUNCIL
Confidential Reports

(Section 10A(2) of The Local Government Act 1993)
Where it is proposed to close part of the Meeting, the Chairperson will allow members of the public to make
representations to or at the meeting, before any part of the meeting is closed to the public, as to whether
or not that part of the meeting should be closed to the public.
The Chairperson will check with the General Manager whether any written public submissions or
representations have been received as to whether or not that part of the meeting should be closed to the
public.
The grounds on which part of the Council meeting may be closed to public are listed in Section 10A(2) of
the Local Government Act 1993 and are as follows:

(a) personnel matters concerning particular individuals others than Councillors,

(b) the personal hardship of any resident or ratepayer,

(c) information that would, if disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the
council is conducting (or proposes to conduct) business,

(d) commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if disclosed:

(i) prejudice the commercial position of the person who supplied it, or
(ii) confer a commercial advantage on a competitor of the council, or
(iii) reveal a trade secret,

(e) information that would, if disclosed, prejudice the maintenance of law,

(f) matters affecting the security of the council, councillors, council staff or council property,

(9) advice concerning litigation, or advice that would otherwise be privileged from production in legal
proceedings on the ground of legal professional privilege,

(h) during the receipt of information or discussion of information concerning the nature and location of
a place or an item of Aboriginal significance on community land.

(i) alleged contraventions of any code of conduct requirements applicable under section 440.

Section 10A(3) of the Act provides that Council, or a Committee of the Council of which all the members
are councillors, may also close to the public so much of its meeting as comprises a motion to close another
part of the meeting to the pubilic.

Section 10B(3) of the Act provides that if a meeting is closed during discussion of a motion to close another
part of the meeting to the public (as referred to in section 10A(3) of the Act,) the consideration of the
motion must not include any consideration of the matter or information to be discussed in that other part
of the meeting (other than consideration of whether the matter concerned is matter referred to in section
10A(2) of the Act).

Section 10B(1) of the Act provides that a meeting is not to remain closed to the public during the receipt
of information or the discussion of matters referred to in section 10A(2):

(a) except for so much of the discussion as is necessary to preserve the relevant confidentiality,
privilege or security, and
(b) if the matter concerned is a matter other than a personnel matter concerning particular individuals,

the personal hardship of a resident or ratepayer or a trade secret — unless the Council or committee
concerned is satisfied that discussion of the matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be
contrary to the public interest.
For the purpose of determining whether the discussion of a matter in an open meeting would be contrary
to the public interest section 10B(4) of the Act states it is irrelevant that:
(a) a person may interpret or misunderstand the discussion, or
(b) The discussion of the matter may:
() cause embarrassment to the Council or committee concerned, or to councillors or to
employees of the council, or
(if)  cause a loss of confidence in the Council or committee.

Resolutions passed in Closed Council
It is a requirement of Clause 253 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 that any resolution
passed in Closed Council, or Committee be made public as soon as practicable after the meeting has
ended. At the end of Closed Council or Committee meeting, the Chairperson will provide a summary of
those resolutions passed in Closed Council or Committee.
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AGENDA

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION (PUBLIC ACCESS)

WEBCASTING OF MEETING

This meeting will be recorded for placement on Council’s website for the purposes
of broadening knowledge and participation in Council issues, and demonstrating
Council’s commitment to openness and accountability.

All speakers must ensure their comments are relevant to the issue at hand and to
refrain from making personal comments or criticisms or mentioning any private
information.

No other persons are permitted to record the meeting, unless specifically authorised
by Council to do so.

1. OPENING & WELCOME

2. (A) OPENING PRAYER

"We give thanks for the contribution by our pioneers, early settlers and those who
fought in the various wars for the fabric of the Tenterfield Community we have
today.

May the words of our mouths and the meditation of our hearts be acceptable in
thy sight, O Lord.”

(B) ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

"I would like to acknowledge the traditional custodians of this land that we are
meeting on today. I would also like to pay respect to the Elders past, present, and
emerging of the Jukembal, Kamilaroi and Bundjalung nations and extend that
respect to other Aboriginal people present.”

3. APOLOGIES

4. DISCLOSURES & DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

5. CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

(ITEM MIN8/22)...... CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTESS

6. TABLING OF DOCUMENTS

7. URGENT, LATE & SUPPLEMENTARY ITEMS OF BUSINESS
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8. MAYORAL MINUTE

9. RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN CONFIDENTIAL

SECTION

10. OPEN COUNCIL REPORTS
OUR COMMUNITY
(ITEM COM15/22) STRONGER COUNTRY COMMUNITIES FUND - ROUND 5..... 23

(ITEM COM16/22) TENTERFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY BRANCH SERVICES -
UPDATE ..o e e 51

OUR ECONOMY
OUR ENVIRONMENT
OUR GOVERNANCE
(ITEM GOV67/22) MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022 ......ccvvvvvnnnnen 54
(ITEM GOV68/22) TENTERFIELD SHIRE COUNCIL AUDIT, RISK AND
IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE CHARTER & TENTERFIELD
SHIRE COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER............ucvien 171
(ITEM GOV69/22) FINANCE & ACCOUNTS - PERIOD ENDED 31 JULY 2022 ..200
(ITEM GOV70/22) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REPORT AS AT 31 JULY 2022 ..... 204

(ITEM GOV71/22) 2021/2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO BE REFERRED
FOR AUDIT .o e 206

(ITEM GOV72/22) MURRAY DARLING ASSOCIATION INC - 78TH
NATIONAL CONFERENCE & ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
- ALBURY NSW - 19 - 21 SEPTEMBER 2022 ................... 316

11. REPORTS OF DELEGATES & COMMITTEES

12. NOTICES OF MOTION

13. RESOLUTION REGISTER

(ITEM RES8/22) COUNCIL RESOLUTION REGISTER - JULY 2022.............. 320

14. CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
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CONFIDENTIAL

(ITEM ECO11/22)

(ITEM ECO12/22)

(ITEM ECO13/22)

SALE OF 780 SUGARBAG ROAD, DRAKE.

That above item be considered in Closed Session to the
exclusion of the press and public in accordance with Section
10A(2) (c) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as the matter
involves information that would, if disclosed, confer a
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is
conducting (or proposes to conduct) business.

AIRSTRIP - LOT 1 DP236737 - 127 SCHRODERS ROAD,
TENTERFIELD

That above item be considered in Closed Session to the
exclusion of the press and public in accordance with Section
10A(2) (c) (d(i)) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as the
matter involves information that would, if disclosed, confer a
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is
conducting (or proposes to conduct) business; AND
commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if
disclosed (i) prejudice the commercial position of the person
who supplied it.

OPTIONS TO MANAGE 136 MANNERS STREET,
TENTERFIELD.

That above item be considered in Closed Session to the
exclusion of the press and public in accordance with Section
10A(2) (c) (d(i)) of the Local Government Act, 1993, as the
matter involves information that would, if disclosed, confer a
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is
conducting (or proposes to conduct) business; AND
commercial information of a confidential nature that would, if
disclosed (i) prejudice the commercial position of the person
who supplied it.

15. MEETING CLOSED
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COUNCIL 24 AUGUST 2022

(ITEM MIN8/22) CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

REPORT BY: Elizabeth Melling

RECOMMENDATION
That the Minutes of the following Meeting of Tenterfield Shire Council:
e Ordinary Council Meeting — 27 July 2022

As typed and circulated, be confirmed and signed as a true record of the
proceedings of these meetings.

ATTACHMENTS
1 Unadopted Minutes - Ordinary Council Meeting - Wednesday 27 July 14
2022 Pages

18 August 2022



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

MINUTES

QUALITY NATURE - QUALITY HERITAGE - QUALITY LIFESTYLE

MINUTES OF
ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING
WEDNESDAY 27 JULY 2022

MINUTES OF THE Ordinary Council Meeting OF TENTERFIELD SHIRE held at the
Koreelah Room, Tenterfield Shire Council Chambers on Wednesday 27 July 2022
commencing at 9:30 am

ATTENDANCE Councillor Bronwyn Petrie (Mayor)
Councillor John Macnish (Deputy Mayor)
Councillor Peter Petty
Councillor Tim Bonner
Councillor Tom Peters
Councillor Kim Rhodes
Councillor Giana Saccon
Councillor Greg Sauer
Councillor Geoff Nye
Councillor Peter Murphy

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE Chief Executive (Daryl Buckingham)
Executive Assistant & Media (Elizabeth Melling)
Chief Corporate Officer (Kylie Smith)
Director Infrastructure (Fiona Keneally)

Clause 254(b) of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 requires that
the names of the mover and seconder of the motion or amendment are recorded
and shown in the Minutes of the meeting.

Website: www.tenterfield.nsw.gov.au Email: council@tenterfield.nsw.gov.au

Attachment 1 - Unadopted Minutes - Ordinary Council Meeting - Page 9
Wednesday 27 July 2022



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

COMMUNITY CONSULTATION (PUBLIC ACCESS)

WEBCASTING OF MEETING

I advise all present that this meeting is being recorded for placement on
Council’s website for the purposes of broadening knowledge and participation in
Council issues, and demonstrating Council’'s commitment to openness and
accountability.

All speakers must ensure their comments are relevant to the issue at hand and
to refrain from making personal comments or criticisms or mentioning any
private information.

No other persons are permitted to record the meeting, unless specifically
authorised by Council to do so.

OPENING AND WELCOME

CIVIC PRAYER

We give thanks for the contribution by our pioneers, early settlers and those
who fought in the various wars for the fabric of the Tenterfield Community we
have today.

May the words of our mouths and the meditation of our hearts be acceptable in
thy sight, O Lord.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

I would like to acknowledge the traditional custodians of this land that we are
meeting on today. I would also like to pay respect to the Elders past, present,
and emerging of the Jukembal, Kamilaroi and Bundjalung Nations and extend
that respect to other Aboriginal people present.

APOLOGIES
142/22 Resolved that there were no apologies.
(Tim Bonner/Kim Rhodes)
Motion Carried
DISCLOSURE & DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

That councillors now disclose any interests and reasons for declaring such
interest in the matters under consideration by Council at this meeting.
Name | Type | Item
Nil

(ITEM MIN7/22) CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

Resolved that the Minutes of the following Meeting of Tenterfield Shire
Councll:

* Ordinary Council Meeting - 22 June 2022

143/22

2 August 2022
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Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

As typed and circulated, be confirmed and signed as a true record of the
proceedings of these meetings.

(Peter Petty/John Macnish)
Motion Carried

TABLING OF DOCUMENTS

Nil.

URGENT, LATE & SUPPLEMENTARY ITEMS OF BUSINESS
Nil.

MAYOR MINUTE
Nil.

RECOMMENDATIONS FOR ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED IN
CONFIDENTIAL SECTION

Resolved that the following items be considered in the confidential section of
the meeting:-

(1) (ITEM COM10/22) Application for a Licence to Iinstall equipment on the
Tenterfield digital tower erected on Lot 5 DP 1007389

(Peter Murphy/Greg Sauer)

144/22

Motion Carried

Bruce Mills, Manager Economic Development & Special Projects entered the
meeting the time being 9.36 am

OPEN COUNCIL REPORTS

OUR COMMUNITY

(ITEM COM9/22) REVIEW OF YOUR LOCAL NEWS AND OPTIONS FOR
SOCIAL MEDIA
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide details of proposed Facebook
“noticeboard-only” trial for three months.

145/22 Resolved that Council:
1) Undertake a three-month trial of a "noticeboard-only” Facebook page and
review at the end of the trial - with a report on findings back to Council;
and

2) Note that the recommendation Is made mindful of the Customer
Satisfaction Survey showing the preference for “Your Local News” printed
brochure.

(Peter Petty/Geoff Nye)
oti arried

2 August 2022

Attachment 1 - Unadopted Minutes - Ordinary Council Meeting - Page 11
Wednesday 27 July 2022



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

Upon being put to the meeting, the motion was declared carried. The record of
vote was sought by Cr Peter Petty and supported by the Chairperson. Recorded
under the Model Code of Meeting Practice (Local Government NSW) - Section 11
Point 6.

For the Motion were Crs TP Peters, G Sauer, J Macnish, TB Bonner, B Petrie, K
Rhodes, Nye and PM Murphy Total (8).

Against the Motion were Crs G Saccon and PP Petty Total (2).

Bruce Mills, Manager Economic Development & Special Projects left the meeting
the time being 9.44 am.

Lee Mathers, Manager Arts, Culture & Library Services entered the meeting, the
time being 9.44 am.

(ITEM COM11/22) TENTERFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY BRANCH SERVICES

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to recommend the discontinuation of Saturday
services of the Tenterfield Library branch and recommend and permanent
closure of Tenterfield Public Library Branch services at Torrington, Drake and
Urbenville. This recommendation is based on reduced resourcing capacity to
manage the assets and services and diminished patronage of the Torrington
and Drake branch services.

RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Permanent Closure of Library branches - Torrington, Drake and Urbenville
and continue closure of Tenterfield library on Saturdays;

2. Re-call and re-distribution of all Council assets currently housed at the
Branches; and the

3. Cancellation of any lease agreements in relation to leased area usage for
the Library branches
(Kim Rhodes/Peter Murphy)
AMENDMENT
That Council:
a) Defer ITEM COM11/22 until the August Ordinary Council Meeting allowing
for further investigation of the community’s needs.

b) Consider the option to distribute the surplus assets to those communities
to support their ongoing development when reconsidered.

c) Suspend the surplus assets sale at this time until further consideration
of the distribution to the community can be resolved.

(Greg Sauer/John Macnish)

Amendment Carried
4
2 August 2022
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Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES

Ordinary Council

Meeting - Wednesday 27

July 2022

146/22

147722

Resolved that Council:
d) Defer ITEM COM11/22 until the August Ordinary Council Meeting allowing
for further investigation of the community’s needs.

e) Consider the option to distribute the surplus assets to those communities
to support their ongoing development when reconsidered.

f) Suspend the surplus assets sale at this time until further consideration
of the distribution to the community can be resolved.

(John Macnish/Kim Rhodes)
Motion Carried

Lee Mathers, Manager Arts Culture & Library Services left the meeting, the time
being 10.03 am.

Wes Hoffman, Manager HR, Workforce Development & Safety entered the meeting,
the time being 10.04 am.

(ITEM COM12/22) RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is for Council to adopt the Risk Management Policy
and Risk Appetite Statement so as to ensure compliance with the requirements
of the Local Government Act 1993 and expectations of the Office of Local
Government (OLG).

Resolved that Council adopts the revised Risk Management Policy (Attachment
1) and the associated Risk Appetite Statement (Attachment 2).

(Kim Rhodes/Peter Petty)
Motion Carried

Upon being put to the meeting, the motion was declared carried. The record of
vote was sought by Cr Giana Saccon and supported by Cr John Macnish. Recorded
under the Model Code of Meeting Practice (Local Government NSW) - Section 11
Point 6.

For the Motion were Crs Tom Peters, John Macnish, Tim Bonner, Bronwyn Petrie,
Peter Petty, Kim Rhodes, Greg Sauer, Peter Murphy and Geoffrey Nye Total (9).

Against the Motion was Cr G Saccon Total (1).

Wes Hoffman, Manager HR, Workforce Development & Safety left the meeting, the
time being 10.13 am.

David Counsell, Manager Asset & Program Planning entered the meeting, the time
being 10.13 am.

2 August 2022
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Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

(ITEM COM13/22) AM WHITE DRIVE RESERVE DEDICATION

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to inform Council of the result of enquiries to the
status of A M White Drive and seek to continue with the dedication of the section
of land as a public road reserve.

148/22 Resolved that Councll proceed with action to formally dedicate Part of Lot 2 DP
815097 as a Public Road Reserve along A M White Drive from New England
Highway to Bolivia Hall,

(Tim Bonner/Peter Petty)
Motion Carried

(ITEM COM14/22) MCLEODS CREEK ROAD
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to consider any further action to formalise a Road
Reserve over McLeods Creek Road through the Girard State Forest and beyond.

149/22 Resolved that Council:

(a) Take no further action in relation to dedication of a formal Road
Reserve along McLeods Creek Road through the Girard State Forest.

(b) Take no further action in relation to dedication of a formal Road

Reserve on any formation referred to as McLeods Creek Road beyond
the Girard State Forest where Council does not maintain the road.

(Peter Petty/Greg Sauer)
Motion Carried

David Counsell, Manager Asset & Program Planning left the meeting, the time
being 10.19 am.

OUR ECONOMY

OUR ENVIRONMENT

OUR GOVERNANCE

(ITEM GOVS57/22) MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JUNE 2022
SUMMARY

2 August 2022
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Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

The purpose of this report is to provide a standing monthly report to the Ordinary
Meeting of Council that demonstrates staff accountabilities and actions taken
against Council’s 2021/2022 Operational Plan.

150/22 Resolved that Council receives and notes the status of the Monthly Operational
Report for June 2022.

(John Macnish/Peter Petty)
otio r

SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS

151/22 Resolved that Standing Orders be suspended.
(Peter Petty/Geoff Nye)
Motion Carried
The meeting adjourned for morning tea, the time being 10.48 am.
The meeting reconvened, the time being 11.09 am.
RESUMPTION OF STANDING ORDERS

152722 Resolved that Standing Orders be resumed.
(Peter Petty/Greg Sauer)
Motion Carried

Roy Jones, Manager Finance & Technology entered the meeting, the time being
11.09 am.

(ITEM GOV58/22) REPORT ON LOAN BALANCES

SUMMARY
The purpose of this Report is to inform Council of its loan balances as at 30 June
2022.

153/22 Resolved that Councll notes the loan balance as at 30 June 2022 was
$18,848,630.12 ($19,016,929.35 as at 31 March 2022).

(Peter Petty/Greg Sauer)
Motion Carried

(ITEM GOV59/22) FINANCE & ACCOUNTS - PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE
2022

SUMMARY

The purpose of this Report is for the Responsible Accounting Officer to provide,
in accordance with Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation
2005 a written report setting out details of all money that the Council has
invested under Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993. The Report must
be made up to the last day of the month immediately preceding the meeting.

2 August 2022
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Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES Unadopted Minutes -
Ordinary Council
Meeting - Wednesday 27
July 2022

154/22 Resolved that Council recelve and note the Finance and Accounts Report for the
period ended 30 June 2022.

(Peter Murphy/Kim Rhodes)
Motion Carried

(ITEM GOV60/22) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REPORT AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

SUMMARY

The purpose of this Report is to show the progress of Capital Works projects
against the Year to Date (YTD) budget each month. This Report outlines
Council’s financial progress against each project.

Resolved that Councll recelve and note the Capital Expenditure Report for the

155/22 period ended 30 June 2022.

(Glana Saccon/John Macnish)
Motion Carried

(ITEM GOV61/22) COMMENCEMENT OF FURTHER COMMUNITY
CONSULTATION - SPECIAL RATE VARIATION 2023/24 AND 2024/25

SUMMARY

To recommend that Council proceed with commencement of further community
consultation for a Section 508 A (Permanent) Special Rate Variation commencing
in the 2023/2024 financial year to ensure council maintains and renews assets
notwithstanding the constant upward cost pressure and addresses financial
sustainability.

The proposed Special Rate Variation comprises a permanent Special Rate
Variation of 43% (including rate peg) in 2023/24 and 43% (including rate peg)
in 2024/25, representing a cumulative increase of 104.49%.

Community consultation is planned to be undertaken during August-September
2022 with a final report brought back to Council to submit an application
following any revision required following the consultation.

156722 Resolved that Council:

(1) Receive the report on Commencement of Further Community
Consultation relating to an application for a Special Rate Variation
2023/2024 and 2024/2025.

(2) Commence community engagement to support an application to IPART
for a proposed Special Rate Variation comprising of a permanent
increase of 43% (including rate peg) in 2023/24 and 43% (including
rate peg) In 2024/25, representing a cumulative Increase of 104.49%
using the current rating structure to determine yield.

2 August 2022
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(3) Receive a further report in November 2022 that will include:
a. A report on the additional community consultation,

b. A draft Application to the Independent Pricing and Regulatory
Tribunal (IPART) under section SO8A of the Local Government Act
1993 for an increase to the ordinary rate income, following the
finalisation of the community engagement process.

(Peter Petty/Greg Sauer)
Motion Carried

Upon being put to the meeting, the motion was declared carried. The record of
vote was sought by Cr Giana Saccon and supported by the Chairperson. Recorded
under the Model Code of Meeting Practice (Local Government NSW) - Section 11
Point 6.

For the Motion were Crs Tom Peters, John Macnish, Tim Bonner, Bronwyn Petrie,
Peter Petty, Kim Rhodes, Greg Sauer, Peter Murphy and Geoffrey Nye Total (9).

Against the Motion was Cr G Saccon Total (1).

(ITEM GOV62/22) ACCEPTANCE OF A QUALIFIED OPINION FROM AUDIT
OFFICE OF NEW SOUTH WALES FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE
2022 - RE- TREATMENT OF RURAL FIRE SERVICE ASSETS

SUMMARY

The purpose of this Report is to inform Council regarding the implied intention
of Audit Office of New South Wales to issue qualified audit opinions to Tenterfield
Shire Council if Rural Fire Service (RFS) Assets are not incorporated in Council
Financial Statements (Attachment 5, pg.13).

157/22 Resolved

1. That Council receive and note the Final Management Letter from the Audit
Office of New South Wales for the Final Phase of the 2020/2021 Audit.

2. That Council receive and note Council - Response to Management to
Letter regarding treatment of Rural Fire Service Assets.

3. That Council adopts a firm position on the issue of Rural Fire Service
assets, being that the Rural Fire Service Act 1997 should be amended to
make it clear that control of its assets rests with the Rural Fire Service,
and it should therefore have all assets relating to its activities on Iits
Balance Sheet.

4, That Council adopts an Acceptance of a Qualified Opinion from the Audit
Office of New South Wales for Financial Statements 30 June 2022.

(Greg Sauer/Kim Rhodes)

2 August 2022
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Roy Jones, Manager Finance & Technology left the meeting, the time being 12.25
pm.

David Counsell, Manager Asset & Program Planning entered the meeting, the time
being 12.25 pm.

PROCEDURAL MOTION

158/22 Resolved that ITEMS GOV63/22 - Policy 2.162 Public Gates and Vehicle
Bypasses & GOV64/22 - Policy 2.130 Construction & Maintenance of Property
Access from Council Roads be dealt with together.

{Peter Petty/Peter Murphy)
Motion Carried

(ITEM GOV63/22) POLICY 2.162 PUBLIC GATES AND VEHICLE
BYPASSES

SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to seek community input prior to reviewing Policy
relating to Public Gates and Vehicle Bypasses on Council maintained roads.

159/22 Resolved that Council;
Place Policy 2.162 Public Gates and Vehicle Bypasses on public display for 28
days to seek community input prior to reviewing the policy.
(Peter Petty/Peter Murphy)
Motion Carried

(ITEM GOV64/22) POLICY 2.130 CONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE OF
PROPERTY ACCESS FROM COUNCIL ROADS

SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to seek community input prior to reviewing Policy
relating to the construction and maintenance of property access to Council roads.

160/22 Resolved that Council:

Place Policy 2.130 Construction & Maintenance of Property Access from Council
Roads on public display for 28 days to seek community input prior to reviewing
the policy.

(Peter Petty/Peter Murphy)
Motion Carried

10
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David Counsell, Manager Asset & Program Planning left the meeting, the time
being 12.28 pm.

(ITEM GOV65/22) EXECUTIVE POSITIONS - MURRAY DARLING
ASSOCIATION

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to seek Council endorsement for Counclil delegates
on the Murray Darling Association to nominate for the positions of Chair or as an
Executive Committee member.

161/22 Resolved that Council:

(1) Endorse the nomination of Council delegate Cr Greg Sauer for the position
of Chair or Executive Committee member of the Murray Darling Association,
Region 11;

(2) Note nominations to be lodged with the Returning Officer on the
appropriate nomination form by 12.00 pm on Friday, 29 July 2022 for
determination at the Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, 12
August 2022 at the Gunnedah Shire Council.

(Peter Murphy/John Macnish)
Motion Carried

Lee Sisson, Administration & Customer Service Assistant Casual, entered the
meeting, the time being 12.30 pm.

(ITEM GOV66/22) UPDATE OF CITIZEN AND CUSTOMER CONTACT
CHARTER TO CUSTOMER SERVICE CHARTER

SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to update Council’s Citizen and Customer Contact
Charter to reflect Council’s current Customer Services.

162722 Resolved that Council:

(1) Place the draft Tenterfield Shire Council Customer Service Charter
2022 on public exhibition for 14 days, from 27 July 2022 to 9 August
2022 and either

(2) Review any submissions received during the public exhibition period
at the August Ordinary Council Meeting, or

(3) If no submissions are recelved during the Public Exhibition period,
adopt the Tenterfield Shire Council Customer Service Charter as at 9
August 2022,

11
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(Glana Saccon/John Macnish)
Motion Carried
Lee Sisson, Administration & Customer Service Assistant Casual, left the meeting,
the time being 12.32 pm.
REPORTS OF DELEGATES & COMMITTEES

(ITEM RC11/22) REPORT OF COMMITTEES & DELEGATES - AUDIT, RISK
IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE - 8 JUNE 2022

163/22 Resolved that the report and recommendations from the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee meeting of 8 June 2022 be recelved.

(Peter Petty/Greg Sauer)
Motion Carried

(ITEM RC12/22) REPORTS OF COMMITTEES & DELEGATES - 2022
DESTINATION & VISITOR ECONOMY CONFERENCE IN ORANGE NSW

Resolved that the report from Cr Kim Rhodes and Cr Tim Bonner regarding their
attendance at the 2022 Destination & Visitor Economy Conference be received
and noted.

164/22

(Kim Rhodes/Tim Bonner)
Motion Carried

NOTICES OF MOTION
Nil.

RESOLUTION REGISTER

(ITEM RES7/22) COUNCIL RESOLUTION REGISTER - JUNE 2022

SUMMARY

The purpose of this Report Is to provide a standing monthly report to the
Ordinary Meeting of Council that outlines all Resolutions of Council previously
adopted and yet to be finalised.

165/22 Resolved that Council notes the status of the Council Resolution Register to
June 2022.

(Peter Petty/Peter Murphy)
Motion Carried

CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
SUSPENSION OF STANDING ORDERS - CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS

12
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166/22 Resolved that Standing Orders be suspended and:

A) The meeting be closed to the public and members of the press because of
the need for confidentiality, privilege or security, as specified below and
provided for under section 10a(2) of the local government act, 1993; and

B) The agenda and associated correspondence, unless specified are not to be
released to the public as they relate to a matter of either personal
hardship, person matters, trade secrets or matters which cannot be
lawfully disclosed.

(Greg Sauer/Geoff Nye)
Moti r

The recording device was turned off and the meeting moved into Closed
Committee, the time being 12.44 pm.

Neville Coonan, Property Specialist entered the meeting, the time being 12.48 pm.

(ITEM COM10/22) APPLICATION FOR A LICENCE TO INSTALL
EQUIPMENT ON THE TENTERFIELD DIGITAL TOWER ERECTED ON LOT 5
DP 1007389

That above item be considered in Closed Session to the exclusion of the press
and public in accordance with Section 10A(2) (c) of the Local Government Act,
1993, as the matter involves information that would, if disclosed, confer a
commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting (or
proposes to conduct) business.

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to consider a request from Acquirecomm Pty Ltd
acting on behalf Telstra Corporation for the installation of equipment to
operate/transmit Prime TV for the Tenterfield community from the existing Mt
MacKenzie Digital Tower. The digital tower is erected on Lot 5 DP 1007389 which
Is Council owned, operational land.

167722 Resolved that Council:

1. Delegates authority to the Chief Executive to enter into a Heads of Terms
(HoT’s) to be prepared by Council's appointed legal advisors and subject
to the terms summarized In attachment A.

2. Delegates authority to the Chief Executive to enter into a new Licence to
be prepared by Council’s appointed legal advisors and subject to the terms
included in the HoT's.

3. Authorises the Licence be signed under seal of Council by the Mayor and
the Chief Executive.

(Peter Petty/Giana Saccon)

Motion Carried
13
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RESUMPTION OF STANDING ORDERS

168/22 Resolved that Standing Orders be resumed.

(Kim Rhodes/Peter Petty)
Motion Carried

The meeting moved out of Closed Committee and the recording device was turned
on, the time being 1.00 pm.

In accordance with Section 253 of Local Government Regulations (General) 2005,
the Mayor read the resolutions as resolved whilst in Closed Committee.

MEETING CLOSED

There being no further business the Mayor declared the meeting closed at
1.01 pm.

........................................

Councillor Bronwyn Petrie
Mayor/Chairperson

14
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COUNCIL 24 AUGUST 2022

Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Submitted by: Corporate Administration Officer

Reference: ITEM COM15/22

Subject: STRONGER COUNTRY COMMUNITIES FUND - ROUND 5

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Community - Tenterfield Shire is a vibrant, inclusive, and safe
community where diverse backgrounds and cultures are respected
and celebrated.

CSP Strategy: Provide opportunities for residents to enjoy access to arts,
festivals, sporting activities, recreation, community and cultural
activities.

SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to advise that applications for Stronger Country
Communities Funding — Round Five (5) are now open and for Council to determine which
eligible projects will be applied for based on the funding guidelines and the aspirations
of the community as made known to Council.

OFFICER’'S RECOMMENDATION:
That Council:

1) Nominate and Apply for “Stage 2 - Youth Precinct Project” for
submission to the Stronger Country Communities Funding - Round 5
within the total amount of the grant funding that is available to Council
being $905,148.00

BACKGROUND
Council has previously been successful in receiving funding from Rounds Two (2), Three
(3) & Four (4) of the Stronger Country Communities Grant Program.

REPORT:

Round 5 of the Stronger Country Communities Grant Program has recently opened
which will see a further $160 million made available for community projects that
increase the wellbeing of regional NSW communities by providing new or upgraded
social and sporting infrastructure, including up to $50 million dollars for projects
delivered by Eligible Community Applicants.

Council has received correspondence from the Acting Premier and Minister for Regional
NSW Paul Toole announcing applications were opening on the 5 August 2022. Regional
NSW has recently advised the total funding available within the Tenterfield Local
Government Area (LGA) is $1,316,579. Of this $905,148 is available to Council as the
Applicant with the balance of the allocation open only to eligible community
organisation’s. Council is encouraged to partner with community groups as the lead
applicant where the project involves council-owned infrastructure.

A copy of the Funding Guidelines are attached (Attachment A). All projects applied for
will need to be shovel ready, with work to commence within six (6) months of the
announcement date (projects are to start by April 2023) and completed within three (3)
years from the Executed Funding Deed.
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The minimum grant funding per project is $100,000. Funding will be allocated to
projects that meet the eligible criteria where projects must deliver projects for
infrastructure or community programs that boost the wellbeing of regional areas
through improved amenity and positive social outcomes.

Each project needs to align with Councils Community Strategic Plan, have letters of
support and be able to show that Council has engaged with local sporting teams and
organisations. The funding availability has been promoted throughout the Community
(for groups to apply for funding independently from Council; or, if on Council owned
land or in Council owned facilities, to apply for, with a letter of support from Council),
but Council, through Councilors, Staff and feedback from the Community is aware of
many projects that could meet the criteria that could be applied for.

Council held a workshop on Wednesday, 10 August 2022 to discuss the proposed
projects that Council could apply for and if successful complete the projects within the
allocated timeframe. As a result of the workshop, it was decided to apply for Stage 2
for the youth precent. By applying for this project will not cause any additional strain
on staff having to produce scope of works, complete a tender process as these are
shovel ready project and could add to the existing contract.

It was discussed to include the Tenterfield Memorial Baths blankets with rollers and
upgrade the painting for inside both the 30m Pool and paddle pool. However, we have
been advised by Regional NSW that maintenance projects and items that are classed
non-fixed will not be approved through this funding. Investigations into the Tenterfield
Memorial Baths heating of the pool identifies additional operational cost beyond double
the existing electricity charges that the pool currently is charged, four (4) months of
the year to run heating in the pool would cost in excess of $20,000 in addition of the
$11,000 that is already charged for running cost. Given Councils financial dilemmas it
would not be wise to add additional restraints to the operational costs of the pool.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:

1. Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
Council has engaged with Community Groups, Progress Associations and
members of the public during September 2021 and October 2021 in relation to
the design of the youth precinct.

2. Policy and Regulation
e Local Government Act 1993 (NSW)
e Local Government Regulation 2005 (NSW)
e Crown Land Management Act 2016 (NSW)
e Native Title Act 1993 (CTH)

3. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)
The “Youth Precent Project - Stage 2" will impact Council assets and future
budgets with the purchase of park furniture and improving existing assets within
the parks.

If the Pool heating was to be selected as a project for Council to apply for. If
successful, the heating would add an approx. additional $20,000 to the electricity
budget and add strain to the asset deprecation and maintenance schedule. This
project would not be practical considering Councils financial challenges.

24
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4. Asset Management (AMS)
Any potential new asset development on Council owned/managed land from
these funds will have an impact on Council’s Long Term Financial Plan and Asset
Register.

5. Workforce (WMS)
There is a significant increase in Administration and Project Management of
grants. Given the scope of work and tender has already been completed the
impact on the workforce will be minimal.
With the new assets being completed, Parks and Garden staff maintenance and
service runs will be increased and additional staff and income for the park
cleaning budget may need to be considered.

6. Legal and Risk Management
Consideration needs to be given to changes in the risk profile and at this point,
with the information available is not considered to have a material impact on
Councils risk profile.

7. Performance Measures
Performance measures pertain to the grant delivery and outcomes matching the
grant criteria.

8. Project Management
The projects located on Council owned/managed land needs to be managed by
Council or Council contractors.

Kylie Smith

Chief Corporate Officer

Prepared by staff member: Jodie Condrick

Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Kylie Smith, Chief Corporate Officer

Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Attachments: 1 Grant Guidelines - Round 5 26 Pages
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From top: Barnie Goodwin skate park and playg ‘aund, Photo credit: Lake Macguarie
Chitdren enjoy trainir g at their local Rugby Unicn Clu, in Grenfell,
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Stronger Country Communities Fund Round 5

Message from the
Deputy Premier

Program Guidelines 4

The NSW Government is committed to making regional NSW the best
place to live. That is why | am so pleased to announce Round 5 of the
popular Stronger Country Communities Fund with up to $160 million

available to support our regional communities big and smail.

Having faced the worst floods, drought and bushfires

on record alongside the impacts of COVID-19, it has been
a challenging time for people living and working in our
regions. This continued investment in regional NSW aims
to restore and strengthen our regional economies.

Over the past four rounds of the Fund, we have provided
mare than $500 million te over 2,000 local grassroots
projects aimed at reinvigorating rural communities in
every single regional Local Government Area across
the state.

Now in its fifth round, the Stronger Country Communities
Fund will continue to deliver vital community
infrastructure such as bike paths, sports fields, main
street upgrades, playgrounds, community centres and
much more.

| am proud to say this Fund helps bring to life our vision
for growing local economies and making everyday life
better for everyone who lives, visits or does business in
regional NSW.

| hope you take the time to submit a funding application
and | look forward to seeing the final projects supported
through this Fund.

The Hon. Paul Toole MP
Deputy Premier
Minister for Regional NSW, and Minister for Police

Attachment 1 - Grant Guidelines - Round 5
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Overview

| The Stronger Country Communities
Fund was established in 2017 by the
NSW Government to deliver local
projects that enhance the lives of
people living in regional communities.

Round 5 of the Stronger Country Communities Fund will
see a further $160 million made available for community
projects that increase the wellbeing of regional NSW
communities, including up to $50 million dollars for

projects delivered by Eligible Community Applicants.
The Stronger Country Communities Fund is 1 6 O l I l
administered by the Department of Regional NSW.

Round 5

—SGGOm

Stronger Country
Communities Fund total
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Stronger Country Communities Fund Round 5

Program
objective

The objective of the Stronger Country
Communities Fund is to boost the
wellbeing of communities in regional
areas by providing new or upgraded
social and sporting infrastructure

or community programs that have
strong local support.

A young child enjoys playing in Grentell

Program Guidelines 6

Key dates

Applications open:
5 August 2022

Applications close:
23 September 2022 at 5pm AEST

Notification/Project announcement:

Successful Applicants will be notified
confidentially from November 2022 or as soon
as possible after a grant is approved, at the NSW
Government’s discretion,

Public announcement by the NSW Government
may accur at any time after an Applicant has
been notified of a successful outcome.

Contracting:
From Novembear 2022

Contracting will commence once an Applicant
has signed and returned their letter of offer and
confidentialily agreement.

Project completion:

Projects must commence within 6 months ofa
tunding announcament and be completed within
3 years from executing a funding deed.

In extenuating circumstances, late appiications
may be accepted at the sole discretion of
the Department of Regional NSW.

Attachment 1 - Grant Guidelines - Round 5
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Grant amounts

Infrastructure $100,000 Local Government Area allocation.
For requests over 52 million, a

financial co-contribution of 25 per
Program $100,000 cent is required.

Applicants requesting over $2 million in grant funding for a sports project must obtain a letter of support from the
relevant NSW peak sporting organisation,

Eligible Applicants can contact the Department of Regional NSW for the maximum funding allocation for their

Local Government Area.
Co-contributions
1. Applicants requesting $2 million ar more in grant funding for an individual
9/ project are required to make at least 3 25 per cent financial co-contribution
0 to that project. This is a mandatory eligibllity requirement. Co-contributions
could include leveraging Applicant funds as well as funding from other
sources including other NSW or Australian Government programs.
2. The financial co-contributlon source may be from the Applicant or other
S tunding sources but must be confirmed as part of the application process
through the provision of supporting evidence.

3. Project delivery or viability should not be dependent on co-contributions
that have not been secured.
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From top: Locals workaut an outdoor gym equigment in Grenfell. New
library facilities, Lake Macquarie. Photo cradit: Lake Macquarie City
Council. A young man anjoys a run on a local pathway, Narrandera
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Round 5

Eligibility Criteria

All applications submitted under Round 5 of the Stronger Country
Communities Fund will need to meet the Fund's Eligibility Criteria and
will be assessed against the Assessment Criteria.

Eligible Applicants

Applicants must be an incorparated entity and hold an Australian
Business Number (ABN), Australian Company Number (ACN},

be registered with NSW Fair Trading under the Associations
Incorporation Act 2009 or incorporated under an Australian tederal,
state or territory Act of Parliament. Unincorporated organisations,
individuals and for profit and commercial organisations are ineligible

ta apply.

«  NSW regional councils,
excluding Greater Sydnay,
Wollongong & Newcastle

+  NSW reglonal joint
organisations of councils

» Section 355 committees
of council*

Community organisations
registered as incorporated
associations

Not-for-profit community
organisations registered as
public companies

Local Abariginal Land
Councils

Lord Howe Island Board

Unincorporated Far West
2roups

*Saction 355 committoes of council must apply vie the relevant council.

Eligible Council Applicants are encouraged (o work with community
groups to identity priority projects and should consider project
partnerships where Lhe Eligible Council Applicant is the landowner.
The Eligible Council Applicant will be sclely responsible for the
project’s delivery and reporting through a funding deed.

Eligible Applicants are encouraged to work with key local
stakeholders including their local Members of Parliament, local
council, peak sporting or cultural crganisations to identify priority
projects in their Local Government Area 1o ensure prejects with high
community support are submitted. Letters of support are encouraged
from all local stakeholders to strengthen applications.

Eligible Applicants must have or be able and willing to purchase at
feast $20 million public liability insurance.

Program Guidelines 10

Project locations

Projects must be located in one
of the 93 regional NSW Local
Government Areas, Lord Howe
Island or the Unincorporated Far
West. Projects in Greater Sydney,
Newcastle and Wollongong are
not eligible.

Projects located across Local
Government Areas are not eligible.

If an Applicant wishes to apply for a
project across more than one Local
Government Area, the project should
be split into moltiple projects and
submitted for the relevant Local
Government Area.

Flood impacted Local
Government Areas

The flood impacted Local
Government Areas of Clarence
Valley, Richmond Valley, Kyogle,
Lismore, Ballina, Byron and Tweed
will be provided additional support
during the application and project
delivery process.

Attachment 1 - Grant Guidelines - Round 5

Page 35



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1
STRONGER COUNTRY COMMUNITIES FUND - Grant Guidelines -
ROUND 5 Round 5

Attachment 1 - Grant Guidelines - Round 5




Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

STRONGER COUNTRY COMMUNITIES FUND - Grant Guidelines -
ROUND 5 Round 5
Stranger Country Communities Fund Round 5 Program Guidelines 1z

Inclusion and accessibility

The NSW Government is seeking to support
regional communities to future-proot
infrastructura and programs by funding
universally designed projects. These projects
should move beyond current day compliance
standards and provide dignified and equitable
inclusion to sacial and community programs for
people with disability.

Funding will support projects that improve
community participation, livable communitias
and accessibility and inclusion outcomes, These
will assist people with disability and accessibility
reguirements to participate independently with
equity and dignity.

Applicants must demonstrate consideration of
accessibility and inclusion measures in their
application. Projects which damonstrate the
provision of fit-for-purpose, accessible and safe
facilities, and increasad participation opportunities
by increasing accessibility and inclusion/universal
design are encouraged.

This applies to both infrastructure projects and
community or secial programs aiming to improve
existing accessibility and inclusion to encourage
greater pariicipation.

Improved outcomes for
Aboriginal people

The NSW Government is committed to supporting
Aboriginal people and communities to drive

lacal and place-based initiatives and solutions
through funded projects. it acknowledges regional
communities are unique and therefore initiatives
and solutions need to be bespoke, tailored and
determined by the local commurity.

Projects that seek to improve outcomes

for Aboriginal people must align with the

skiils, aspirations and experiences of local
Aporiginal communities, Projects must address

a demonstrated community issue and deliver
positive impact on social outcomes for Aberiginal
pecple and communities in regional NSW.

From top: Urunga Boadwalk on the Coffs Coast.
Waomen enjoying a vigit to the Yaamaganu Gallary
in Moree. Photo credit: Destination NSW
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What are Eligible
Project Costs?

Eligible Project Costs may include
those associated with:

/\ building new or upgrading existing
I @ l local community amenity and

community service infrastructure

delivering community programs
- g and events
\

Applicants may include up to 25 per cent of
the total project cost for contingency and N
up to 10 per cent of the total project cost . -
for project management and administration,
Design, including regulatory applications
and approvals costs, must be listed as
administration costs.

Families and children anjoy the park and playground in Forbes,
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Stronger Country Communities Fund

Examples of Eligible
Project Costs:

Community programs
and events

Community evants

Aboriginal and Torres Strait
Islander community cultural
education programs

Multicultural festivals

Intergenerational activities -
sharing knowledge through
activity-based experience

Environmental education and
working bees

Short-term disability and/or
carer support programs

Workshops to identify
accessibility and inclusion needs
in the community

Cultural and/or disability
awareness training sessions

Community, sporting and
recreational programs which
seek to remove barriers to
participation through promoting
accessibility and incluston

Cammunity wellbeing programs,

Round 5

Community amenity
and community service
infrastructure

Community centres and halls
Libraries

Community amenities and
barbecue/picnic areas

Recreation facilities

Club houses, change rooms,
canteens

Murals or community art
instalments

Memorials or statues

Emergency services
infrastructure le.g. aerodrome
water refilling)

Surf Life Saving Club
infrastructure

Aguatic facilities and pools

Amenities for participants and
spectators

Playgrounds, parks, shared
paths and fixed fitness stations

Seating, planting boxes,
landscaping and paving

Street lighting to improve
safety

Street/footpath
reconfigurations in commercial
and recreaticnal areas.
Footpaths in a residential area
are only eligible where there

is a clear transport link to
facilities

Program Guidetines

Shade cloth, awnings
and pergolas

Public toilets

Infrastructure for health and
community services facilities
{e.g. domestic violence centres
for wamen)

Homeless shelters

Men's sheds

Provision of a sensory room
Community aged care facilities

Infrastructure upgrade to
local community radio station
facilities

Infrastructure to support
and improve accessihility to
community facilities

Town and tourism signage

Main street beautification
projects

Non-fixed assets that enhance
accessibility and inclusion,
Examples include beach access
mats, pool hoists, portable
changing places amaenities

and adaptive sporting
equipment such as court-based
wheelchairs.

*Ploase note that the examples provided above are suggestions onty and
other projects that meet the program objective are welcomed.
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What are Ineligible
Ineligible Projects Project Costs?
Projects are not eligible for funding if they are: Ineligible Project Costs
include:

located outside an eligible regional Local Government Area
not submitted by an eligible entity
located across multiple Local Government Areas boundaries

exclusively for planning activities (e.g. master planning or
heritage studies)

for the maintenance or construction of local roads or other
ONgoing core service infrastructure works that are the ordinary
responsibility of council or other levels of government

for the delivery of essential or core government services
that should be funded from another source such as local
government, the NSW Government or the Australian
Government

seeking retrospective funding to cover any project component
that is already complete before Applicants are informed of the
funding decision outcome or funding is announced

seeking grant funding for ongoing staff or operational costs
beyond 3 years from project announcement for programs,
or any ongoing staff or operational costs for infrastructure
projects

for a general works package without specific scope, costs
and location (e.g. ‘upgrading lighting at sports ovals' without
identifying the work required, number of sites or the locations)

exclusively for marketing, branding, advertising or product
promaotion including tourism marketing

providing direct commercial and/or exclusive private benefit to
an individual or business

not clearly providing benefits that will significantly contricute
to the objective of the Stronger Country Communities Fund

the recipient of duplicate grant funding from another NSW or
Australian Government grant program far the same projact

solely for the maintenance of any infrastructure i.e. painting or
beautification repairs without upgrading the functionality of
the infrastructure.

costs related to buying or
upgrading non-fixed equipment
or supplies, unless considered
essential to program delivery and
are incidental costs to the averall
project budget

costs retating to the purchase

of vehicles, buses, boats, trailers,
motorhomes, or other modes

of transportation

purchase of land or buildings

financing, including debt
financing or rental costs

costs relating to depreciation of
plant and equipment beyond the
life of the project

non-project related staff training
and development costs

ongoing/recurrent funding that
is required beyond the stated
timeframe of the project

tor infrastructure projects,
funding for any ongoing staff or
operational costs

for community programs, funding
for ongeing staff or operational
costs beyond the scope and
timeframe of the funded project

projects that seek to solely
subsidise memberships for
existing services

project managemeant or
contingency costs that exceed
the eligibility requirements
(see page 13).
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From togx Children anjoying a game at the local Grenfell Socce

Hotlard Park Swimming Centre, West Wyaslong
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As_ses_sment
Criteria

All applications that meet the Eligibility 1. Viability

Criteria must also meet the relevant .
30 3 3 3 I r
Assessment Criteria to receive funding. 2. Community support
Eligible applications will be assessed 3. Alignment with Stronger Country
against the following criteria: Communities Fund objective
: Viability 2. Community support
A project will be considered viable if it: * The project must have demonstrated community
t.
+ hasin the Department of Regional NSW's view, i .
a realistic budget based on quotes or detailed * Consultation is an important part of the process to
estimates, reasonable assumptions or pre\qous ensure that pfoiec's are supDUr(ed by the Commun]ly
experience with similar projects and help to make regional communities even better

; : places to live.
*+ is cost-effective and represents value for money R :
* Applicants will be required to provide evidence of

* canbe delivered in stages consultation and support for the projects thay submit,
* can be delivered within 3 years from the project such as:
funding announcement + engagement through council's Community
« has estimated costs for combined project Strategic Plan, online surveys, letters of support
management and administration that do not exceed from Members of Parliament. councils, peak
10 per cent of the total project cost sporting and cultural organisations, or other
documents demonstrating community support for

* has estimated costs for contingencies that do
not exceed a maximum of 25 per cent of the total
project cost

the projects.

» demonstrates access to the necessary expertise
and support to deliver the project

* does not require ongoing funding from the
NSW Government

+ demonstrates how it will be oparated and/or
maintained when the projact is completed
{where applicable),

The Department of Regional NSW may seek information
fram relevant NSW Government departments 1o verity
the viability of a project and retains the discretion to
disclose information to these agencies where relevant.
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3. Alignment with Stronger Country
Communities Fund objective

The project clearly demonstrates that anticipated
community benefits will directly contribute to the
abjactive of the Fund (see page 6).

Alignment with the ralevant Disability Inclusion Action
Plan for projects that seek to enhance accessibility and
inclusion for pecple with disability.

Evidence thal the project aligns with the aspirations and
experiences of local Abariginal communities for projects
that seek to improve outcomes for Aboriginal people.

The Department of Reglonal NSW may requast additional The Tocumwal Water Playground.
information or clarification from Applicants to assist in
the assessment,
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Application
Process

Round 5 of the Stronger
Country Communities
Fund will be a single stage
application process.

Eligible Council Applicants
will be required to submit
all of their projects (up to a
maximum ot 10 projects) in
the one application form.

All Applicants are raquired
to submit the application
documents into the Fund’s
online portal.

Applications cannot be
reopened or amended once

the closing date has passed.

How to apply

Visit https://regionaldey martygrants.com.au/SCCF5
to submit an application to the Stronger Country Communities
Fund Round 5,

What needs to be included in an application?
All applications need to include;

* aclear project scope
* apreoject plan

* @aproject budget based on quotes or detalled estimates,
reasonable assumptions or previous experience with
similar projects

* landowner consent if the land is nol owned by the Applicant
* proof of incorporation for community groups

« evidence of $20 million Public Liability Insurance in the name
of the Applicant

* evidence of project co-contribution for projects requesting
$2 million or more in funding (if applicable)

* aletter of support from the relevant NSW sporting
organisation if a sports-related project is seeking over
S2 million In grant funding (if applicable)

« evidence of community consultation and strong community
support for the project

For council applications these will need to be provided ftor each
project included in the application,

Templates can be found at nsw.gov.au/SCCFr5

Attachment 1 - Grant Guidelines - Round 5
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Assessment
Process

Decision making

Following receipt of applications, the

Department of Regional NSW will review projects
against the Eligibility Criteria and then arrange for
the assessment of projects against the
Assessment Criteris,

Through the assessment process, the Department
may requaest additional information from the
Applicant, The Department may also seek advice
from other NSW Government agencies or other
third-party providers (such as probity advisors) to
assist with the assessment of projects. The Stronger
Country Communities Fund assessmant panel will
review project eligibility and assessment outcomes
and form a list of projects that are deemed suitable/
not suitable for government consideration.

The assessment panel may recommend part-funding
projects where there is insufficient funding available
for the whole project or whers only a component

of the praoject is considered suitable for funding.
This may include part-funding projects under the
minimum grant threshold of $100,000.

Broader factors that may be considered when
assessing the overall package of projects suitable
for funding include:

« amount of funding available

+ suitability of projects for cther government
funding apportunities

« gther factors deemed relevant and important in
a local or whole-of-NSW context.

The Department can take other facters into account
that may make an application ineligible for funding,
such as any person, business or organisation that
could cause reputational or other risk to the

NSW Government.

Program Guidelines

The assessment panel may at their discretion
recommend a project conditionally on the basis that
an external, professional project management service
he engaged for the project to ensure appropriate
atfardability and deliverakility. Where appropriate,
projects may be referred to other funding programs in
the NSW or Australian Gevernment for consideration.

The assaessment panel’s advice and recommendations
will be provided to the Deputy Premier for
consideration and final approval.

Probity advice

Independent probity advisors will provide guidance
to the Department on any i1ssues concerning INtegrity,
fairness and accountability that may arise throughout
the application, assessment, and decision-making
process, This will ensure decisions are made with
integrity, fairness and accountability, while delivering
vatue for money for NSW.

Can Ineligible Projects be referred to
a more appropriate funding program?

Yes. Projects that are more suitable for other NSW
Government programs may be referrad to those
programs. Applications that are referred will be
subject to the full Assessment Criteria of the other
NSW Government program to which they are referred.
Applicants may need to update their application to
meet the criteria of the refarred program,
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Successful
Applicants

Notification

Successful Applicants will be notified by email and/cr
letter. Applicants must keep the grant confidential for
a period if an announcement is likely to be made by
the NSW Government,

What happens if the project
is successful?

Funding Deed

+  Successful Applicants will be required to enter
into a funding deed with the NSW Government.
A sample funding deed can be viewed at
nsw.gov.au/SCCFr5

* Successful Applicants will be required to provide
all supporting documentation and approvals before
the Department of Regional NSW can enter into
a funding deed. This includes $20 million Public
Liability insurance, Development Approval (if
applicable) and approval from the Department
of Education (DoE) Asset Management Unit for
projects being undertaken on DoE land.

* The NSW Government makes no binding funding
commitment to an Applicant untess and until both
parties sign a funding deead.

* Successful Applicants must not make financial
commitments for funded activities until funding
deeds have been executed by both parties.

* Grants will be paid via milestone payments set out
in the funding deed. Timing and requirements will
vary at NSW Government’s discretion.

« Successful Applicants may be required to submit
progress reports to the NSW Government as
outlined in the funding deed,

Important terms and conditions

* All projects must demonstrate they can commence
within 6 months of the announcement of funding
and be completed within 3 years as outlined in
the project plan,

Program Guidelines 21

Applicants must hold all relevant insurances,
including a minimum $20 million Public Liability
Insurance.

Requests for variations or changes to the project will
only be cansidered in limited circumstances.

All awarded grants will be GST exclusive. If you are
registered for GST, this will be applied on tap of the
agreed grant value when payment is made to you.
Grants are assessable income for taxation purposes,
unless exempted by taxation law. It is recommended
Applicants seek independent professional advice
about taxation obligations or seek assistance from
the Australian Taxation Office. The NSW Government
does not provide advice on individual taxation
circumstances,

Successful Applicants will be required to pay back
unspent funds or those funds which have not been
spent in accordance with the funding deed.

Successful Applicants will be required to participate
in a program evaluation to determine the extent to
which their projects have contributed teo the objective
of the Fund. The evaluation will require Applicants to
provide evidence of how projects have resulted in a
measurable change to the lives of local residents that
is consistent with the objective of the Fund.

Any information submittad by an Applicant may
be used for promotional material prepared by the
NEW Government.

The NSW Government may choose to publicly
anncunce funding for individual applications. it may
also use information provided in the grant to develop
case studies.

All recipients of NSW Government funding should
acknowledge this financial support as per the
Funding Acknowledgement Guidelines for Recipients
of NSW Government Grants available at nsw.gov.au/
branding/sponsorship-and-funding-acknowledgment-
guidelines.

The Department reserves the right to undertake an
audit of grant funding within a period 7 years from the
signing of the funding deed.

Applicants must advise the Department of any
changes to their legal status or of changes or delays
to their project,
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Unsuccessful Applicants

Applicants will be notified in writing of the outcome
of each application and will be offered a feedback
information session for any unsuccessful appiication

Available support

For help preparing applications, information and
resources including relevant application templates
are available from nsw.gov.au/SCCFrS.

& webinar will be held during the application

open period. Information about the webinar will be
available on the Fund's webpage when details

are confirmed

The Department of Regional NSW can assist
Aoplicants to develop strong applications, Please
contact sccf.enguiries@regional nsw.gov.au or
call 1300 679 673 tor a referral

From top: Queanbeyan 2021 Taskfcroe meeling.
Sport end Rec Camp at Borambola.
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Complaints

Any concerns about the Fund or
individual applications should be
submitted in writing to ragionalnsw.
business@regional nsw.gov.au.

If you do not agree with the way
the Department of Regicnal NSW
handled the issue, you may wish to
contact the NSW Ombudsman via

ombo.nsw.gov.au.

Government Information
{Public Access) Act 2009
(NSW)

Applicants should be aware that
information submitted in applications
and all related correspondence,
attachments and other documents
may be made publicly available
under the Government Information
{Public Access) Act 2009 (NSW).
Information that is deemed to be
commercially sensitive will

be withheld.

The Government Information (Public
Access) Act 2009 (NSW) makes
government information accessible
to the public by;

* requiring government agencies 1o
make certain sorts of information
freely available

*  encouraging government
agencies to release as much other
information as possible

» giving the public an enforceable
right to make access applications
for government information

* restricting access to information
only when there is an overriding
public interest against disclosure.

Round 5

Copyright

This publication is protected by
copyright. With the exception of {a)
any coat of arms, logo, trademark or
other branding; (b) any third-party
intellectual property; and (c) personal
Iinformation such as photographs of
people, this publication is licensed
under the Creative Commons
Attribution 4.0 International Licence.

The licence terms are available at the
Creative Commons webpage https://

creativecommons.org/licenses/
by/4.0/legalcode

The Department of Regicnal NSW
requires that it be attributed as
creator of the licenzed material in
the following manner: © State of
New South Wales (Department of
Regional NSW), (2022).

You may also use material in
accordance with rights you may have
under the Copyright Act 1968 (Cth),
for example under the fair dealing
provisions or statutory licences.

The use of any material from this
publication in a way not permitted

by the above licence or otherwise
allowed under the Copyright Act
1968 (Cth) may be an infringement of
copyright. Infringing copyright may
expose you to legal action by, and
liability to, the copyrignt owner,

Where you wish to use the material
in a way that is not permitted, you
must lodge a request for further
authorisation with the Department,

Program Guidelines 23

Disclaimer

The Department of Regional

NSW does not guarantee or
warrant, and accepts no legal
liability whatsoever arising from

or connected to, the accuracy,
reliability, currency or completeness
of any material contained in this
publication. Information in this
publication is provided as general
information only and is not intended
as a substitute for advice from a
qualified professional.

The Department recommends
that users exercise care and use
their own skill and judgment

in using information from this
publication and that users carefully
evaluate the accuracy, currency,
completeness, and relevance of
such information. Users should
take steps to independently verify
the information in this publication
and, where appropriate, seek
prefessional advice.

The guidelines are subject to
change at any time at the sole
discretion of the Department,
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COUNCIL 24 AUGUST 2022

Department: Office of the Chief Executive

Submitted by: Manager Arts Culture & Library Services

Reference: ITEM COM16/22

Subject: TENTERFIELD PUBLIC LIBRARY BRANCH SERVICES -
UPDATE

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Community - Tenterfield Shire is a vibrant, inclusive, and safe
community where diverse backgrounds and cultures are respected
and celebrated.

CSP Strategy: Provide opportunities for residents to enjoy access to arts,
festivals, sporting activities, recreation, community and cultural
activities.

SUMMARY

This report is to provide further information and options for the provision of Tenterfield
Public Library services at Drake, Torrington and Urbenville villages.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:
That Council:

1. Implement a 12 month trial of a revised self-managed ‘Library
Resource Hub’ model for both Urbenville and Drake locations as
outlined in item (a) of this Report.

2. Permanent closure of the Torrington Library Branch which includes
the return of IT assets and cancellation of lease arrangements.
Torrington to retain any existing Library furniture for internal use.

3. Lateral transfer of the permanent part-time Library Officer position
(Torrington) to Tenterfield Public Library as detailed in item (b) of
this report.

4. Priority allocation of deleted Tenterfield Public Collection items to the
Drake, Torrington and Urbenville Progress Associations ongoing and
as part of the current collection management review.

5. Priority allocation to Drake, Torrington and Urbenville Progress
Associations of de-commissioned library furniture being replaced by
the Library refurbishment grant project.

6. Council Staff investigate future funding opportunities to establish a
mobile Library service to provide a range of services and programs to
the broader Tenterfield Shire villages in the future.

BACKGROUND
A report was submitted to Council at the 27 July Ordinary Council Meeting
recommending permanent closure of Library Branch Services at Torrington, Drake and
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Urbenville. Council requested deferral of making a decision to allow consultation with
the relative Progress Associations and community.

Feedback from both Drake and Urbenville was the request for Library services to be
maintained under a self-managed model. Torrington confirmed agreement for the
permanent closure of the Library branch. Progress Associations for each location Drake,
Torrington and Urbenville confirmed interest in receipt of deleted Library collection
items ongoing and option to acquire de-commissioned library furniture and equipment
as it becomes available.

REPORT:
In response to community feedback and operational capability of Tenterfield Shire
Council the following actions are proposed:

(a) Drake / Urbenville - Library Resource Hub
A 12 month trial of a ‘Library Resource Hub’ model be implemented at Drake and
Urbenville locations for the provision of self-managed Library Services to provide the
following services:

e On-site collection managed by Progress Association members with remote
support from Tenterfield Library staff (email or phone).

e On-site library collection items (500 items maximum) rotated on a quarterly
schedule with the main Tenterfield Public Library collection.

e Desktop PC with 1 x MS Office subscription; Multi-function printer for scanning
and printing with internet access if available on-site. This PC would also provide
access to the Libraries digital catalogue and database collection items.

e Self-check Library borrower/return digital kiosk.

e Collection/Drop-off point location for Home Library Services for Drake and
Urbenville Library Members (NEW - monthly service).

(b) Torrington
Permanent closure of the Torrington Library Branch with continued support through the
provision of priority access to deleted Library collection items ongoing and option to
acquire de-commissioned Library furniture and equipment as it becomes available.

Lateral transfer of the permanent part-time Library Officer position (Torrington) to
Tenterfield Public Library including re-distribution of the 0.06 FTE Urbenville resource.
This would allow provision of a dedicated 0.17 FTE (6 hours per week) to support staff
shortages at the main Library and support capability to extend the Home Library
services to Drake and Urbenville Library members via the ‘Library Resource Hub'.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:

1. Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
Councillor’s consulted with and received feedback from Drake, Torrington and
Urbenville Progress Associations and community.

2. Policy and Regulation
e Local Government Act 1993 and Local Government Regulations 2005
e Library Act 1939 and associated State Library Guidelines

3. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)
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A self-managed ‘Library Resource Hub’ model for Drake and Urbenville supports
the provision of the re-establishment and continuation of library services in
consideration of current reduced staffing levels.

New technology assets would need to be procured and would be funded through
the Library’s Annual Priority Grant funding from the State Library. There would
be no impact on Councils operational expenditure within the 2022 - 2023
Financial Year period. Estimated costs are outlined in the following table:

Item Estimated Expense
2 x new desktop PC's $2,800
2 x multi-function laser printers $1,000
2 x annual individual MS Office Subscriptions $260
2 x Self-service Kiosks (inc. Liberos kiosk $4,000
Application software)

Estimate Total $8,060

4. Asset Management (AMS)

Technical support for IT assets as required. New items are being procured to
minimise potential for any faults/issues and Council technical staffing support

commitment.

5. Workforce (WMS)
Nil.

6. Legal and Risk Management

Nil.

7. Performance Measures

The 12 month trial of the ‘Library Resource Hubs’ performance measures will be
assessed against overall borrower and asset use statistics in combination with
Council administration and expenditure commitment to manage the services. A
further repot will be presented to Council at the end of the 12 month trial period.

8. Project Management
Nil.

Daryl Buckingham
Chief Executive

Prepared by staff member:
Approved/Reviewed by Manager:
Department:

Attachments:

18 August 2022

Lee Mathers

Daryl Buckingham, Chief Executive
Office of the Chief Executive

There are no attachments for this report.
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Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Submitted by: Casuall Administration & Customer Service Assistant
Reference: ITEM GOV67/22

Subject: MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Leadership - LEAD 12 - We are a well engaged community that is
actively involved in decision making processes and informed about
services and activities.

CSP Strategy: Council’s decision making processes are open, accountable and
based on sound integrated planning.

CSP Delivery Promote and support community involvement in Council decision
Program making process.
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to provide a standing monthly report to the Ordinary
Meeting of Council that demonstrates staff accountabilities and actions taken against
Council’s 2022/2023 Operational Plan.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council receives and notes the status of the Monthly Operational Report
for July 2022.

Kylie Smith
Chief Corporate Officer

Prepared by staff member: Lee Sisson
Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Kylie Smith, Chief Corporate Officer
Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer
Attachments: 1 Monthly Operational Plan - July 112
2022 Pages
2 Organisation Chart 1 Page
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Monthly Operational Report

Tenterfield Shire Council July 2022
Council Meeting 24 August 2022
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Operating Expenditure Budget v's Operating Expenditure Actual YTD FY 22/23
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Operating Expenditure Budget v's Operating Expenditure Actual YTD FY 22/23
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Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

=gy p——

1. CIVIC OFFICE

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (6)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

CIVIC OFFICE

-

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

g~
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Tenterfield Shire Council Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Civic Office

Service Profile: Civic Office

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
2.1.3.1 Investigate, advocate for, and Chief Executive July-2022 this is ongoing as opportunity's In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
source funding to improve heavy vehicle arise we will apply and continue our ongoing Bt
access across the region. advocation for funding for road

improvements and upgrades
5.1.1.9 Influence and advocate support  Chief Executive July -2022 We are in constant discussions Not Started 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00 100.00 @
from Federal and State government in with key stakeholders. This includes recent —
relation to promotion of Tenterfieid discussions with elected member Janelle
community objectives. Saffin, in terms of funding opportunity's. We

are also applying for appropriate grants such

as the recent stronger country community

fund
5.1.1.10 Advocate to hand back Bruxner Chief Executive July-2022 This is ongoing we have summitted In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

Way and Mt Lindesay Road to State
Government.

CIVIC OFFICE

another application to hand Bruxner way
back to state government. We also
supported Kyogle shires application for the
return of Mt Lindsey road to state
government. This will be ongoing until we
complete the mission.

NELDS WORK
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Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target Status

100.00

5.1.1.11 Manage communication, media Manager

and information channels. Economic
Development &
Specia! Projects

June-2022 Media release issued Friday, July 01/07/22
29 with further information on Council’s
decision to apply for a Special Rate Variation

{SRV) for a proposed 43 per cent rise in rates

In Progress

30/06/23 8.00

NEEDS WORK

in 2023/24 and a further 43 per cent rise in
2024/25.

Council voted to start community
information sessions on an SRV representing
a cumulative rise of 104.49 per cent on
ordinary rates and it was vital Shire residents
understood why the increases were needed
and what services would suffer without
them.

The prolonged drought and bushfires,
COVID-19 and floods have all hit TSC's
finances, compounding the long-term impact
of cost-shifting from the State government
and a more than halving funding from
Canberra through the Federal Assistance
Grants (FAGs).

Video with the Mayor explaining the
situation and also speaking about the need
for residents to do the right thing with
recycle bins and not throw items into the
yellow tops that are not supposed to be
there.

5.1.1.12 Deliver councillor services. Chief Executive July-2022 This ongoing, the administration
has ramped up councilor briefings and
workshaops as well as communiques to keep

councilors fully informed on an ongoing basis

In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

NEIDS WoRK

— CIVIC OFFICE -
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Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
5.2.2.1 Advocate for health services Chief Executive July 2022- This is ongoing and there several In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
throughout the Region and ensure ongoing discussions in terms of new england s o
future government planning aligns with health and possible ways of improving their
community needs. services including de-amalgamation

BN o I ST NN
Y4 61
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1. Civic Office

Civic Office Operational Expenditure

Budget v's Actuals

400,000.00

350,000.00

300,000.00

250,000.00

200,000.00

150,000.00

100,000.00

50,000.00

N & @& A & & N ¢
¥ é’@og”@é‘oé@@‘\& & \!@\o*‘
o & &
¢§§9 & édp i &5
=@ YTD Budget ==Qw=YTD Actual
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent

Civic Office 355,339 2,844 0.80%
1. Operating Income 0 (73) 0.00%
2. Operating Expenditure 355,339 2,917 0.82%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Page 62



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022

Attachment 1
Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

2. ORGANISATION LEADERSHIP

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

75.00% (3)

NEEDS WORK

0.00% (0)

NO TARGET

ORGANISATION LEADERSHIP

|\

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Organisation Leadership

Service Profile: Organisation Leadership

Action Responsibility

5.1.2.4 Implement the long-term Chief Executive
financial strategy, aligning the Long-
Term Financial Plan with the Asset

Management Plan.

5.1.2.5 Apply for a Special Rate Chief Executive

Variation.

5.1.2.6 Report to council identifying Chief Executive
efficiency savings of 10-15% across the

budget, for the 2022/23 financial year.

— ORGANISATION LEADERSHIP
A .

—_—

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date

July-2022 Unfortunately councils revenue 30/06/23
has not kept pace with its service delivery
costs. This means that without an increase in
revenue, council can no longer afford its
current service levels. This has necessitated
the need for a special rate rise. As such
council has identified three long term
financial plan options. One is a rate rise
aligned with maintaining current services at
the same or near to same levels. The second
one is a lessor rate rise with a substantial
reduction in services unfortunately these will
mainly affect road maintenance and in some
cases severely. and the third option/plan is
for no rate rise, however this will mean a
severely reduced operation with substantial
service loss and little infrastructure
maintenance or replacement.

We will need to await the resuit of councils
SRV application before we will know which
long term financial plan is applicable.

In Progress 01/07/22

July-2022 The consultation stage has Not Started
commenced, all channels available for

information dissemination are being used

and the consultation will continue over the

next month and into September.

01/07/22 30/06/23

Complete has been reported to council as
directed

Completed 01/07/22 30/06/23

% Complete Target  Status

8.00 100.00

NEEDS WORK

0.00 100.00 @

WAEDS WORK

100.00

100.00 °

N TRACK

64



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022 Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
Tenterfield Shire Council Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
5.1.2.7 Provide Council a Review of Manager The Visitor Information Centre continues to  In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
operating plan for the Visitor Economic operate six-days-a-week with reduced .. 0
Information Centre. Development & opening hours on Saturdays - now closing

Special Projects 2:30pm.

Visitor Information Centre Update:

July visitors to visitor information centre =
1,362 (132% increase on July 2021 COVID
affected)

July visitors to Visit Tenterfield website =
3,551 (15.3% increase on July 2021)

42% of visitors from New South Wales, 33%
from Queensland and 13% from Victoria.
Tenterfield Visitor Information Centre has a
4.5 star review on Google (149 reviews) &
4.5 star review on TripAdvisor {107 reviews).
Met with Mark Greaves from The Tourism
Group regarding annual review and
accreditation for the Visitor Information
Centre. VIC remains a level 2 accredited
centre for 2022/23.

ORGANISATION LEADERSHIP
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2. Organisation Leadership

Organisation Leadership Operational

Expenditure Budget v's Actuals
1,200,000.00
1,000,000.00
£00,000.00
£00,000.00
400,000.00
200,000.00
\\ st S
,,Q’ 0@9 @@";}P Jﬁ f & ¥ S N
=P==YTD Budget ==O==YTD AcCtuals
22/23 22123 2223
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Organisation Leadership 970,404 57,754 5.95%
2. Operating Expenditure 970,404 57,754 5.95%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022 Page 66
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3. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (5)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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Service Profile: Community Development

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
1.1.1.1 Improve and maintain Economic Manager presented report to TSC Wed, 27  In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
communication methods in accordance Development & July recommending 3-month trial of i
with the Community Engagement Special Projects Facebook page for information/noticebhoard

Strategy. only — with no comments/discussion.

Recommendation was adopted by Council
with Facebook page going line Tuesday, 2
August - with first posting on Local
Government Week.

Manager working with CE to use all available
avenues to communicate Council activities -
using social media, local newspaper and
radio as well as Your Local News and direct
meetings with the public.

1.1.1.2 Provide opportunities for the Community No Committee meetings in July 2022 In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
community to participate in decision Development Wor-— 7
making via Council Committees. Officer

1.1.2.1 Implement wellbeing programs  Community Supporting Moombahlene with the In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
and activities in partnership with the Development organisation and grant application for —
Aboriginal Advisory Committee. Officer NAIDOC Week.

Contribute to NAIDOC week and develop
and implement Reconciliation Action

Plan (RAP).

1.1.3.1 Support the physical and mental Community Grant Application for "Spring Break Holiday  In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

health of the community, through Development Event 2022" Bl
wellbeing activities which improve Officer

community capacity and resilience. This
includes contributing and supporting
lacal events such as Youth Week.

1.2.3.1 Deliver and report to the OLG on  Community Raise community awareness of appropriate  In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
the Council's Disability inclusion Action  Development activities and services that promote inclusion il
Plan. Officer through 'Tenterfield in Touch’.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
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3. Community Development

Community Development Community Development
Operational Income Budget v's Actuals Operational Expenditure Budget v's Actual
120,000.00
7,000.00 100,000.00
6,000.00 80,000.00
5,000.00
4,000.00 60,000.00
3,000.00 40,000.00
2,000.00
3 00000 20,000.00
PFSFA LSS S P O
v!’:&s»&é,pgf\'o@f)“@ \"i@e“o&@?of\‘“&“‘
= YTD Budget ==Om=YTD Actuals w=DenYTD Budget e=OesYTD Actuals
22123 2223 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Community Development 94,298 4,992 5.29%
1. Operating Income (6,444) 0 0.00%
2. Operating Expenditure 100,742 4,992 4.96%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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4. ECONOMIC GROWTH & TOURISM

ACTION STATUS ACTION PERFORMANCE

ON TRACK

Actions reported on
NEEDS WORK

At least 80% of action target achieved 0

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved 0

100.00% (3) Less than 50% of action target achieved 0

NO TARGET Actions with no target set 3

ECONOMIC GROWTH & TOURISM
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Economic Growth & Tourism

Service Profile: Economic Growth & Tourism

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
2.1.1.1 Develop and impiement the Manager DRAFT document. Ongoing 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00 @
Economic Development Strategy and Economic

No TAAGEY
Tourism Development Strategy, which  Development & Real estate market strong

also aligns with the Regional Economic  Special Projects Despite interest rate hikes, the local housing

Development Strategy (REDS). market remains strong.
According to realestate.com.au the median
house sale price, based on 116 sales in past
12 months, is now $360K — up 24.1% over
the past year and up $10K in the past month
(June to July 2022).
Tenterfield has seen annual compound
growth of 24.1% for houses over the past
five years.
Median rent for a 3-bedroom house is $365
per week - up 4.3% in the past year - based
on 49 rental listings in the past 12 months.
There isn’t enough rental listings data to
provide a median price for units in
Tenterfield.
There are no 2-bedrooms home listed.
Market for grazing properties remains very
strong with very few properties listed $8000
to $10,000/ha.

Staff and Legume Progress Association
conducted a check locations for the Northern
Border Trail signs.

The Progress Association has signed the
Grant Agreement for funding of the project
and will now decide on signs.

On-line meeting with proponent of Angry
Bulls Mountain Bike project and government
officers from Regional Development.

ECONOMIC GROWTH & TOURISM
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A

ECONOMIC GROWTH & TOURISM

Meeting discussed business case, which has
been prepared for the project, but needs
some supplementary work, including
environmental clearances. The finished
business case would then be submitted for
government funding.

Following TSC's resolution to sell surplus land
at Sugarbag Road Lot 26 DP 735028 five local
real estate agents were emailed seeking EOls
to sell and submit proposals, including fees
and market appraisal. Four agents indicated
they were interested and following appraisal
of commission and marketing costs, two
agents have been contracted (non-exclusive)
to proceed with selling.

Repairs to front of VIC

Manager and helpful volunteer moved and
re-fixed the large regional map at the front
of the Visitors” information Centre to cover
the window hole at the front of the building.
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Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status Start Date  End Date % Complete  Target Status
2.1.1.2 Deliver and mange Destination = Manager Marketing Update: Ongoing 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00
Marketing Plan and marketing Economic Staff attended New England High Country P
campaigns and activities. Development & meeting in Inverell. Ongoing marketing

Special Projects activity through the regional group includes:
= Updating the New England High Country
Visitors Guide map & brochure
* Granite Belt Magazine Advertisement
(Spring 2022)

* Australian Traveller Campaign in market
May, June & July 2022 - including content
articles (4,000 views); on-site deal clicks;
display ads (83,574 impressions); EDM
Newsletters (43,317 opens); Facebook posts
(37,513 reach).

Tenterfield Marketing & Project Update:

* Granite Belt Magazine Advertisement
(Spring 2022)

* Brief seeking quotes for Mountain Biking
mapping and content creation for key routes
distributed to local contacts.

= Shire wide photography project — finalising
shat list before recommencing shoots in
Spring.

Ongoing marketing: regular website and
events updates on Visit Tenterfie!d, New
England High Country & Destination NSW
websites; regular social media posts;
communicating with new and existing
tourism businesses and events,

Social Media stats:

Facebook Reach: 32,448 from 23 Facebook
posts.

Facebook Page Likes: 6,660 (+68 new)
Instagram Reach: 6,911 from 21 Instagram
posts & 8 stories

Instagram Followers: 2,767 (+46 new)

5.2.3.1 Support future proposals for Manager met with NBN's regional manager  Ongoing 0.00

ECONOMIC GROWTH & TOURISM
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improved telecommunications

infrastructure.

A\_—“—v-ll----l‘l ——

Manager Economic
Development &
Special Projects

ECONOMIC GROWTH & TOURISM

i ih=lls )y o el i iae=l & sCARE

for update on NBN availability around
Tenterfield.

Some businesses on the highest speed
available in regional Aust.

For Sky Muster Plus, from July 1, 2022
enhancements, video streaming and VPN use
use no longer counts towards monthly data
allowance between 12am midnight and 4pm.
Previously all VPN and video streaming
counted towards a person’'s monthly data
allowance, regardless of the time of day.

This means between the hours of 4pm and
12 am midnight, only video streaming and
VPN use will count towards a user’s monthly
data allowance. Activities like online
shopping, emails, and internet banking,
audio streaming, video calling, and Wi-Fi
calling will continue not to count towards a
user’s monthly data allowance for the full 24
hours.

This is a major improvement for customers
and responds to their calls for more data.
The improvements will also come at no extra
wholesale cost. New and existing customers
can ask about upgrading to Sky Muster Plus
through their preferred internet provider.
David Crough claims 4220 premises/homes
in the Tenterfield Shire have access to NBN -
including fibre, wi-fi and satellite.

The main part of Rouse St has access to
Business Grade Service NBN 10G down and
10G up and currently four Enterprise Grade
Service NBN connections are in use in Rouse
St - a service as good as any in Sydney
(apparently) and running on special fibre for
high-network reliability.

Many parts of the town have fibre to the
kerb, but homes and businesses have the
option to sign-up for fibre to the premises.
For those not after superfast, the main part
of town is serviced by fixed wireless.

ALy mm ) -

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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4. Economic Growth and Tourism

Economic Growth & Tourism Operational
Income Budget v's Actual

Economic Growth & Tourism Operational

Expenditure Budget v's Actual

120,000.00 700,000.00
100,000.00 600,000.00
s e
i 300,000.00
A0 dbol0 200,000.00
20,000.00 '_*_‘__._.__.——.—._H_'_. 100,000.00
S & 'o“ @ & ¢’ & S *o‘" j‘
°“? & &L s “" & @ &
w=@e=YTD Budget  ==@e=YTD Actual o=@u YTD Budget ==De==YTD Actual
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Economic Growth and Tourism 600,632 (1,083,772) -180.44%
1. Operating Income (26,713) (113,842) 426.17%
2. Operating Expenditure 620,314 20,028 3.23%
3. Capital Income 0 (994,593) 0.00%
4. Capital Expenditure 0 4,041 0.00%
4235004. PSLP - Tenterfield Youth Precinct & Mountain Bike Trailhead 0 4,041 0.00%
6. Liabilities 7,031 594 8.45%

FHSS
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5. THEATRE & MUSEUM COMPLEX

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

V4

THEATRE & MUSEUM COMPLEX

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Theatre & Museum Complex

Service Profile: Theatre & Museum Complex

Action Responsibility Progress Comment
1.1.3.4 Develop and proactively manage Manager Arts, The cinema program showcased 31
and deliver cinema program, theatre Culture and screenings during the July reporting period

education and youth related programs.  Library Services with general admission of 786 patrons. This
reporting period also included the school
holiday special cinema programming for
audiences including Pinocchio: A true story,
Jurassic World and Lightyear.

The adult movie 'Elvis' attracted the highest
box-office takings for July including demand
for a special screening for Tenterfield Age
Care Centre and an extra general admission
session. Live events included The Bush,
Broadway and Broken Hearts followed by
Winter School music program. The Bush,
Broadway and Broken Hearts event was
highly successful generating box office ticket
sales of $5400 for the live concert and
general admission of 220. Winter school
music program for entire week attracted
students to attend music tutorials during the
day at theatre hall and external bookings for
live performances by the Cuskelly College of
Music attracting approximately 400

attendees.
1.1.3.5 Manage and operate the Sir Manager Arts, As previously reported a Museum audit is in
Henry Parkes Memorial School of Arts Culture and progress in liaison with the National Trust
(Cinema, Theatre, and Museum) in Library Services (NSW) and the Independent Museum
partnership with the National Trust of Advisor program funded through Museums
Australia. and Galleries NSW. Any reporting or progress

updates are being maintained with the
National Trust throughout the process as

required.

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22  30/06/23 100.00 100.00 °

ON TRACX

01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

NETOS WORK

— THEATRE & MUSEUM COMPLEX
A = 77
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Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status Start Date  End Date % Complete Target Status
1.2.4.1 Provide volunteer training and ~ Manager Arts, The SoA Volunteer program provide front-of- Ongoing 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00
upskilling in a safe and engaging work  Culture and house support and services for the Museum, ool
environment. Library Services Theatre and Cinema. SoA staff provide

ongoing mentoring and on-the-job training
for the SoA volunteer program.

THEATRE & MUSEUM COMPLEX
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5. Theatre and Museum Complex

Theatre & Museum Complex
Operating Income Budget v's Actual

Theatre & Museum Complex
Operating Expenditure Budget v's Actual

ﬁé&f' & & & ¢

180,000.00 350,000.00
160,000.00 300,000.00
o006 250,000.00
100,000.00 200,000.00
80,000.00 150,000.00
60,000.00
40,0000 100,000.00
20,!1)000 50,000.00
N G‘:‘ & 6&\ N SR R S R R YR N & &
3 & W W q"’ o
¥ '@@ 3 & \‘5 &
& F of & T eP@
w=Bun YTD Budget  ==Ow=YTD Actuals === \TD Butiget  ==O==YTD Actuals
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Theatre & Museum Complex 220,190 (1,073) -0.49%
1. Operating Income (168,316) (24,443) 14.52%
2. Operating Expenditure 294,365 23,370 7.94%
4. Capital Expenditure 94,141 0 0.00%
5005508. School of Arts - Replace/Repair Carpet. Resand & Reseal Floors (SRV) 94,141 0 0.00%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Page 79



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022 Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

6. LIBRARY SERVICES

ACTION STATUS ACTION PERFORMANCE

50.00% (1) Tl

ON TRACK

X

50.00% (1) >
L A Actions reported on 2

NEEDS WORK -
3 ] At least 80% of action target achieved 1

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved 0

0.00% (0) a— " Less than 50% of action target achieved 1

NO TARGET y Actions with no target set 0

_ LIBRARY SERVICES on
L o 80
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Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

provided an activity meeting space for The
Benevolent Society youth program
participants to socialise, borrow collection
items and utilise the Library computers.

A total of 575 visitors attended the library to
access Library resources and services
including 180 users utilising Library

The Library has been successful for State
Library Funding to run a series of 25
workshops over the next financial year
period. Workshop program schedule is being
finalised and due to commence early
October. Commencement date has been
moved back from September to October due
to confirmation of funding only just received
and to allow for appropriate lead time to
plan and promote the workshops.

Service Profile: Library Services

Action Responsibility Progress Comment

1.1.3.2 Deliver technology and resources Manager Arts, During the July reporting period the Library

to individuals and small groups via Culture and provided weekly Storytime attracting 15

library services. Library Services parents and children. The Library also
computers.

1.1.3.3 Manage all corporate art, Manager Arts, A Museum Audit is in progress. As part of

artefacts, honour boards and Culture and this audit actions completed to date include

memorabilia {including audit and Library Services an audit of National Trust collection items

security). against the latest Catalogue register

provided by the National Trust. An audit of
the Centenary Cottage, Indigenous Artefacts
and Individual collection items is in currently

in progress.

Business Unit: Library Services

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22  30/06/23 800 100.00 @
NEEDE wons
01/07/22  30/06/23 100.00  100.00 o
ON TRACE

o LIBRARY SERVICES I
A - : ____FY
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6. Library Services

Library Services Operational Expenditure

Budget v's Actual
600,000.00
500,000.00
400,000.00
300,000.00
200,000.00
100,000.00
N
S & &“‘ «\"'} SFSE& L
&
=@==YTD Budget ==Q==YTD Actuals
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Library Services 482,542|  (174,757) -36.22%
1. Operating Income (70,139) (840) 1.20%
2. Operating Expenditure 545,681 22,430 4.11%
3. Capital Income (19,329) (196,886) 1018.60%
4. Capital Expenditure 19,329 0 0.00%
5000524. Local Priority Grant 2022/23 19,329 0 0.00%
6. Liabilities 7,000 539 7.70%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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7. WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

W

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

NEEDS WORK

100.00% (5)

NO TARGET

ORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Workforce Development

Service Profile: Workforce Development

Action Responsibility

5.1.1.4 Develop, mange and deliver the Manager HR &
Workforce Management Strategy. Workforce
Development

Progress Comment

The current recruitment moratorium and
financial constraints has initiated and
internal review of the current secondments,

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00

No TARGET

higher duties and position description drifts.
This workforce review has led to lateral
transfers, internal positional advertisements
and positional description analysis to
increase operational efficiencies, provide job
clarity, boost moral and ensure compliance
with applicable industrial instruments.
Grant funding has been secured for a
traineeship and a funding application has
been made to extend the Community
Recover Officer position.

Council continues to provide an on site
Employee Assistance Program, independent
counselling and advice services. July
percentage program utilisation = 9.09% of
the Workforce

Flexible work arrangement requests have
been received, reviewed and processed
whilst remaining mindful of financial
constraints, community service level
commitments and expectations.

— WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT —
A — 84
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Action Responsibility Progress Comment

5.1.1.5 Facilitate worker health and Manager HR & The health, wellbeing and moral of Staff has
wellbeing consuitation communication, Workforce

and participation processes. Development of the current environment leading to an

increase in the utilisation of Councils
Employee Assistance Program (EAP) for July.
Council is taking all reasonably practicable
measures to mitigate this uncertainty by
providing open communication, positional
clarity and organisational support.

Six (6) WHS toolbox talks, seven (7) drug and
alcohol tests, five (5) audits, four (4) site
inspections and one (1) employee induction

been negatively impacted by the uncertainty

conducted in July.

The State Cover Mutual WHS audit was
completed this month. This WHS Audit
provides Council with valuable information
regarding our WHS performance, including
benchmarking against our previous years
performance and against our peers.
Distribution of the COVID PPE is 80%
complete and has been well received by
business's, hospitals, nursing homes,
sporting groups and volunteer emergency

services.
5.1.1.6 Develop, mange and deliver Manager HR & Certificate IV in civil construction underway. Ongoing
Employer the skills targeted training Workforce Leadership program underway with selected
plans. Development staff to encourage emerging leaders and
bolster succession planning.
5.1.1.7 Develop, mange and deliver Manager HR & Staff annual perfarmance appraisals have
Employer of Choice recruitment and Workforce been released for the respective Managers
retention services. Development to discuss and consult with their line reports.

The internal review and action on long term
secondments, higher duties and position
description drifts triggered by the financial
constraints will improve moral by solidifying
status, ensuring clarity, developing
autonomy and providing organisation

fairness.

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00

No TARGET
01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00

No TARGET
01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00

Ne TARGET

— WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
A
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Action Responsibility

5.1.1.8 Manage and report on Council's Manager HR &
Enterprise Risk Management Framework Workforce
and Risk Register. Development

Progress Comment Action Status  StartDate  End Date

Council Risk Management Policy and
subsequent Risk Appetite Statement have
been adopted.

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
{ARIC) has been provided with applicable
Risk Management report.

Counci! Enterprise Risk Management
Register has been updated reflecting system
maturity and adoption of the Risk Appetite
Statement.

State Wide Mutual"s Continuous
Improvement Pathway (CIP) program based
on the principles contained in AS/NZS
15031000:2009 for the management of risk
has begun this month.

Due to storm, flood, fire, accident and
tempest damage Council has been successful
in claiming approximately $250,000.00
against the associated policies,

Ongoing 01/07/22  30/06/23

% Complete

Target

0.00

Status

®

No TARGET

— WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT
AR
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7. Workforce Development
Workforce Development Operational Income Workforce Development Operational
Budget v's Actual Expenditure Budget v's Actual
200,000.00 1,200,000
1,000,000
150,000.00 800,000
100,000.00 600,000
400,000
50,000.00 200,000
S0 S F S & @&
-50.000.00@&.4&0‘69@(9 S © ¥ @ & féo\)@f“é&vﬁés&
v-"@, o‘”ep@o_ga x'bﬁe?& ‘“"esfoé‘\afoé ¥
=0eeYTD Buciget ==O==YTD Actuals e YTD Actual  ==@e==YTD Budget
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Workforce Development 931,385 115,389 12.39%
1. Operating Income (164,190) 35,381 -21.55%
2. Operating Expenditure 1,095,575 80,009 7.30%
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Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

8. EMERGENCY SERVICES

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

— EMERGENCY SERVICES

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

g~
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ACTION SUMMARY

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

Business Unit: Emergency Services

Service Profile: Emergency Services

Action Responsibility Progress Comment

3.1.6.1 Develop, manage and deliver Manager HR & Local Emergency Management Committee
Emergency Management functions and  Workforce (LEMC) meetings working effectively.
facilities. Development Now that the Mingoola RFS Shed is complete

council has made the applicable
reimbursement claim against the RFS project

fund.

Council has made application to NSW
Resilience for the 2022 storm and flood
recovery funding to extend the Community
Recover Officer position for another 12
months.

Council’s organisational COVID control
measures have been reviewed in light of the
July positive cases spike leading to additional
control measure implementation.

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

WEEDS WORK

— EMERGENCY SERVICES —
A —89
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8. Emergency Services

Emergency Services Operational Income Emergency Services Operational Expenditure
Budget v's Actual Budget v's Actual

160,000.00 800,000.00

140,000.00 700,000.00

120,000.00 600,000.00

100,000.00 500,000.00

80,000.00 400,000.00

60,000.00 300,000.00

40,000.00 200,000.00

20,000.00 100,000.00

; i N
S PSS S & & SO S R
v-*qxo 6‘°°é’§"§’i§@ P T T
=Ou=YTD Budget  ==OmeYTD Actual w=@e=YTD Budget  ==Qm=YTD Actual
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent

Emergency Services 592,620 (134,473) -22.69%

1. Operating Income (138,210) (138,165) 99.97%

2. Operating Expenditure 730,830 3,692 0.51%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022 Page 90
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9. FINANCE & TECHNOLOGY

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (4)

NEEDS WORK

0.00% (0)

NO TARGET

— FINAN

CE & TECHNOLOGY

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Finance & Technology

Service Profile: Finance & Technology

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

5.1.2.1 Manage and deliver finance Manager Council continues to seek to provide In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @

services. Finance and affordable services and delivery whilst o
Technology ensuring finances are operated effectively.

As Council is undergoing a proposed special
rate variation for FY 23/24 and FY24/25 to
increase its own source operating revenue
which will result in determination of services
availability across the shire.

5.1.2.2 Manage and report on Council's Manager Council Long Term Financial Plan has been In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @

Long-Term Financial Plan, and facilitate Finance and updated and presented to Council as part of

and support internal and external audits. Technology the Integrated Planning and Reporting
documents. The plan is subject to change
depending on the outcome of the Council's
view on Proposed Special Rate Variation and
subsequent acceptance by IPART.
Council has received its Interim Audit
Management Letter - No New Issues were
raised by the Auditor.
Council is in the process of completing its
Draft Financial Statements for Financial Year
2021-22 with Audit commencing in
September 2022.

5.1.2.3 Manage investments - Plan Manager Investments are managed within council's In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
develop and manage Council's Finance and Investment Policy guidelines. Investments
investment portfalio. Technology are reported to Council every month as part

of the Finance and Accounts report, with the

latest update being provided for July 2022.

Councils interest on investments has been

positive since the incremental increase in

interest rates over the last couple of months.

Council invests accordingly to its Investment

Policy.

— FINANCE & TECHNOLOGY .
Al — — 2

= = - - 2
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Action Responsibility

5.1.4.1 Develop, manage and deliver Manager

Council's Technology Strategic Plan. Finance and
Technology

Progress Comment

Work is continuing in the development of IT
Strategic Plan and additional policies are in

Start Date

01/07/22

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

End Date % Complete Target Status

30/06/23 8.00 100.00

NEEDS WORK

A

the process of being developed to comply
with relevant legislative requirements. Asset
Management System is a Work in Process
and is expected to be completed by
December 2022. Greenlight interface portal
which links Council to NSW Department of
Planning has been successfully incorporated
and relevant staff training has been
completed.

FINANCE & TECHNOLOGY
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9. Finance and Technology

Finance & Technology Operational Income

Finance & Technology Operational Expenditure
Budget v's Actual

“f #fﬁ\f S

Budget v's Actual
100000000 70000000
8,000,000.00 600,000.00
SOmEO0 e gt—e—e— 4000000
A 20000000
e 10000000 gt
*‘é’.f&&“‘e“’é 8 A A
=8==\TD Butgets ==Q==YTD Actuals == YTD Budget
2223 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Finance & Technology (7,377,087)| (4,676,778) 63.40%

1. Operating Income (8,381,449)| (4,739,797) 56.55%

2. Operating Expenditure 701,069 60,073 8.57%

4. Capital Expenditure 225,000 188 0.08%
1810501. Computer Equipment - Finance 75,000 0 0.00%
1810508. Capitalised Software 150,000 188 0.13%

6. Liabilities 78,293 2,758 3.52%

0= YTD Actual
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10. CORPORATE & GOVERNANCE

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

CORPORATE & GOVERNANCE

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actians reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Corporate & Governance

Service Profile: Corporate & Governance

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
5.1.1.1 Develop, manage and deliver Manager Compliments for July 2022 - 7 In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
Customer Services, in accordance with ~ Customer Service, Complaints for July 2022 - 1 I o8
the Customer Service Charter. Governance & Abusive customers for July 2022 - 2
Records Customer Service General Enquiries for July
2022 - 130

Inbound calls for July 2022 - 1,825

Updated Customer Service Charter placed on
public exhibition for community comment
following Council meeting of 27 July 2022.

Reduced Customer Service resources
continue to impact service delivery.
Manager, Casual Governance Officer and
Records Management staff have continued
to assist with answering phone calls and
providing front counter support where
appropriate, however, this has then
impacted carrying out their own role specific
duties and tasks.

5.1.1.2 Develop, manage and deliver Manager Public Interest Disclosure Report for January In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
Governance Services, in accordance with Customer Service, to June 2022 to be submitted to NSW s
the OLG Compliance Guide, IP&R Governance & Ombudsman's Office by 12 August 2022.

Framework and Reporting including the Records

Monthly Operational Report, GIPA and Council policies are being reviewed and

PIDS and facilitate and support the ARIC. updated by all service areas in preparation

for requirement to have Council readopt all
policies within 12 months of the new Council
term. Policies will be submitted to Council
initially for updates to be adopted, then a
group report will be submitted to Council
before January 2023 for readoption as a
whole.

CORPORATE & GOVERNANCE
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A

Action

5.1.1.3 Develop, manage and deliver

Records Management Services, in
accordance with legislation.

5.2.1.1 Deliver independent bi-annual

Customer Satisfaction survey.

Responsibility

Manager
Customer Service,
Governance &
Records

Manager
Customer Service,
Governance &
Records

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date

Records staff have commenced transfers of 01/07/22 30/06/23
financial and rates records due for

destruction from the Records holding area in

the Depot Stores building across town to

Records House in Manners Street. Once all

records for destruction are removed,

financial and rates records from last financial

year will be moved to Records House and the

Depot Stores building for statutory retention,

being seven years.

In Progress

Records staff have scoped out technical
requirements to recommence digitisation
program tasks at Records House. The
recommencement of activities at Records
House requires a scanner and two computers
to be set up there again, and have staff able
to work there at least three afternoons per
week. This will allow records to be held
electronically and further reduce the paper
holding of Council.

Taverner Research Group has been engaged 01/07/22
to undertake the Community Satisfaction

Survey 2022. Survey format and questions

were developed in July 2022, with 8 August

2022 confirmed as the commencement date

for 300 residents to be surveyed.

In Progress 30/06/23

% Complete

8.00

33.00

Target

100.00

100.00

Status

MAEDE WORK

NEEDS WORK

: CORPORATE & GOVERNANCE

-
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10. Corporate and Governance

900,000.00
800,000.00
700,000.00
600,000.00
500,000.00
400,000.00
300,000.00
200,000.00
100,000.00

Corporate & Governance Operational
Expenditure Budget v's Actual

PE PG IPE S
Ys&&@o&e& & ° & ¥

~=Bue\TD Budget ==@w==YTD Actual
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Corporate and Governance 810,470 35,335 4.36%
1. Operating Income (1,616) (107) 6.59%
2. Operating Expenditure 812,086 35,442 4.36%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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11. ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Environmental Management

Service Profile: Environmental Management

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
3.1.2.1 Enforce Companion Animals, Manager Open 24 Feral cats were caught and euthanised Not Started 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00 100.00 @
Illegal Dumping and Parking Control Space, from a property in Jennings. i
regulations. Regulatory & 2 dogs were seized and later, owner

Utilities contacted and returned.

Council received a complaint from a traveler
involved in a dog attack. Unable to contact
the traveler for further investigation.
Council currently has no Ranger to enforce
parking regulations or attend to other
miscellaneous complaints.

One abandon vehicle has been impounded
and destroyed.

No illegal dumping was reported for July.
Calls were received for straying livestock on

public roads.
3.1.2.2 Manage and deliver the Weeds = Manager Open Weed Officer Report - July Ongoing 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00
Management Program, Council's Weeds Space, Rt
Action Plan and regional weeds Regulatory & Black Knapweed - inspections and
management plans. Utilities treatments along Bellevue and Aldershot

Rds., and on private property as required.

Tropical Soda Apple - treatments in the
Urbenville area as part of the Bushfire
Recovery Grant.

Mother Of Millions - Mt Lindsey Highway at
Legume and Maryland.

Private Property Inspections - undertaken
around the Beaury Creek, Grahams Creek
and Woodenbong areas, these are
incomplete and will lead into August.

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT
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ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

High Risk Pathways - Inspections done along
the New England Highway from Deepwater
to Wallangarra, from Tenterfield to Tabulam
along the Bruxner Highway, Tenterfield to
the Beardy River along the Bruxner way,
Tenterfield to Woodenbong along the Mt
Lindsey Highway and Tooloom rd. No new
incursions found.

High Risk Waterway Inspections - Inspections
done in areas of the Dumaresq River for
Water Weeds. No new incursions found.

Border Inspections - Inspections done at

Cullendore, rd. Killarney rd. Head gate rd.
and White Swamp rd. No new incursions

found.

Meetings - Tropical Soda Apple Task force
Meeting at Coffs Harbour.

Fireweed Concern

At a the last council meeting, the issue of
Fireweed in the Tenterfield Shire was raised.
In the Regional Strategic Weed Management
Plan that was developed with input from
each Shire in the Northern Tablelands and
the Local Land Services, Fireweed is not
classified as a priority weed within the
Northern Tablelands and sits as a additiona!
species of concern with a General Biosecurity
Duty.

Each weed is is put through the weeds risk
assessment process far inclusion in the plan.
To ensure that limited resources are used to
best effect at a regional level, the priority
weed listing is based on an assessment not
just on the weed risk, but the feasibility of
coordinated control.

There are a number of weeds assessed as
having a high or very high weed risk, but the
feasibility of coordinated control in the
region is considered negligible or low. as a
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result weeds such as fireweed, African love
grass, Coolatai grass and Whiskey grass have
not been considered a priority in the
Northern Tablelands. These weeds are still
subject to the General Biosecurity Duty but
are more likely to be controlled by land
managers as a Personnel or Private benefit.
To put it in perspective, if fireweed control
was to be enforced on land managers, the
cost to them would be enormous and 85% of
land managers within the Tenterfield shire
would be receiving compliance letters for
control. As previously stated, control comes
back to the personnel and private benefit for
the land manager.

3.1.2.3 Notices and Orders to be issued Manager Open One notice was issued for July in relation to
or served where necessary as per the Space, an overgrown hlock. Due to the work load
Local Gavernment Act, EPA Act and Regulatory & and no Ranger the notice hasn't been
POEO Act and Associated Regulations.  Utilities followed up.

01/07/22  30/06/23 0.00 100.00 @

NEEDS WOAR

i ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT -
Al 2
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11. Environmental Management

Environmental Management Operational
Income Budget v's Actual

Environmental Management Operational
Expenditure Budget v's Actual

100,000.00

350,000.00
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20,000.00 50,000.00
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=D YTD Budget wsOm=YTD Actual w=@ue YTD Buclget ==@m=YTD Actuals
22/23 22/23 22123
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Environmental Management 246,629 11,386 4.62%
1. Operating Income (85,886) (218) 0.25%
2. Operating Expenditure 332,515 11,604 3.49%
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12. LIVESTOCK SALEYARDS

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)

NEEDS WORK

0.00% (0)

NO TARGET

LIVESTOCK SALEYARDS

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Livestock Saleyards

Service Profile: Livestock Saleyards

Action Responsibility

2.1.2.1 Manage and deliver commercial
Saleyards Services.

Manager Open
Space,
Regulatory &
Utilities

— LIVESTOCK SALEYARDS
ANES - - ' -

Progress Comment Action Status  StartDate  End Date

July 2022 Prime Cattle
$331,795.22
Private Weighing 53 Head
$108,205.84
Total
$440,001.06

215 Head In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23

268 Head

Financial Year 2021/2022 10,963 Head
$20,493,246.30

Financial Year 2020/2021 8,963 Head
$14,127,684.48

Financial Year 2019/2020 9,247 Head $
8,441,858.64

Financial Year 2018/2019 21,656 Head $
12,517,711.39

Obtaining quotes for the double height
loading ramp.

Truckwash no longer

Biggest risk being further reduction in
numbers as to whether the saleyards will
remain viable.

Increase in the throughput of 2000 head
from last financial year.

Recent Saleyard meeting discussion on foot
and mouth disease.

Saleyard induction on the website, with the
public completing the induction process.

% Complete Target  Status

8.00 100.00

NEEDS WORK

- - =
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12. Livestock Saleyards

Livestock Saleyards Operational iIncome

Livestock Saleyards Operational Expenditure
Budgetv's Actual
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=== YTD Budget =Qm=YTD Actual
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent

Livestock Saleyards 81,053 (11,993) -14.80%

1. Operating Income (78,188) (15,337) 19.62%

2. Operating Expenditure 159,241 3,344 210%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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13. PLANNING & REGULATION

ACTION STATUS ACTION PERFORMANCE

ON TRACK

m Actions reported on 3

NEEDS WORK

At least 80% of action target achieved 0

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved 0

66.67% (2) Less than 50% of action target achieved 1
NO TARGET Actions with no target set 2

— PLANNING & REGULATION
A - 07

— - =
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Planning & Regulation

Service Profile: Planning & Regulation

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
3.1.1.1 Monitor and deliver the Manager July- All applications assessed in accordance Ongoing 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00
Tenterfield Local Environmental Plan Planning & with relevant regulatory and legislative ool
2013 and Development Control Plan Development requirements.
2014 (as amended). Services
3.1.1.2 Manage and deliver heritage Manager July - Local Heritage Places Fund applications In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
advisory services. Planning & closed end of July with eight (8) applications PN R
Development received. Assessment of applications
Services underway for presentation to Heritage

Advisory Committee on 19 August and
endorsement at Council's Ordinary Meeting

of 24 August 2022.
I 3.1.1.3 Manage and deliver Manager July - current staffing levels of 2 professional Ongoing 01/07/22 30/06/23 0.00
development, building and construction Planning & officers and 1 part time administration g
' regulatory services. Development officer mean processing times for all
Services functions of the department are extended

including planning certificates, property &
building enquiries, dwelling permissibility
searches, processing of DA's, CC's, CDC's, On
Site Sewage Management applications,
Building Certificates. Focus is directed to
applications lodged and paid for by
customers. Regulatory actions/complaints
being considered only as urgent if there is a
likelihood of environmental harm or public
health issues due to limited staff availability
and focus on delivering development and
construction applications.

PLANNING & REGULATION
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Applications Lodged July 2022

| 2022.090 LORENTZEN Annette Kim’s Way, Drake Dwelling
| 2022.051 TENTERFIELD SURVEYS (Anjerin Mole Station Road, Woodside 3 Lot Boundary Adjustment
Genetic Resources Pty Ltd)
2022.092 WILLMANN Craig Kia Ora Road, Maryland Dwelling
2022.093 CHURCHILL Matthew Hayden Street, Drake Dwelling
2022.094 BUCKMAN Edward 90A Bulwer Street, Tenterfield Dwelling
2022.095 BRERETON Stephen Leslie Creek Road, Drake Dwelling
2022.096 BERRY Denise Maryland Station Road, Maryland Dwelling
2022.097 HOLLEY Bradley & Karen 317 Schroders Road, Tenterfield Alterations & Additions, Swimming Pool, Fence &
Deck

| DALEY Paul

Applications Determined July 2022

elling

202.073 52 Sunnsieal Road, entl

2020.075 ' GIAMMICHELE Karyn 2226 Billirimba Road, Tenterfield Alterations & Additions to Existing Dwelling
| 2022.078 WRIGHT (Goodwin) 165 Washpool Creek Road, Tenterfield Deck & Pool
72022.079 Tenterfield Surveys (Venes) Duncan Street, Tenterfield Two (2) Lot Urban Subdivision

2022.085 ZIEBELL Timothy 57A Haddocks Road, Tenterfield Dwelling & Shed
2022.087 COWIN Steven 155 Manners Street, Tenterfield Shed

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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| 2022.089 | SMITH Brian 129 Wood Street, Tenterfield Shed
2022.092 WILLMANN Craig Kia Ora Road, Maryland Dwelling
| 2022.096 BERRY Denise Maryland Station Road, Maryland Dwelling
2022.049 SOER Richard & Sharon (George 130 High Street, Tenterfield Alteration/Extension to Existing Hotel
Inn Custodian Pty Ltd)
2021.141/1 SERGEANT Ray Riley Street, Tenterfield Subdivision — Modification
2022.024/1 ROBERTS James 15 Melaleuca Circuit, Tenterfield Industrial Shed - Madification

Applications Outstanding - July 2022

2018.072 Tenterfield Shire Council 66-80 Boundary Road, Truck Wash Facility . . ;
Information Required from Applicant
Tenterfield
Tourist & Visitor
2015,085 RAWNSLEY Derek & 632 Sugarbag Road, Accommodation Insufficient Information provided to complete
' PAINE Janine Drake (Backpackers assessment
Accommodation)
2019.104 Wilshire & Co 1-9 Manners Street, New Shed & Insufficient Information provided to complete
; - - i i
Superannuation Fund Tenterfield Extension to Existing assessment P P
(Todd Wilshire) Shed (Awning)
2020.033 MOSER Eric (Marian 332B Mount Lindesay Manufactured Information Required from Applicant
Hansson) Road, Tenterfield Building equire pplican
2021.012 CORBETT Arran Bluff River Road, Primitive Camp Insufficient Information provided to complete
Tenterfield Ground assessment
2021.080 Cracker Quarry & Ag - 98 Pyes Creek Road, Storage premises, ) )
Supplies Pty Ltd Bolivia distribution centre | Information Required from Applicant
and industrial
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[ activity - including
‘ stockpiling,
processing &
distribution of
quarry products,
weighing, dispatch,
maintenance &
repair of equipment,
administration
building & amenities
2021.153 Stephen P McElroy & 7841 Bruxner Highway, | Tourist & Visitor Insufficient Information provided to complete
Associates (Burtenshaw) Drake Accommodation assessment
2021.158 SACCON Giana 49 Duncan Street, Dual Occupancy,
Tenterfield Detached Garage & | Information Required from Applicant
Studio
2022.038 Tenterfield Surveys 8196 Mt Lm.desay Road, | Two (2) l..ot Rural Awaiting RFS recommendations
{Attard) Lower Acacia Creek Subdivision
2022.039 Tenterfield S ! er Road, Drak 4) Lot Rural o
enterfield Surveys (Searle) | Bruxner Road, Drake Four ( .)' ot Rura Awaiting NSW RFS Recommendations
Subdivision
2022.040 Tenterfield Surveys (Acacia | Mt Lindesay Road, Twao (2) Lot Rural Awaiting NSW RFS Recommendations
Downs Custodian Pty Ltd) Lower Acacia Creek Subdivision
2022.043 Tenterfield Surveys (Taylor) | 60 Derby Street, Five (5) Lot Staged Information required from applicant
Tenterfield Urban Subdivision
| 2022.048 Tenterfield Surveys (Uhrig) | 17 Naas Street, ' Eleven (11) Lots  Information required from applicant
Tenterfield Staged Urban
Subdivision
2022.052 Tenterfield Surveys (Spark) | 439 Rouse Street, Three (3) Lot Urban Information required from applicant
Tenterfield Subdivision
2018.089/1 Christopher Jones & Anne | 84 Robinsons Lane Function Centre & | Under assessment
Mary Brennan Tenterfield Boundary
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Adjustment -
Modification
2022.057 Tenterfield Surveys Pty Ltd | 8038 New England Three (3) Lot Rural Awaiting NSW RFS Recommendations
Highway Subdivision
2022.064 Tenterfield Surveys Pty Ltd | 83 Douglas Street, Two (2) Lot Awaiting NSW RFS Recommendations
1 Tenterfield Subdivision
2022.068 Tenterfield Surveys Pty Ltd | 531A Long Gully Road, Two (2) !.ot Awaiting NSW RFS Recommendations
Drake Subdivision
2022.071 Brad Holley Contracting 1828 Logan Street, Shed Applicant indicates DA to be withdrawn
Tenterfield
2022.072 RUBIN Alexander Charles 259 Rouse Street, Health Services Under assessment
Tenterfield Facility
2022.080 Tenterfield Surveys 504 Bryans Gap Road, Three (3) Lot Rural Awaiting RFS recommendations/Under
(Cunningham) Tenterfield Subdivision assessment
2022.081 Tenterfield Surveys (Hill) 67 Leechs Gully Road, Two (2) Lot Rural Awaiting RFS recommendations/Under
Tenterfield Subdivision assessment
2022.083 Tenterfield Surveys Bryans Gap Road, Three (3) Lot Awaiting RFS recommendations/Under
(Lawrence) Tenterfield Subdivision assessment
2022.084 Tenterfield Surveys 27 Casino Road, Two (2) Lot Awaiting RFS recommendations/Under
(Sattolo) Tenterfield Subdivision assessment
2022.086 PAGE Emma 11 Riley Street, Recreation Facility Notification 10/8/22/under assessment
Tenterfield (Indoor) Gym
2022.088 Tenterfield Surveys 1179 Cowper Street, Five (5) Lot Under assessment
(Kasmra) Tenterfield Subdivision
2022.090 LORENTZEN Annette Kim’s Way, Drake Dwelling | Under assessment
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2022.091 TENTERFIELD SURVEYS Mole Station Road, 3 Lot Boundary Awaiting RFS recommendations
(Anjerin Genetic Resources | Woodside Adjustment
Pty Ltd)
2022.093 CHURCHILL Matthew Hayden Street, Drake Dwelling Under assessment
2022.094 BUCKMAN Edward 90A Bulwer Street, Dwelling Under assessment
Tenterfield
2022.095 BRERETON Stephen Leslie Creek Road, Drake | Dwelling Under assessment
2022.097 HOLLEY Bradley & Karen 317 Schroders Road, Alterations & Under assessment
Tenterfield Additions, Swimming
Pool, Fence & Deck
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2L/

Dwelings R mere FY 22/23 Monthly | FY 21/22 Monthly
e No. 6 1 0 0 1 0 8 ' 9
” 1
Vabe | $1,199,500.00 $199,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,398,600.00 | _ $1,311,501.00
’s No. 16
A Vake | s$935.531.00
No. | 19
Sep-22 !
Vale $1,992,350.00
No. 12
Oct-22 —
Vale $7,634,761.00
No. 16
Nov-22
Vale $852,959.00
No. 8
Dec-22 ;
Vakse $1,922,572.00
No. 13
Jan-23
Vale $2,266,697.00
No. 15
Feb-23
Value $1,746,032.00
No. 17
Mar-23 —
Vale $840,500.00
No. 12
Apr-23
Vake $1,392,435.00
No. 18
May-23
Vake $1,158,383.00
18
. ‘ $1,553,750.00
6 | 1 0 0 1 0 8
$1,199,500.00 $199,100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,398,600.00
$12,875,932.00 $966,000.00 $1,924,958.00 $7,470,581.00 $0.00 $370,000.00
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13. Planning and Regulation

Planning & Regulation Operating Income

Planning & Regulation Operating Expenditure
Budget v's Actual

‘°°‘é§o¢‘°«§f o 0'\»*0“?“"“&

=@=YTD Budget

Budget v's Actual
300,000.00 600,000.00
250,000.00 500,000.00
200,000.00 400,000.00
150,000.00 300,000.00
100,000.00 200,000.00
50,000.00 100,000.00
< e e e e e S
= é} @é AR @‘d \;@6\ v"{‘ KR
«,@ &
== YTD Budget ==B==YTD Actuals
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Planning & Regulation 224,129 8,616 3.84%
1. Operating Income (273,300) (23,601) 8.64%
2. Operating Expenditure 532,429 21,705 4.08%
3. Capital Income (35,000) 10,512 -30.03%

== YTD Actuzls
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

14. BUILDINGS & AMENITIES

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (4)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

- BUILDINGS & AMENITIES

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

o~ - -

16



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022

Attachment 1
Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Buildings & Amenities

Service Profile: Buildings & Amenities

Action Responsibility

1.2.1.4 Develop and deliver the Property Acting

Management Strategy. Manager
Buildings &
Amenities

| BUILDINGS & AMENITIES
/ RN

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date

Property Strategy - Under review 01/07/22 30/06/23
investigations into seeking copies of similar

size Council’s Property Strategy- This may

not get drafted until 2022/2023 due to work

requirements and being understaffed within

the department.

In Progress

Council Buildings

» Cleaning Contract for all Council buildings
and RFS Control Centre is currently been
drafted.

» Staff are currently trying to manage Council
property in July 2022 understaffed and with
a reduced budget. At present staff are trying
to reduce ongoing maintenance and
depreciation costs by investigating the selling
of Council assets.

« Staff are continually having issues with
insufficient budgeted allocations to properly
maintain the commercial buildings in
accordance with Council obligations as
landlord under lease agreements and are
only now repairing items that are considered
to be unsafe.

* Security Audit has commenced on all
Council buildings and park land with a clean-
up of security codes and drafting a letter for
the return of excess keys from community
groups.

Current Capital Works

o Scope of work has been developed for the
Memorial Hall Foyer, Toilets and Kitchen and
currently waiting for 1 quote to complete

% Complete Target  Status

8.00 100.00

NEEDS WORK
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1.2.1.5 Manage and update Land and Acting

Property Register. Manager
Buildings &
Amenities

1.2.1.6 Develop and deliver the Buildings Acting

and Amenities Asset Management Plan. Manager
Buildings &
Amenities

flood damage from May 2022.

o Still awaiting for the plans to be finalised
for the replacement of the Administration
building roof.

o Band Hall relocation to Leechs Gully. In
February 2022, Heritage consultant
inspected the property and is in the process
of preparing the heritage report as part of
DA process. Gem Club has stored the past
committee board/ honour board for safe
keeping. The gem Club have verbally agreed
to return the items to the Admin building
however are yet to do so.

= Land and Property register is currently
being managed as required. Spreadsheets
are being updated as needed.

* Budget has been organised for a new
Building Conditions Assessment to be
completed in 2022/2023.

» Due to essential work commitments and
staff shortages, staff are finding time
genuinely difficult to complete a review of
Council land and buildings in the shire for the
consideration of Council, identifying assets to
assist that through disposal may reduce
ongoing maintenance and depreciation casts
in a material way.

* Memorial Hall history investigations has
found a box of information/plans that hasn’t
been scanned into the records management
system, property staff are slowly scanning
these items.

Licences & Agreements on Council
owned/managed Land

= Heads of terms agreement between
Council and Telstra for Prime TV has been
executed by both parties

= Negotiations regarding the terms and
conditions of the licence to BackTrack are
continuing

01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

NIEDS WORK

01/07/22  30/06/23 800 100.00 @

WEEDS WORK

- BUILDINGS & AMENITIES —
£ — 18
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

GRANT FUNDING UPDATES

Drought Communities Programme Extension
= In January, Council applied for an Extension
of time for Streetscape Recovery Project
through the Drought Communities
Programme Extension Letter has been sent
to the Tenterfield National Monument
Association Inc. with updated agreement
details and reporting.

Stronger Country Communities Programs

» Received the executed deed of variation
for SCCF2-1023 (Memorial Hall Sporting
Complex and SCCF2-1069 (Tenterfield Shire
Vibrant and Connected) and Council is just
awaiting Regional NSW to sign off the vibrant
and connected project.

* The Funding acquittal for the covered
exercise area and cricket nets has now been
completed and submitted to Regional NSW
for the Stronger Country Communities
Funding Round 3.

* Agreement has been completed for the
Sunnyside Hall Committee to manage the
Stronger Country Communities Funding
Round 4 project, due to staff commitments
already at full capacity. Council will still
complete the reporting to the funding body
and oversee the project. Currently sitting
with the Committee for invoices.

» Scope of works are needed to be done for
the Memorial Hall floor, emergency lighting
and fans, resurfacing of netball court,
Upgrades to Drake hall, would like to go out
to tender by October/November.

National Bushfire Funding

» Extension for time has been applied for
one (1) outstanding project to the Resilience
NSW for the National Bushfire Funding (RES
40/20) in June 2022, Council is expected to
hear the outcome in July-August 2022.
Bushfire Community Recovery & Resilience
Funding

BUILDINGS & AMENITIES
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e Gathering information in June to complete
the acquittal for five (5) projects that sit
under the Bushfire Community Recovery &
Resilience Funding Phase 2 Stream 1 -
Resilience NSW.

Public Spaces Legacy Program

= Extension to the deed for Public Spaces
Legacy program has been submitted to push
both the Youth Park and Jennings Playground
to be completed in March 2023 instead of
December 2022.

* BBQ area has now been installed with the
playground and carparking to commence in
August/September.

Black Summer Funding

= Removal of dead trees, Mingoola Hall
Upgrades to include a standalone toilet and
Memorial Hall installation of Fans and
lighting scope of work needs to be drafted
for a tender to go out.

Regional Tourism Bushfire Recovery Funding
s Art work has been installed and paperwork
has been supplied to Council from Make It
Tenterfield. Staff are finding it difficult to
complete the acquittal with the current
workload.

Council Buildings

Administration Building

» Administration Building Roof — drafting
scope is on hold for competitive pricing and
engineering plans. Engineer measuring on
site in March 2022 and a scope of wark will
be developed once the plan has been
supplied to Council — Still awaiting a copy of
this plan from LEGS. — Staff & Time restraints
are becoming difficult to complete draft
scope of works

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

- BUILDINGS & AMENITIES
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1.2.1.7 Manage Crown Lands and Acting

prepare designated Native Title Advice. Manager
Buildings &
Amenities

Memerial Hall

» Awaiting for quotes to repair the foyer,
toilets and kitchen from 2 local builders at
Memorial Hall due to flooding in May 2022.
« Fire System at Memorial Hall has
commenced installation with 6 fire alarms
installed the fire indicator panel has been
installed near the outdoor power box with an
all-weather case to be installed to protect.,
This is the final project to complete the Local
Drought Stimulus Funding that remained
outstanding — this part of the project was
delayed due to the roof structure needing to
be strengthened first.

Drake Hall

= A hand rail has been installed on the
outdoor stairs at the Drake Hall.

* The upgrades to the Drake Resource Centre
is nearing completion and through the
Drought Community Programme Extension
and received an extension for the funding for
the delays. Staff need to draft a letter of
agreement with Drake in relation to the
extended time.

* Responded to a request from Crown lands. In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23

8.00

100.00

NEEDS WORK,

— BUILDINGS & AMENITIES
A —
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14. Buildings and Amenities

Building & Amenities Operational Income

Building & Amenities Operational Expenditure
Budget v's Actual

== YTD Budget ==Ow=YTD Actual

S S &S &
d§w\sp¢o¢'§ °«@@"p Al

Budget v's Actual
1,500,000.00
1,000,000.00
500,000.00
\\ o X
B v”& &@‘
,,q,Q
==Bu= YTD Budgel ==O==YTD Actual
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Buildings & Amenities 1,365,389 (338,589) -24.80%
1. Operating Income (133,278) (11,941) 8.96%
2. Operating Expenditure 1,168,667 16,988 1.45%
3. Capital Income 0 (343,635) 0.00%
4. Capital Expenditure 330,000 0 0.00%
4200508. Admin Building - Roof Replacement 300,000 0 0.00%
4205500. Housing - Repaint Exteriors (SRV) 30,000 0 0.00%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Page 122



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022

Attachment 1
Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

15. PARKS, GARDENS & OPEN SPACE

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (3)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

PARKS, GARDENS & OPEN SPACE

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Parks, Gardens & Open Space

Service Profile: Parks, Gardens & Open Space

Action Responsibility Progress Comment

1.2.1.1 implement and deliver Manager Open Staff have been pruning the trees along

maintenance programs for Parks, Space, Rouse street due to complaints.

Gardens and Open Spaces. Regulatory & New flowers planted in garden beds in Rouse
Utilities street

General cleaning and maintenance of
amenities.

Damage to the public toilets has now been
reduced as Jubilee park toilet is being closed

earlier.

Graffiti is continuing to happen in other

toilets.

Playground maintenance being undertaken.
Fairy lights in Rouse street trees are being
serviced mid August.

Suppliers contacted in relation to the
upgrade of the netball courts.

No brush cutting or road verge maintenance
due to staff shortage.

One staff member required at the Cemetery
on a daily basis.

New shade cloth over the playground at
Jubilee park to be installed in September.
Several pin oaks are still to be removed along
Cowper and Logan streets.

Rouse street gardens are being pruned and
fertilized.

Staff have attended training courses.
Anti-social behavior still occurring in the
front of Bruxner Park. Trees being broken,
rubbish left and thrown on the footpath,
boxes of matches being lit.

. PARKS, GARDENS & OPEN SPACE
ATTINNNEN

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22  30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @

NEEDS WORK
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Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status Start Date  End Date % Complete Target Status
1.2.1.2 Work with the Tenterfield Shire Manager Open Parks and Garden and Arts and Culture In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
Village Progress Associations and the Space, Committee are now combined. o
Parks, Gardens and the Parks, Gardens  Regulatory & Village concept plans have been adopted and
and Open Space Committee to support  Utilities on Council website
individual town and village themes, Grant funded upgrade to Jennings

playground has commenced, the shade
structure erected and BBQ and bin restrictor
installed. Picnic tables are soon to be done.
The new playground and shade structure is
planned to be installed late August.

Public toilets at Drake have had the door
locks broken and toilet paper thrown all

around.
1.2.1.3 Implement the tree management Manager Open Tree management Plan approved by the In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
plan. Space, Parks and Garden Committee, to adopt the e
Regulatory & plan excluding the tree replacement species
Utilities along Logan Street.

No street trees have been planted or
replaced due to budget restraints.

— PARKS, GARDENS & OPEN SPACE
A 25
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15. Parks, Gardens and Open Space

Parks, Gardens & Open Spaces Operational

Parks, Gardens & Open Spaces Operational

Income Budget v's Actual Expenditure Budget v's Actual
140,000.00 1,400,000.00
120,000.00 1,200,000.00
100,000.00 1,000,000.00
80,000.00 £00,000.00
600,000.00
St 400,000.00
4090090 200,000.00
20,000.00 .
e e e S Do e e e
N e & & ¢
S & & s» @9 SRR Y
lr Al g & & vx"” °c~ ®
«‘° ‘# FL &S SR *"P ""
—0=\TD Budget —=0==YTD Actuals f =0=TD Budget =0==YTD Actuals |
22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent

Parks, Gardens and Open Space 1,036,699 (327,091) -31.55%

1. Operating Income (124,530) (7,235) 5.81%

2. Operating Expenditure 1,161,229 25,052 2.16%

3. Capital Income 0 (344,909) 0.00%
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16. SWIMMING COMPLEX

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

— SWIMMING COMPLEX
A: -

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

— —

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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Action

1.2.2.1 Manage the Tenterfield War
Memorial Baths (TWMB) Management
Plan, and contribute to service delivery.

Responsibility

Acting Manger
Buildings &
Amenities

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date

Management Plan

* Business improvements identified in
preparation of the commencement of the
2022/2023 summer season. Action being
taken to improve entry and exit to facility
and increase patronage for the 2022/2023
season.

» Contract has been renewed between Just
Sports n Fitness and Council and has been
extended for another four (4) years 17
September 2024.

= Current Management Plan to be
implemented in the 2023 summer season.
This plan is currently under review.

in Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23

Service Delivery

Discussions in relation to the maintenance
needed prior to the new season:

» All plant room equipment will need to be
serviced.

* Pool needs to be painted with fibreglass
pool paint lining, as the concrete shell is
visible in many places and increasing running
cost.

* The chlorine/acid doser control panel still
needs replacing.

* Concrete grinding proves on the pool deck
and throughout the change room’s needs to
be completed, as it is in very poor condition
and is slippery and a major hazard.

* Total Attendances YTD
* 2018/19 - 14756
* 2019/20 - 14530
» 2020-21- 16377
» 2021/22 - 13406

% Complete

8.00

Target

100.00

Status

NEPDS WORK

o SWIMMING COMPLEX
A — = =
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16. Swimming Complex

Swimming Complex Operational Expenditure

Budget v's Actual
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Swimming Complex 296,793 7,724 2.60%
2. Operating Expenditure 271,793 7,724 2.84%
4. Capital Expenditure 25,000 0 0.00%
4600512. Swimming Pool - Equipment Renewal 25,000 0 0.00%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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17. ASSET MANAGEMENT & RESOURCING

ACTION STATUS ACTION PERFORMANCE

ON TRACK

100.00% (5)
Actions reported on 5

NEEDS WORK

At least 80% of action target achieved 0

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved o

0.00% (0) f a— & Less than 50% of action target achieved 5

NO TARG ET ; F. ¢ Actions with no target set 0

— ASSET MANAGEMENT & RESOURCING
— _ " ___EN
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Business Unit: Asset Management & Resourcing

Service Profile: Asset Management & Resourcing

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
5.1.3.1 Develop and implement the Manager Asset &  Asset Management Strategy has been In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
Asset Management Strategy and Program Planning updated and action plan is continuing e
associated systems, including the implementation of the Asset

Management System - AssetFinda.

5.1.3.2 Deliver and manage the Manager Asset & The PAMP and Bike Plan actions are being In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
Pedestrian Access and Mobility Plan Program Planning implemented as funding becomes available —
(incorporating the Disability Action Plan) for specific project undertakings.

and Bike Plan.

5.1.3.3 Infrastructure and assets Manager Asset &  Asset inspections are being undertaken ona In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 400 100.00 @
inspections. Program Planning range of infrastructure giving priority to —

major key assets. The complete inspection
program is limited by staff resources as the
Assets Section has not had an active staff
member in the Inspector role for a year and

a half.
5.1.3.4 Review and update Council's Risk Manager Asset &  Risk Register has been updated for Asset In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
Register and intervention programs on  Program Planning tasks and ongoing inspections are being o<
an ongoing basis in accardance with undertaken to the extent that available staff
inspection schedules. resources allow,
5.1.3.6 Develop and implement the Manager Asset & A Depot Master Plan is being developed to  In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 4.00 100.00 @
Depot Master Plan. Program Planning include operational compliance features of

NETDS WoRK

environmental protection, worker and public
safety, traffic management and storage
efficiency. Work on this task has been limited
as the Assets Section has not had a person in
the vacant role of Technical Projects
Engineer for well over one year.

ASSET MANAGEMENT & RESOURCING
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17. Asset Management and Resourcing

Asset Management Operational Expenditure

Budget v's Actual
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Asset Management & Resourcing 1,246,343 20,292 1.63%
1. Operating Income (10,000) 0 0.00%
2. Operating Expenditure 1,027,506 19,655 1.91%
4. Capital Expenditure 220,000 0 0.00%
6250502. Tenterfield Depot - Wash Down & Recycle Bay 20,000 0 0.00%
6250505. Tenterfield Depot - WHS & Environmental Initiative Enhancements 100,000 0 0.00%
6250506. Tenterfield Depot - Fuel Tank Replacement/Remediation 100,000 0 0.00%
6. Liabilities 8,837 637 7.20%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

18. COMMERCIAL WORKS

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

COMMERCIAL WORKS

P

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

g~ =
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Commercial Works

Service Profile: Commercial Works

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
5.1.3.7 Commercial Works undertaken in Manager Works July 2022 - Council continues to operate and In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
accordance with demand. deliver commercial works in a financially ... i
responsible manner as resources come
available.

COMMERCIAL WORKS
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18. Commercial Works

Commercial Works Operating Income

Commercial Works Operating Expenditure

Budget v's Actual Budget v's Actual
160,000.00 140,000.00
140,000.00 120,000.00
120,000.00 100,000.00
100,000.00
S oo
60,000.00 e
40,000.00 40,000.00
20,000.00 20,000.00
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Commercial Works (35,159) (22,925) 65.21%
1. Operating Income (151,842) (26,339) 17.35%
2. Operating Expenditure 116,683 3,414 2.93%
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Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

19. STORMWATER DRAINAGE

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

STORMWATER DRAINAGE

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

g~ =
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Stormwater Drainage

Service Profile: Stormwater Drainage

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
4.1.2.1 Implement the Storm water Manager Asset &  Data collected from recent inspections is In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
Asset Management Plan. Program Planning being assessed to determine priorities for e
renewal works to the underground drainage
system.

STORMWATER DRAINAGE
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19. Stormwater and Drainage

Stormwater & Drainage Operational

Expenditure Budget v's Actual
120,000.00
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80,000.00
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20,000.00
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Stormwater & Drainage 170,243 (71,482) -41.99%
1. Operating Income (71,478) (71,482) 100.00%
2. Operating Expenditure 111,521 0 0.00%
4. Capital Expenditure 130,200 0 0.00%
8252502. Drainage Pits - Upgrade 63,000 0 0.00%
8252523. Urban Culverts Renewal 27,200 0 0.00%
8252526. Stormwater Pipe Renewal 40,000 0 0.00%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Page 138



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022 Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

20. TRANSPORT NETWORK
ACTION STATUS ACTION PERFORMANCE

ON TRACK

100.00% (2)
Actions reported on 2
NEEDS WORK
At least 80% of action target achieved 0

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved 0

0.00% (0) " - % Less than 50% of action target achieved 2

NO TARGET : ; . Actions with no target set 0

— TRANSPORT NETWORK —
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Transport Network

Service Profile: Transport Network

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
4.1.1.1 Manage and deliver construction Manager Asset &  Major transport construction projects are In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 4,00 100.00 @
services for transport infrastructure, Program Planning continuing and progress will increase as the o
including footpaths, pavements and year progresses to warmer months where
cycleways. site conditions dry out allowing more

efficient road construction.
4.1.1.2 Manage and deliver maintenance Manager Works July 2022 - Council continues to maintain In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
services for transport infrastructure. public infrastructure with reduced

NEEDS WORK

maintenance budgets.

July Grading Report 2022

Council has most roads in a serviceable
condition and each crew (North, East, West
and Central) have a drainage item of plant
with them (where possible) to conduct
drainage repairs. Council is returning to a
normal grading routine maintenance and full
DRFA works (where funded).

- Grading Schedule

o Eastern Grader —graded Paddy’s Flat Rd
South, Crescent Hilis Rd, Frames Rd and Emu
Ck Rd. This crew will go to Chauvel Rd, Gap
Rd, Mud Flat Rd, followed by Fairtield and
Leslie Ck Rd.

o Northern Grader —This grader has graded
and resheeted Paddy’s Flat North, Lees Rd,
Tin Hut Rd, Sykes Gap Rd, Kangaroo Ck Rd,
sidetrack for Unnamed bridge replacement
(on Paddy’s Flat Rd North) followed by
Beaury Ck Rd.

o Western Grader - subject to staffing
availability, currently stood down. When
staff available — Woodside Rd, Eagle Ck Rd,
Sawyers Gully Rd, Upper Mole Rd, Mole River
Rd and New Mole Rd. Following this, the

_ TRANSPORT NETWORK S—
LR - — - 40

- - - ]



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1
MONTHLY OPERATIONAL REPORT JULY 2022 Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

grader will commence flood damage repairs
and full grading to Silent Grove Rd.

o Central Grader —Currently grading Talmoi
Rd, Mt MacKenzie Rd, Wades Rd, Koch's
(minor touch ups) followed by commencing
Robinson’s Lane and Washpool Ck Rd low
cost pavement preparation for LRCI seals to
these roads.

o Bridge Crew replaced a bridge on Boorook
Rd. This crew will commence works to
replace the bridge on Leeches Gully Rd.

o A contract crew is repairing drainage on
the sealed network adjacent to a lot of the
new LRCI seals — these include, Quarry Rd,
Bryan’s Gap Rd, Black Swamp Road,
Castlerag Rd, Pyes Ck Rd and others.

o Following the completed drainage, Council
wiil engage contractors to rehabilitate the
pavements on Council Local Roads as well as
Regional roads this year.

o Plains Stn Rd at Frasers Cutting continues
to allow traffic access under lights.

o After recent rains and winds, Council had
to divert resources to remove trees from the
roads.

_A TRANSPORT NETWORK
A
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20. Transport Network

Transport Network Operational Income
Budget v's Actual
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Transport Network Operational Expenditure
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent

Transport Network 7,197,578| (6,461,186) -89.77%
1. Operating Income (4,552,600) 930,767 -20.44%

2. Operating Expenditure 7,401,287 459,929 6.21%

3. Capital Income (282,786)| (8,550,611) 3023.70%

4. Capital Expenditure 4,142,596 698,729 16.87%
6215110. Regional & Local Roads Traffic Facilities 66,000 17,902 27.12%
6215510. Regional Roads Block Grant - Reseals Program. 553,668 0 0.00%
6215531. Special Grant Mt Lindesay Road (RMS/Fed) 0 308,866 0.00%
6215544. BLERF - 0737 - Improve Mt Lindesay Road 0 52,376 0.00%
6215550. Footpaths Capital Works 0 1,227 0.00%
6215552. Roads to Recovery 2019-24 1,044,335 8,003 0.77%
6215568. FLR200241 - Kildare Road (Tenterfield Tourist Route 9) 0 58,797 0.00%
6215570. DRFA AGRN960 EPAR Bruxner Way - Bridge 7325 Dumaresq River Overflow Channel 0 441 0.00%
6215572. FLR300128 - Tooloom Road West Rehabilitation 0 1,103 0.00%
6215575. ROSI - Sunnyside Platform Road Upgrade 0 118,133 0.00%
6215580. Repair Program 2022/23 565,572 0 0.00%
6220271. Bridges Renewal Program - Deepwater River Bridge Renewal - Torrington Road 0 (18,725) 0.00%

Attachment 1 -

Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
6220272. Bridges Renewal Program - Kangaroo Creek Bridge Replacement - Paddys Flat Road Nth 0 136,100 0.00%
6220274. Bridges Renewal Program - Unknown Creek Bridge (67203) Replacement, Paddy's Flat Rd Nth 0 794 0.00%
6220276. Bridges Renewal Program - Unknown Creek Bridge (67161) Replacement, Paddy's Flat Rd Sth 0 3,564 0.00%
6220277. Fixing Country Bridges - Grahams Creek Bridge Replacement, Grahams Creek Rd 0 628 0.00%
6220278. Fixing Country Bridges - Washpool Creek Bridge Replacement, Leechs Gully Rd 0 237 0.00%
6220501. Road Renewal - Gravel Roads 651,519 4,822 0.74%
6220503. Gravel Resheets 332,452 3,934 1.18%
6220505. Kerbing & Guttering 40,000 0 0.00%
6220506. Bridges / Causeways (SRV to 2023/24) 530,000 527 0.10%
6220512. Rural Culverts & Pipes 100,000 0 0.00%
6220513. Concrete Bridges 40,223 0 0.00%
6220514. Causeways 208,163 0 0.00%
6240101. Gravel Pit Rehabilitation 10,664 0 0.00%
6. Liabilities 489,081 0 0.00%
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21. PLANT, FLEET & EQUIPMENT

ACTION STATUS ACTION PERFORMANCE

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)
Actions reported on ) 3
NEEDS WORK
At least 80% of action target achieved 0

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved 0

0.00% (0) - : SE Less than 50% of action target achieved 1

NO TARGET L Actions with no target set 0

— PLANT, FLEET & EQUIPMENT
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Plant, Fleet & Equipment

Service Profile: Plant, Fleet & Equipment

Action Responsibility

5.1.3.5 Implementation and delivery of
the Fleet Asset Management Plan and
the Plant Replacement Program.

Manager Fleet

i PLANT, FLEET & EQUIPMENT
A ]

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date

The Fleet Management Plan has been fully  Deferred 30/06/23
developed in line with industry benchmarks
and best practice. The 10-year Fleet asset
Management Plan forms part of this
wholistic plan and describes the replacement
timing of each of council’s 145 major Fleet
assets, these replacements had also been
embedded into councils’ long-term financial
plan. However, with council’s current
financial situation a direction has been given
not to replace any assets outside of that
associated with waste, water, and sewage
operations until further notice. This practice
will heavily impact the long-term
sustainability of council’s fleet, and no
further progress can be made on the delivery
of the overall plan. Maintenance,
inspections, and repairs are conducted in line
with industry pest practice, with 85% of
services being conducted within a week of
falling due, this is also currently impacted by
a reduction in staffing numbers.

01/07/22

% Complete Target  Status

1.00 100.00

NEEDS WORK

46
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21. Plant, Fleet and Equipment

Plant, Fleet & Equipment Operational
Expenditure Budget v's Actual
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22123 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage

Budget July Spent

Plant, Fleet & Equipment 338,887 100,411 29.63%

1. Operating Income (188,190) (2,458) 1.31%

2. Operating Expenditure (375,346) 102,869 -27.41%

4, Capital Expenditure 3,944,257 0 0.00%

6210500. Public Works Plant - Purchases 3,944,257 0 0.00%

8. WDB of Asset Disposals (3,041,834) 0 0.00%
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A

22. WASTE MANAGEMENT

0.00% (0) £ P

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

NEEDS WORK

0.00% (0)

NO TARGET

22. WASTE MANAGEMENT

R

L

e aabaliy et em— -

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Waste Management

Service Profile: Waste Management

Action Responsibility Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target Status
3.1.4.1 Deliver and manage Waste and Manager Water July 2022-Update In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00
Recycling services. & Waste The Operational opening of Torrington was

NEEDS WORK

opened 20th November 2021 and final taring
occurred this month of July 2022.

Expansion of the future cell {cell 5)
Finalisation of storm water sediment basins
have been completed. Leachate
management plan, is completed and sent to
EPA. Surface water management plan has
been received in draft, under review. Further
surveys have been undertaken which are
required for masterplan update delayed due
weather conditions, completed this month of
April, Master plan entering final phase draft
plans received and review underway July
2022 finalisation of plans expected in August
which will then be sent to EPA for approval.

Upgrade for Mingoola new waste transfer
station has stalled, Council entered into
leases with Crown lands initially and now
Council entering into negotiations with the
Moombahlene LALC to purchase the site - on
hold.

Arrival of new weather stations occurred this
month May 2022, deployment pending.

Request by EPA for an investigation into
pezio-wells commenced with initial checking
of water |levels and depths utilising a
electrometer, further investigations have
been awarded and were undertaken in June
2022, final report suggested 2 wells

_ WASTE MANAGEMENT ]
1B : 19
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Tenterfield Shire Council

WASTE MANAGEMENT

damaged, a CCTV of wells was scheduled in
July 2022 and the wells passed, with no
damage recorded.

The application for funding from the
bushfires in 2019 has continued with Council
to receive $773,692 for improvements at
Boonoo Boonoo and Torrington, deeds have
been signed, works have commenced onsite
for office deployment, truck shelter is now
erected with sewer nearing completion and
planning continues with quotations called for
weighbridges and fencing, surveys
completed awaiting drawings.

To try to reduce the contamination in
recycling an advertising campaign was
undertaken as well as staff conducted audits
and continue to audit recycling bins for
contamination with over 55 initial
contaminated bins identified, letters where
sent to residents, subsequent inspections
reduced the number of contaminated bins to
10. The audits continued in July with over 95
bins identified. These continued offenders
will be charged a fee to empty contaminated
bins, alternatively decontaminate
themselves for future pick-up the audit will
continue. A revision of recycling policy is in
final version with research included from
other Councils, the new policy is expected to
be provided in August 2022.

Green waste and food waste, joint report
with Northern Rivers Regional Waste has
commenced which will assist Counci! with
new mandatory FOGO (Food Organics and
Green Organics) legislation scheduled to
commence in 2030.

NIRW have provided new recycling stations
for office collection one will be located in the
libruary and one in the community centre at
Drake-under investigation.

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022
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Our customer base is the public, other
Council departments and contractors. Our
waste operational staff continue to assist the
community with waste

The Container Deposit Scheme (CDS) from 1
December 2017 to 30 November 2021,
Tenterfield residents have recycled
9,202,976 container collections or 665.67
Tons on average Tenterfield resident recycle
638,000 items per quarter EFC - Exchange for
Change

- WASTE MANAGEMENT I
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22. Waste Management

Waste Management Operational Income Waste Management Operational Expenditure
Budget v's Actual Budget v's Actual
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Waste Management Capital Expenditure
Budget v's Actual
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year |YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Waste Management 1,952,650 (2,978,992) -152.56%
1. Operating Income (3,114,040)| (3,056,617) 98.16%
2. Operating Expenditure 2,316,618 44,424 1.92%
3. Capital Income (4,000) 23,610 -590.25%
4, Capital Expenditure 2,568,405 9,591 0.37%
7080500. 240L Wheelie Bins 2,101 0 0.00%
7080503. Industrial Bins 6,304 2,239 35.52%
7080554. Boonoo Boonoo - Landfill Cover 10,000 0 0.00%
7080555. Boonoo Boonoo - Cell Remediation Asset 50,000 0 0.00%
7080558. Tip shop - Drake, Liston & Tenterfield 0| 146 0.00%
7080564. Boonoo Boonoo - Develop Stage 5 2,500,000 7,115 0.28%
7080732. Torrington Landfill - Convert to Transfer 0 N 0.00%
6. Liabilities 185,667 0 0.00%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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Tenterfield Shire Council

23. WATER SUPPLY

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (2)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

WATER SUPPLY
AT

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Monthly Operational Report - July 2022

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Water Supply

Service Profile: Water Supply

Action Responsibility

3.1.3.1 Implement Water Service Manager Water
Strategic Plan in accordance with NSW & Waste
Office of Water Guidelines.

- WATER SUPPLY
A _

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status
July 2022-Update In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00 @
Bore sampling program is complete awaiting A omreei

finalisation of analysis results. Checking of
Shirley Park, Apex Park and East Street bores
through CCTV commenced in July with Apex
Park bore showing it's age and requiring a
reline to continue it’s operation this will be
scheduled this financial year. Shirley Park
constructed at the same time as Apex Park
bore in 1994 was also showing signs of
deterioration and will be scheduled next
financial for re-lining/refurbishment. East
street bore as a flowing bore was also
checked by CCTV (requested by NRAR) and
was found to be in excellent condition.

Works have commenced for the New Water
Filtration Plant on Scrub Road, the project
was awarded to contractors LC Water.
Pipework commenced in June, 2022 with
concreting of geobag and chemical sump
areas for the new Water Filtration Plant,
main building pours expected in August
2022.

Opportunity under a Leakage reduction pilot
program, Council was awarded $36,843.75
DPE-Water, for installation of new mag-flow
meter at East Street reservoir.

The disabled fishing platform October 2020,
delivery of the floating platform to be
located inside the Dam compound at
Otterburn park. A walkway for the platform
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and fencing {completed). Plans have been
undertaken quotations for concrete paths
received and provided to Fisheries for
approval, awaiting decision.

A new opportunity to further the Bore water
refinement with application for grant under
Resilience NSW, Local & Regional Risk
Reduction stream - Pathway 2 application
submitted awaiting response.

Arrival of new weather stations occurred this
month May 2022, deployment pending.

A grant for water treatment improvement,
increased storage capacity and secondary
supply at Urbenville has been awarded to
Council through New Grid & Water
Infrastructure NSW, 1st milestone
completed payment pending, secondary
supply bore hydrologist engaged, report
pending, RFQ for drilling completed and
under review in August 2022,

The Tenterfield Sustainable and Disaster
Resilient Communities program, for the
villages of Drake, Liston, Legume, and
Torrington. The reticulation will
predominantly service pumps for
groundwater/river water holding tanks and
standpipe delivery systems, including solar
systems. The hydrogeologists engaged draft
report pending August 2022. RFQ for drilling
completed and under review in August 2022.

Cleaning of Sludge ponds at Urbenville Water
Treatment plan is completed -luly 2022, leak
detected in pond, will require repair.

Water supply, is provided to the community
under Australian Drinking Water Guidelines
(ADWG), current usage at Tenterfield is
currently 721KL/day decreasing by 42KL/day.

— WATER SUPPLY ___
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Tenterfield Dam Level is 100% new data
loggers place level at 100%; Urbenville
Tooloom Creek Level is 100% receiving
33mm for the month of June.

Meter Reading completed in May/June
water meter readings commenced
November/December.

« Tenterfield 0 major main; 2 new meter; 4
new service connections; 0 water limiters
installed; 1 disconnection, S broken services
repaired; 0 valve replacements and 0
hydrant replacements. Nate Tenterfield
WTP repairs including 20m poly pipe
installed in April 2022, Fluoride tank
maintenance and prominent service
inspections May 2022. 1 section 67 private
works jobs completed {(major repair of Mt
Lindsay main). Clive street main replacement
progressing.

= Jennings 0 including meter; C meter
replacements; Major main break (Southern
Downs) left community without water Staff
supplied water bottles to the community in
response to the shortage, mains where
flushed to clear debris from repair and return
of water.

* Urbenville had 0 major main broken main
repairs, mains flushing occurred in 5
location, 0 new meter, 0 meter
replacements, 0 water limiters instalied and
0 broken service repaired 0 hydrant
replacement from damage. Valve testing and
hydrant cleaning and checking continues.
Urbenville pressure testing for fire
suppression system at hospital, Repairs to
DAFF system in April 2022, repairs to service
line at WTP and prominent service
inspections May 2022.

Tenterfield Dam capacity and consumption
graphs are provided below {Graph 1); the
new data logging probes to assist with raw
water information are on-line and delivering

— WATER SUPPLY
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a variety of information including a more
precise depth measure, allowing dam
percentage to be measured more accurately
(Graph 2) issues with telemetry have
stopped retrieval of information. Installation
and testing periods are demonstrated by
gaps in information (Graph 2); Tooloom
Creek capacity and consumption graph is
provided below (Graph 3). Water quality
information is also available in monthly
water health cards available at Water Health
Cards | Tenterfield Shire Council
{nsw.gov.au)

— WATER SUPPLY —
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Action

3.1.3.2 Deliver and manage the Water
and Drought Management Plans and

Flood Study.

Responsibility
Manager Water
& Waste

Progress Comment

July 2022-Update

The Integrated water catchment
management grant (IWCM) deeds have been
signed February 2022, has progressed with
secure yield studies awarded, with draft
report received. Additional surveys required,
including extended benthic survey of
Urbenville, scheduled for this month.

NSW Dam Safety regulation with compulsory
risk assessment for the dam under NSW Dam
Safety requirements underway, due in
December 2022.

Opportunity to continue the Urbenville flood
risk assessment has gained OEH
endorsement. Tenterfield update of the
flood risk study has also gained endorsement
and has been shortlisted, grant has been
applied for awaiting decision.

A new opportunity to further the Dam
masterplan development with application for
grant under Resilience NSW, Local &
Regional Risk Reduction stream - Pathway 1
application submitted awaiting response.

Start Date  End Date % Complete Target  Status

01/07/22 30/06/23 8.00 100.00

NEEDS WORK

WATER SUPPLY
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23. Water Supply

Water Supply Operational Income
Budget v's Actual
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22/23 22/23 22/23
COA Full Year | YTD Actuals | Percentage
Budget July Spent
Water Supply 107,286 (1,601,749) -1492.97%
1. Operating Income (2,984,548)| (1,379,784) 46.23%
2. Operating Expenditure 2,524,869| 73,669 2.92%
3. Capital Income (10,000) (317,756) 3177.56%
4. Capital Expenditure 317,000 22121 6.98%
7484505. Tenterfield Mains Replacement 282,900 22,121 7.82%
7484506. Tenterfield Meter Replacement 22,600 0 0.00%
7484901. Jennings Mains Replacement 11,500 0 0.00%
6. Liabilities 259,965 (0) 0.00%

Attachment 1 - Monthly Operational Plan - July 2022
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24, SEWERAGE SERVICES

ACTION STATUS

ON TRACK

100.00% (1)

NEEDS WORK

NO TARGET

S SEWERAGE SERVICES

ACTION PERFORMANCE

Actions reported on

At least 80% of action target achieved

Between 50% and 80% of action target achieved

Less than 50% of action target achieved

Actions with no target set
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ACTION SUMMARY

Business Unit: Sewerage Services

Service Profile: Sewerage Services

Action Responsibility

3.1.5.1 Maintain and operate the Manager Water
sewerage network, in line with the Asset & Waste
Management Strategy.

LA ST RN R R - o————-

_ SEWERAGE SERVICES
A =" =t

Progress Comment Action Status  Start Date  End Date

luly 2022-Update

Molesworth/Miles Street pumping station
review and design amendment under
development and extending the sewer
system to the new water filtration plant has
progressed to draft designs, waiting on
finalisation.

In Progress 01/07/22 30/06/23

RFQ for manhole refurbishment under
development to continue to refurbish the
level 4 manholes.

RFQ for sewer relining under development.
Urbenville major Pump Station replacement
June 2022 met with some technical issues,
installers AESSeal where contacted and
rectification is scheduled in August 2022
additional costs will be incurred due to
requirement to tanker sewerage.

The smoke testing program was scheduled to
commence in July delayed till August 2022 to
rectify illegal storm connections, information
was readvertised in the fortnightly our local
news.

Urbenville de-sludging of finishing ponds
commenced in February 2022, however due
to flooding finalisation of cleaning was
postponed and recommenced in July 2022.

Arrival of new weather stations occurred in
month May 2022, deployment pending.

Verification mapping for Councils Water and
Sewer assets was delayed in July to

% Complete Target  Status

8.00 100.00 @

LT3 WoRE
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commence in August 2022, with contractors
utilising GPS equipment for locations in
Tenterfield then Urbenville.

As part of the refurbishment program for the
Tenterfield STP, a new upgrade with control
probes that monitor treatment processes
provide savings to utilise energy more
efficiently.

Our customer base is the public, other
Council departments and contractors.
Tenterfield

Sewer connections 0; Major pump station
clearing 1; Blockages were reported and
cleared at 6 locations; O broken main repair;
with 3 mains visually checked with new
CCTV. Large tree roots in Tenterfield and O
major manhole repair, 0 broken main repairs
and 0 section 67 private works jobs
completed in this reporting period. Pump
refurbishment 3 at STP July 2022

Urbenville

Sewer connections 0; Major pump station
clearing 31; Blockages were reported and
cleared at 2 locations; 0 broken main repair;
with 0 mains visually and O major manhole
repair, 0 broken main repairs and 0 effluent
line repair. Major pump station
refurbishment June technical and failure
issues July 2022 {PS1) and O section 67
private works jobs completed, in this
reporting period.

Average time for response to sewer chakes
remained at 20 minutes while the median
response time is at 30 minutes.

— SEWERAGE SERVICES I
A
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24. Sewerage Service

Sewerage Service Operational Income
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1. Operating Income (2,889,930)| (2,689,857) 93.08%
2, Operating Expenditure 1,905,478| 27,914 1.46%
3. Capital Income (10,000) o— 0.00%
4, Capital Expenditure a.:».noo_ S.uuo— 3.64%
7872502. Tenterfield Mains Relining (1km Year) duu.aoo_ o_ 0.00%
7872503. Tenterfield Mains Augmentation 3.@8_ 0 0.00%
7872505. Tenlerfield Man Hele Level Alterations (Water Infiltration) Bm.moo_ a.noo_ 10.02%
7872519. Tenterfield Network Renewal aou.woi o_ 0.00%
7872524. Tenterfield STP - 3 Bay Shed for Storage mo.ooo_ o_ 0.00%
7872525, Tenterfield STP - Grinder Pump 8.8c_ c_ 0.00%
7872526, Tenterfield STP - Refurbishment Sn.moo_ 0 0.00%
7872527. Tenterfield New Pump Station - Molesworth St noo.ooo_ 0 0.00%
7872528, Tenterfield New Pump Station - Trail Lane ._mo.ooo_ o_ 0.00%
7872813. Urbenville Sewer Pump Station Emergency Works - Replacement 0 w.a.nao_ 0.00%
6. Liabilities 100,591 o_ 0.00%
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COUNCIL 24 AUGUST 2022

Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Submitted by: Manager Customer Service, Governance & Records

Reference: ITEM GOV68/22

Subject: TENTERFIELD SHIRE COUNCIL AUDIT, RISK AND
IMPROVEMENT COMMITTEE CHARTER & TENTERFIELD
SHIRE COUNCIL INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Leadership - LEAD 14 - Resources and advocacy of Council are
aligned support the delivery of the community vision outlined in the
Community Strategic Plan.

CSP Strategy: Council fosters a strong organisational culture which strives for
best practice in all operations with a supportive corporate
governance framework.

CSP Delivery Ensure that the performance of Council as an organisation complies

Program with all statutory reporting guidelines and information is available
to decision makers.

SUMMARY

The objective of the Tenterfield Shire Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee (the
Committee) is to provide independent assistance to Tenterfield Shire Council (Council)
by monitoring, reviewing and providing advice on risk management, control
frameworks, governance processes and external accountability responsibilities.

As part of the implementation of the NSW Office of Local Government’s Risk
Management and Internal Audit Framework for local councils, Council is required to
update and adopt both the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter and the
Internal Audit Charter.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council adopt the Tenterfield Shire Council Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee Charter and Tenterfield Shire Council Internal
Audit Charter.

BACKGROUND

The Office of Local Government has developed a new framework for Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committees which is currently being implemented by councils across
NSW. A model Committee charter and a model internal audit charter have been included
as part of the framework by the Office of Local Government, for adaptation by councils.

REPORT:

The attached Tenterfield Shire Council Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee Charter
and Tenterfield Shire Council Internal Audit Charter are both based on the model
charters provided in the framework, have been reviewed by the Committee and signed
off by the Committee Chair, Peter Sheville and Council’s Chief Executive Officer, Daryl
Buckingham, where required. Once Council adopts the new charters, Council’s Mayor
Bronwyn Petrie will be required to sign both charters.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:
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Our Governance No. 68 Cont...

1. Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
Nil. Both Charters are requirements of the NSW Office of Local Government'’s Risk
Management and Internal Audit Framework for local councils.

2. Policy and Regulation
e NSW Local Government Act 1993
e Risk Management and Internal Audit Framework for local councils 2021

3. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)
Nil.

4. Asset Management (AMS)
Nil.

5. Workforce (WMS)
Nil.

6. Legal and Risk Management
Nil.

7. Performance Measures
Nil.

8. Project Management
Nil.

Kylie Smith
Chief Corporate Officer

Prepared by staff member: Erika Bursford
Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Kylie Smith,Chief Corporate Officer
Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Attachments: 1 Tenterfield Shire Council Audit, 17
Risk & Improvement Committe Pages
Charter

2 Tenterfield Shire Council Internal 10
Audit Charter Pages
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Tenterfield Shire Council
Audit, Risk & Improvement
Committee Charter
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Tenterfield Shire Council
Audit, Risk &
Improvement Committe
Charter

CONTROLLED DOCUMENT INFORMATION

Date

Chief Corporate Officer

Manager Customer Service, Governance and

Records

Two (2) years

August 2022

August 2024

Details/Comments

Resolution No.

24 August 2022 | Adopted by Council.

22 -

Related Legislation*

Local Government Act 1993

f vernment (Generall R

lation

Related Policies

Internal Audit Charter

Related Procedures/
Protocols, Statements,
documents

Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit

Framework for Local Counclls in NSW (Office of

Local Government, 2021)

Note: Any reference to Legisiation will be updated in this Policy as required. See
website hitp://www.legislation.nsw.gov.au/ for current Acts, Regulations and

Environmental Planning Instruments.

Attachment 1 - Tenterfield Shire Council Audit, Risk &

Improvement Committe Charter
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Charter

Tenterfield Shire Council

Improvement Committe

Tenterfield Shire Council ("Council”) has established an Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee In compliance with section 428A of the Local
Government Act 1993 and clauses (Part 8 Sec180) of the Local Government
(General) Regulation 2021.

This Charter sets out the Committee's objectives, authority, composition and
tenure, roles and responsibilities, reporting and administrative arrangements. The
Interpretational rules contained in Schedule 1 apply in the Interpretation of these
Charter.

1. Objective

The objective of Council's Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee ("the
Committee") is to provide independent assurance to Council by monitoring,
reviewing and providing advice about Council's governance processes,
compliance, risk management and control frameworks, external accountability
obligations and overall performance.

2. Independence

The Committee is to be independent to ensure it has no real or perceived bias or
conflicts of interest that may interfere with its ability to act independently and
provide Council with robust, objective and unbiased advice and assurance.

The Committee is to provide an advisory and assurance role only and Is to have
no administrative function, delegated financial responsibility or any management
functions of Council. The Committee will provide independent advice to Council
that is Informed by Council's internal audit and risk management activities and
information and advice provided by Council, relevant external bodies and subject
matter experts.

The Committee must at all times ensure it maintains a direct reporting line to and
from Council's internal audit function and act as a mechanism for intermnal audit to
report to the Governing Body and Chief Executive Officer on matters affecting the
performance of the internal audit function.

3. Authority

Council authorises the Committee, for the purposes of exercising its role and
responsibilities, to:

Access any Information It needs from Council
« Use any Council resources It needs

» Have direct and unrestricted access to the Chief Executive Officer and
Senior Staff of Council

* Seekthe General Manager's permission to meet with any other Councll
staff member or contractor

« Discuss any matters with the External Auditor or other
external parties; Request the attendance of any employee
at Committee meetings, and

« Obtain external legal or other professional advice, subject to budget

3
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allocation or approval from Council's Chief Executive Officer (should
costs of obtaining such advice exceed budget allocation).

Information and documents pertaining to the Committee are confidential and are
not to be made publicly available. The Committee may only release Council
Information to external partles that are assisting the Committee to fulfil its
responsibilities with the approval of the General Manager, except where it is being
provided to an external investigative or oversight agency for the purpose of
Informing that agency of a matter that may warrant its attention.

4. Composition and Tenure

The Committee consists of one (1) independent prequalified voting Chair, two
(2) independent voting members and one (1) non-voting Counclilor, in accordance
with the Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit in Local Councils in
NSW,

Council's Governing Body Is to appoint the Chair and members of the Committee.
The Chair in model ARIC Charter is counted as one member of the Committee.

The committee positions are as follows:
« Independent Chair {Voting)
¢ Independent Member (Voting)
¢ Independent Member (Voting)
e Councillor Member {(Non-Voting)

All Committee members are to meet the Independence and eligibility criteria
prescribed in the Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal Audit in Local
Councils in NSW.

Members will be appointed for a four (4)-year period (or other term as defined.
Members can be reappointed for a further term, but the total period of continuous
membership cannot exceed eight (8) years. This includes any term as Chair of
the Committee, Members who have served an eight (8)-year term (either as
member or Chair) must have a two (2)-year break from serving on the Committee
before being appointed again. To preserve the Committee’s knowledge of Council,
ideally, no more than one (1) member should leave the Committee because of
rotation on any one year,

Specific member terms and conditions are to be disclosed in a letter of appointment.
New members will be thoroughly inducted to their role and receive relevant
information and briefings on their appointment to assist them to meet their
Committee responsibilities.

Prior to approving the reappointment or extension of the Chair's or an
independent member’s term, the Governing Body Is to undertake an assessment
of the Chair's or Committee member's performance. Reappointment of the Chair
and members is also to be subject to the Individual still meeting independence
and eligibility requirements.

Members of the Committee are to possess and maintain a broad range of skills,
knowledge and experience relevant to the operations, governance and financial
management of Council, the envirecnment in which Councll operates, and the

4
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contribution that the Committee makes to Council. At least one (1) member of
the Committee must have accounting or related financial management
experience with an understanding of accounting and auditing standards in a local
government environment. All members should have sufficient understanding of
Council's financial reporting responsibilities to be able to contribute to the
Committee’s consideration of Council's annual financial statements.

5. Role

In accordance with section 428A of the Local Government Act 1993, the role of the
Committee is to review and provide independent advice to Council regarding the
following aspects of Council's operations:

« Compliance

« Risk management

« Fraud control

+ Financial management
« Governance

« Implementation of the Strategic Plan, Delivery Program and
strategies

e Service reviews
» Collection of performance measurement data by Councll, and

« Internal audit.

The Committee must also provide Information to Council for the purpose of
improving Council's performance of its functions.

The Committee’s specific audit, risk and improvement responsibilities under
section 428A are outlined In Schedule 2 to these Charter.

The Committee will act as a forum for Council’s internal audit function and oversee
its planning, monitoring and reporting to ensure it operates effectively.

The Committee will have no power of direction over external audit or the
manner In which the external audit is planned or undertaken but will act as a
forum for the consideration of external audit findings.

The Committee is directly responsible and accountable to the Governing Body for
the exercise of Its responsibilities, In carrying out its responsibilities, the
Committee must always recognise that primary responsibllity for management of
Council rests with the Governing Body and Chief Executive Officer,

The responsibilities of the Committee may be revised or expanded In consultation
with, or as requested by, the Governing Body from time to time.
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6. Responsibilities of Members

6.1 Independent Members

The Chair and members of the Committee are expected to understand and
observe the requirements of the Guidelines for Risk Management and Internal
Audit for Local Government in NSW. Members are also expected to:

Make themselves available as required to attend and participate in
meetings

Contribute the time needed to review and understand information
provided to It

Apply good analytical skills, objectivity and judgement

Act in the best interests of Council

Have the personal courage to raise and deal with tough Issues, express opinions
frankly, ask questions that go to the fundamental core of the issue and pursue
independent lines of inquiry

Maintain effective working relationships with Council
Have strong leadership qualities (Chair)
Lead effective Committee meetings (Chair), and

Oversee Council's internal audit function (Chair).

6.2 Councillor Member

To preserve the Independence of the Committee, the Councillor member of the
Committee Is a non-voting member. Their role is to:

Relay to the Committee any concems the Governing Body may have
regarding Council and Issues being considered by the Committee

Provide insights into local issues and the strategic priorities of
Council that would add value to the Committee’s consideration of
agenda items

Advise the Governing Body (as necessary) of the work of the
Committee and any issues arising from Iit, and

Assist the Governing Body to review the performance of the
Committee.

Issues or Information the Counclllor member raises with or provides to the
Committee must relate to the matters listed in Schedule 2 and Issues being
considered by the Committee.

The Councillor member of the Committee must conduct themselves In a non-
partisan and professional manner. The Councillor member of the Committee must
not engage in any conduct that seeks to politicise the activities of the Committee
or the internal audit function or that could be seen to do so.
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If the Councillor member of the Committee engages in such conduct orin any other
conduct that may bring the Committee and its work into disrepute, the Chair of
the Committee may recommend to Council, that the Councillor member be
removed from membership of the Committee. Where Council does not agree to
the Committee Chair’s recommendation, Council must give reasons for its decision
In writing to the Chair.

6.3 Conduct

Independent Committee members are required to comply with Council's Code of
Conduct and be held to the same ethical, behavioural and conduct standards as
officials of Council.

Complaints or breaches of Council's Code of Conduct by an Independent
Committee member are to be dealt with in accordance with the Procedures for the
Administration of the Model Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW. The
General Manager must consult with the Governing Body before taking any
disciplinary action against an independent Committee member in response to a
breach of Council's Code of Conduct.

Prequalified Committee members are also required to comply with the Code of
Conduct governing the NSW Government’s Audit and Risk Committee Independent
Chairs and Members Prequalification Scheme.

6.4 Conflicts of Interest

Once a year, Committee members will provide written declarations to Council
stating that they do not have any conflicts of interest that would preclude them
from being members of the Committee. Independent Committee members are
“designated persons” and must also complete and submit returns of interest,

Committee members and observers must declare any pecuniary or non-pecuniary
conflicts of interest that may have at the start of each meeting, before discussion
of the relevant agenda item or issue, and when the issue arises. Where
Committee members and observers are deemed to have a pecuniary or a
significant non-pecuniary conflict of interest, they are to remove themselves from
Committee deliberations on the Issue. Details of any conflicts of interest should
also be appropriately minuted.

6.5 Standards

Committee members are to conduct their work In accordance with the
International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing issued by
the Institute of Internal Auditors and current Australian risk management
standard, where applicable.

7. Workplans

The work of the Committee Is to be thoroughly planned and executed to ensure
that all Councll activities and functions are reviewed. The Committee must
develop a strategic plan every four (4) years to ensure that all matters listed in
Schedule 2 are reviewed by the Committee and the internal audit function over
each Councll term. The strategic plan must be reviewed at least annually to
ensure it remains appropriate. In the development of the strategic and annual plan,
the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee will identify where assurance through
the three lines of defence may be obtained by existing controls, other activities and
/ or through reporting by management which may exclude the need for specific
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Iinternal audit activity.

The Committee may, in consultation with Council's Governing Body, vary the
strategic work plan at any time to address new or emerging risks. Council's
Governing Body may also, by resolution, request the Committee to approve a
variation to the strategic work plan.

However, any decision to vary the strategic work plan must be made by the
Committee.

The Committee must also develop an annual workplan to guide its work, and the
work of the Internal Audit function, over the forward year.

The Committee may, In consulitation with Council's Governing Body, vary the
annual work plan to address new or emerging risks, Council's Governing Body
may also, by resolution, request the Committee to approve a variation to the
annual work plan. However, any decision to vary the annual work plan must be
made by the Committee,

When considering whether to vary the strategic or annual work plans, the
Committee must consider the impact of the variation on the internal audit function’s
existing workload and the completion of pre-existing priorities and actlvities
Identified under the workplan.

8. Assurance Reporting

The Committee must regularly report to Council to ensure that Council is kept
informed of matters considered by the Committee and any emerging issues that
may Influence the strategic direction of Council or the achievement of Council's
goals and objectives.

The Committee will provide an update to the Governing Body and Chief Executive
Officer of its activities and opinions after every Committee meeting.

The Committee will provide an annual assessment to the Governing Body and
General Manager each year on the Committee’s work and Its opinion on how Council
is performing.

The Committee will provide a comprehensive assessment every Council term of
all the matters listed In Schedule 2 to the Governing Bedy and Chief Executive
Officer.

The Committee may at any time report to the Governing Body or Chief Executive
Officer on any other matter It deems of sufficient importance to warrant their
attention. The Mayor and Chair of the Committee may also meet at any time to
discuss issues relating to the work of the Committee.

Should the Governing Body require additional information, a request for the
information may be made to the Chair by resolution. The Chair may only provide
the information requested by the Governing Body where the Chair Is satisfied
that it is reasonably necessary for the Governing Body to receive the information
for the purposes of performing its functions under the Local Government Act 1993.
Individual Councillors are not entitled to request or recelve information from the
Committee.

9. Administrative Arrangements

9.1 Meetings

The Committee will meet at least four (4) times per year, including a special
8
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meeting to review Council's financial statements.

The Committee can hold additional meetings when significant unexpected Issues
arise, or if the Chair is asked to hold an additional meeting by a Committee
member, the Chief Executive Officer or the Governing Body.

Committee meetings can be held in person, by telephone or videoconference.
Proxies are not permitted if a member is unable to attend a meeting.

A quorum will consist of a majority of independent voting members. Where the
vote Is tied, the Chair has the casting vote,

The Chair of the Committee will decide the agenda for each Committee meeting.
Each Committee meeting is to be minuted to preserve a record of the issues
considered and the actions and decisions taken by the Committee.

The Chief Executive Officer and Head of Internal Audit are to attend Committee
meetings as non- voting observers. The External Auditor (or their representative)
Is to be invited to each Committee meeting as an independent observer. The
Chair can request Council's Chief Corporate Officer, Senior Staff, Risk
Management Coordinator any Councillors, any employee/contractor of Council
and any subject matter expert to attend Committee meetings. These individuals
must attend and provide any information requested, where possible. Observers
have no voting rights and can be excluded from a meeting by the Chair at any
time.

The Committee can hold closed meetings whenever it needs to discuss
confidential or sensitive issues with only voting members of the Committee
present. The Committee must meet separately with both the Internal Auditor and
Council's External Auditor at least once per year.

9.2 Dispute Resolution

Members of the Committee and Council's Senior Staff should maintain an effective
working relationship and seek to resolve any differences they may have In an
amicable and professional way via discussion and negotiation.

In the event of a disagreement between the Committee and the Chief Executive
Officer or other Senior Staff, the dispute Is to be resolved by the Governing Body.

Unresolved disputes regarding compliance with statutory or other requirements
are to be referred to the Secretary of the Department of Planning, Industry and
Environment in writing.

9.3 Secretariat

The Chief Executive Officer will appoint a Council employee to provide secretariat
support to the Committee. The secretariat will ensure the agenda for each
meeting and supporting papers are circulated after approval from the Chair at
least one (1) week before the meeting and ensure that minutes of meetings are
prepared and maintained. Minutes must be approved by the Chair and circulated
within three (3) days of the meeting to each member,

9.4 Resignation and Dismissal of Members

Where the Chair or a Committee member is unable to complete their term or does
not intend to seek reappointment after the expiry of their term, they should give
four (4) weeks' notice to the Chair and Governing Body prior to their resignation

9
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to enable Council to ensure a smooth transition to a new Committee member.

The Governing Body can terminate via resolution the engagement of any Chair or
independent Committee member before the expiry of their term where the
Individual has:

Breached the conditions of, or become ineligible under, the NSW Government's
Audit and Risk Committee Independent Chairs and Members Prequalification
Scheme

« Breached Council's Code of Conduct

« Performed unsatisfactorily or not to expectations
« Been declared bankrupt or found to be Insolvent
« Experience an adverse change In business status

« Been proven to be In a serlous breach of their obligations under
any legislation, or

« Declared, or Is found to be Iin, a position of a conflict of interest
which is unresolvable.

The position of a Councillor member on the Committee can be terminated at any
time by the Governing Body via resolution.

9.5 Review Arrangements

At least once every Council term the Governing Body must conduct an external
review of the effectiveness of the Committee.

These Charter are to be reviewed annually by the Committee and once each
Council term by the Governing Body. Any substantive changes are to be approved
by the Governing Body.

10. Further Information

For further information on Council's Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee,
contact Council's Chief Corporate Officer, by email at
council@tenterfield.nsw.gov.au or by phone at (02) 6736 6000.

Reviewed by Chair of the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee:

AN

Peter Sheville

Chair

16 August 2022
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Reviewed by Council in accordance with a resolution of the Governing
Body:

Cr Bronwyn Petrie
Mayor
August 2022

Res: 22

Next review date: August 2024
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Schedule 1 - Definitions

Council

means Tenterfield Shire Council.

Code of Conduct

means the Code of Conduct adopted by
Tenterfield Shire Council under section 440 of
the Local Government Act 1993, incorporating
all mandatory provisions of the Mode/ Code of
Conduct for Local Councils in NSW prescribed
under the Local Government (General)
Regulation 2021.

the Committee

means the Tenterfield Shire Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee established under
section 428A of the Local Government Act
1993,

Committee Member

means a member the Tenterfield Shire Council
Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
appointed in accordance with clause 4 of this
Charter.

Designated Person

means a Council Official identified as a
“"designated person” In accordance with clause
4.8 of the Code of Conduct and subject to the
pecuniary interest disclosure requirements
detailed at Part 4 of the Code of Conduct.

General Manager

means the Chief Executive Officer of Tenterfield
Shire Council appointed under section 334 of the
Local Government Act 1993.

Governing Body

means the elected representatives, called
"Councillers", who comprise the governing
body of Tenterfield Shire Councll under section
222 of the Local Government Act 1993.

the Guidelines

means the Guidelines for Risk Management
and Internal Audit in Local Councils in NSW
prescribed under section 23A of the Local
Government Act 1993,

Head of Internal Audit

means the employee of Tenterfield Shire
Council delegated by the Chief Executive
Officer to exercise the powers, authorities,
duties and accountabilities of Head of Internal
Audit in accordance with the Internal Audit
_Charter.

Senior Staff

means the occupants of those positions within
Council's organisation structure formally
identified as "Senlor Staff" under section 332 of
the Local Government Act 1993.

12
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Audit
Internal audit

Provide overall strategic oversight of internal audit activities

Act as a forum for communication between the Governing Body, Chief
Executive Officer, Senior Staff, the internal audit function and external
audit

Coordinate, as far as |s practicable, the works programs of internal
audit and other assurance and review functions, and

Review and advise Council:

o on whether Council is providing the resources necessary to
successfully deliver the Internal audit function

o If Councll Is complying with Internal audit requirements,
including conformance with the International Professional
Practices Framework

o If Council's Internal Audit Charter is appropriate and whether
the internal audit policies and procedures and audit/risk
methodologies used by Council are suitable

of the strategic four (4)-year plan and annual work plan of
Internal audits to be undertaken by Council's Internal audit
function

> if Council's intemal audit activities are effective, including the
performance of the Head of Internal Audit and internal audit
function

o of the findings and recommendations of internal audits
conducted, and corrective actions needed to address issues
ralsed

o of the implementation by Councll of these corrective actions,
and

= on the appointment of the Head of Internal Audit and external
providers if the Internal audit function Is structured
appropriately and has sufficient skills and expertise to meet its
responsibilities.

External audit

Act as a forum for communication between the Governing Bedy, Chief
Executive Officer, senior management, the internal audit function and
external audit

Coordinate as far as Is practicable, the work programs of internal audit
and external audit

Provide Input and feedback on the financial statement and performance
audit coverage proposed by external audit and provide feedback on the
audit services provided
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Risk

Review all external plans and reports in respect of planned or completed
audits and monitor Council’s implementation of audit recommendations,
and

Provide advice to the Governing Body and Chief Executive Officer on action
taken on significant issues raised in relevant external audit reports and
better practice guides.

Risk management

Review and advise Council:

If Councll has In place a current and appropriate risk management
framework that is consistent with the Australian risk management
standard

Whether Councll is providing the resources necessary to successfully
implement its risk management framework

Whether Council's risk management framework is adequate and
effective for identifying and managing the risks Councll faces,
including those associated individual projects, programs and other
activities

1f risk management is Integrated across all levels of Council and across all
processes, operations, services, dedsion-making, functions and reporting

Of the adequacy of risk reports and documentation, for example, Council's
risk register and risk profile

Whether a sound approach has been followed in developing risk
management plans for major projects or undertakings

Whether appropriate policies and procedures are in place for the
management and exercise of delegations

If Council has taken steps to embed a culture which is committed to ethical
and lawful behaviour

If there Is a positive risk culture within Council and strong leadership that
supports effective risk management

Of the adequacy of staff training and induction in risk management

How Council's risk management approach impacts on Council's Insurance
arrangements

Of the effectiveness of Council's management of its assets, and

Of the effectiveness of business continuity arrangements, including
business continuity plans, disaster recovery plans and the periodic testing
of these plans.
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Internal controls

Review and advise Council:

« Whether Council's approach to maintaining an effective internal audit
framework, including over external parties such as contractors and
advisors, Is sound and effective

* Whether Council has in place relevant policies and procedures and that
these are periodically reviewed and updated

e Whether appropriate policies and procedures are in place for the
management and exercise of delegations

+ Whether staff are informed of thelr responsibilities and processes and
procedures to implement controls are complied with

« If Council's monitoring and review of controls is sufficient, and

+« Ifintemal and external audit recommendations to correct internal control
weaknesses are Implemented appropriately.

Compliance

Review and advise Council of the adequacy and effectiveness of Council's
compliance framework, Including:

« If Council has appropriately considered legal and compliance risks as part
of Councll's risk management framework

e How Council manages its compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
policies, procedures, codes, and contractual arrangements, and

« Whether appropriate processes are In place to assess compliance.
Fraud and corruption
Review and advise Council of the adequacy and effectiveness of Council's fraud and
corruption prevention framework and activities, including whether Councll has

appropriate processes and systems in place to capture and effectively Investigate
fraud-related information.

Financial management

Review and advise Council:
« If Councll Is complying with accounting standards and external
accountability requirements

+ Satisfy itself the annual financial reports comply with applicable Australian
Accounting Standards and supported by appropriate management sign-off on
the statements and the adequacy of internal controls

* Review the external audit opinion, including whether appropriate action has
been taken in response to audit recommendations and adjustments
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+ To consider contentious financial reporting matters in conjunction with
council’s management and external auditors

« Review the processes in place designed to ensure financial information
included in the annual report is consistent with the signed financial
statements

« Satisfy itself there are appropriate mechanisms in place to review and
implement, where appropriate, relevant State Government reports and
recommendations

+ Satisfy itself there is a performance management framework linked to
organisational objectives and outcomes

« If policles and procedures for management review and consideration of
the financial position and performance of Council are adequate, and

« If Council's grants and tied funding policies and procedures are sound.

Governance

Review and advise Council regarding its governance framework, including its:

« Decislon-making processes

« Implementation of governance policies and procedures

« Reporting lines and accountabillity

« Alignment of key roles and responsibilities

« Committee structure

» Management oversight responsibilities

« Human resources and performance management activities

« Reporting and communication activities

« Information and communications technology (ICT) governance. And

e Management and governance of the use of data, Information and
knowledge.

Improvement
Strategic planning

Review and advise Council:

« Ofthe adequacy and effectiveness of Council's Integrated Planning and
Reporting (IP&R) processes

« If appropriate reporting and monitoring mechanisms are in place to
measure progress against objectives; and
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« Whether Council is successfully implementing and achieving its IP&R
objectives and strategles.

Service reviews and business improvement

e Actas aforum for communication and monitoring of any audits conducted
by external bodies and the Implementation of corrective actions (for
example, NSW Government agencles, Commonwealth Government
agencies, insurance bodies);

+ Review and advise Council:

o If Council has robust systems to set objectives and goals to
determine and deliver appropriate levels of service to the
community and business performance;

o If appropriate reporting and monitering mechanisms are in place

to measure service delivery to the community and overall
performance; and

c How Councll can Improve Its service delivery and Council's
performance of its business and functions generally.

Performance data and measurement

Review and advise Council:

» If Council has a robust system to determine appropriate performance
indicators to measure the achlevement of Its strateglc objectives;

» Ifthe performance indicators Councll uses are
effective; and

+ Ofthe adequacy of performance data collection and

reporting.
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Tenterfield Shire Council has established Internal Audit as a key component of council’s
governance and assurance framework and in compliance with the Guidelines for risk
management and internal audit in local councils in NSW. This Charter provides the
framework for the conduct of Internal Audit in council and has been approved by the
governing bady taking into account the advice of council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee,

Purpose of internal audit

Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to
add value and improve a council’s operations. It helps a council accomplish its objectives
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness
of risk management, control and governance processes.

Internal audit provides an independent and objective review and advisory service to
provide advice to the governing body, Chief Executive Officer and Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee about the council’s governance processes, risk management and
control frameworks and its external accountability obligations. It also assists the council
to improve its business performance.

Independence

Council’s Internal Audit function Is to be independent of council so it can provide an
unbiased assessment of the council's operations and risk and control activities,

Internal Audit reports functionally to council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
on the results of completed audits, and for strategic direction and accountability
purposes, and reports administratively to the Chief Executive Officer to facilitate day-to-
day operations. Internal audit activities are not subject to direction by coundl and
council’s management has no role in the exercise of the council’s internal audit activities.

The Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee is responsible for communicating any internal
audit issues or information to the governing body. Should the governing body require
additional information, a request for the information may be made to the Chair by
resolution. The Chair may only provide the information requested by the governing body
where the Chair is satisfied that it is reasonably necessary for the governing body to receive
the Information for the purposes of performing its functions under the NSW Local
Government Act 1993. Individual councillors are not entitled to request or receive
information from the committee,

The councdil does not have sufficient resources to appoint a separate Head of Internal Audit.
The Chief Executive Officer has delegated day-to-day responsibilities for operation and
administration of Internal Audit to Council’s Chief Corporate Officer supported by the
Manager Customer Service, Governance and Records.

Where the Chair of the council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee has any
concerns about the treatment of the Chief Corporate Officer, or any action taken that may
compromise the Chief Corporate Officer's ability to undertake their functions
incependently, they can report their concerns to the governing body,

The Chief Corporate Officer is to confirm at least annually to the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee the independence of internal audit activities from the council.
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Authority

Council authorises the periodically internal Audit to have full, free and unrestricted access
to all functicns, premises, assets, personnel, records and other documentation and
information that the Chief Corporate Officer considers necessary to enable Internal Audit
to fulfil its responsibilities.

All records, documentation and Information accessed while undertaking internal audit
activities are to be used solely for the conduct of these activities. The Chief Corporate
Officer and individual internal audit staff are responsible and accountable for maintaining
the confidentiality of the information they receive during their work.

All internal audit documentation is to remain the property of council, including where
internal audit services are performed by an external third-party provider.

Information and documents pertaining to Internal Audit are not to be made publicly
availabie, The Chief Corporate Officer may only release council information to external
parties that are assisting Internal Audit to fulfil its responsibliities with the approval of the
Chief Executive Officer, except where It is being provided to an external investigative or
oversight agency for the purpose of informing that agency of a matter that may warrant
its attention.

Role

Internal Audit is to support the council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee to
review and provide independent advice to the counci! in accordance with section 428A of
the NSW Local Government Act 1993. This includes conducting internal audits of council
and monitoring the implementation of corrective actions.

Internal Audit is to also play an active role in:
« developing and maintaining a culture of accountability and integrity
« facilitating the integration or risk management into day-to-day business
activities and processes, and
s promoting a culture of high ethical standards.

Head of Internal Audit function

Council’s Internal Audit is to be led by a member of council’s staff with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience to ensure it fulfils its roles and responsibilities to the council
and its Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee. The Chief Corporate Officer must be
independent, impartial, unbiased and objective when performing their work and free from
any conflicts of interest.

Responsibilities of the Chief Corporate Officer include:

= contract management

+ managing the internal audit budget

« ensuring the externa! provider completes internal audits in line with the audit,
risk and improvement committee’s annual plan and four-yearly strategic plan

« forwarding audit reports by the external provider to the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee

* acting as a liaison between the external provider and the Audit, Risk and

+ Improvement Committee

« monitoring the council’s implementation of corrective actions that arise from the
findings of audits and reporting progress to the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee, and

» assisting the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee to ensure the council’s
internal audit activities comply with the Guidelines on risk management and
internal audit in local councils in NSW.
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If any of the internal audit activity presents a potential conflict of interest in areas for
which the Chief Corporate Office may be responsible, Internal Audit, or the external third
party provider, would report directly to the Chair of the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee,

Out-sourced Internal Audit team

Council may contract an external third-party provider to undertake its intermnal audit
activities. To ensure the independence of the external provider, the Chief Corporate
Officer is to ensure the external provider:
» does not conduct any audits on specific councll operations or areas that they
have worked on within the last two years
« |s not the same provider conducting the council’s external audit
« s not the auditor of any contractors of the council that may be possibly subject
to the internal audit, and
« s able to meet the council’s obligations under the Guidelines on risk
management and internal audit for local councils in NSW.

The Chief Corporate Officer must consult with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
and Chiefl Executive Officer regarding the appropriateness of the skills, knowledge and
experience of any external provider before they are engaged by the council.

Performing internal audit activities

The work of Internal Audit is te be thoroughly planned and executed. The council’s Audit,
Risk and Improvement Committee must develop a strategic plan every four years to ensure
that all matters listed in Schedule 1 are reviewed by the Committee and the internal audit
function over each council term. The strategic plan must be reviewed at least annually to
ensure it remains appropriate. The Committee Is to also develop an annual workplan to
guide the work of the internal audit function over the forward year, In the development of
the strategic and annual plan, the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee will identify
where assurance through the three lines of defence may be obtained by existing controls,
other activities and / or through reporting by management which may exclude the need
for specific internal audit activity.

All internal audit activities are to be performed in a manner that is consistent with relevant
professional standards including the International Standards for the Professional Practice
of Internal Auditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors and I1SO 31000:2018 Risk
Management

The Chief Corporate Officer is to provide the findings and recommendations of Internal
audits te the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee at the end of each audit. Each report
is to inciude a response from the relevant senior manager.

The Chief Corporate Officer is to establish an ongoing monitoring system to foliow up
coundil’s progress in implementing corrective actions.

The Chief Executive Officer, in consuftation with the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee,
is to develop and maintain policies and procedures to guide the operation of the council’s
Internal Audit,

The Chief Corporate Officer is to ensure that the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
is advised at each of the Committee’s meetings of the internal audit activities completed
during that quarter, progress in implementing the annual work plan and progress made
implementing corrective actions.

The Chief Corporate Officer and the Chair Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee wili
report to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee and through to the Council of the
level of audit activity proposed and achievable with available resources against the key
risks and priorities identified in the strategic and annual planning process.

4
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Conduct

Internal audit personnel are reguired to comply with the council’s Code of Conduct.
Complaints about breaches of council’s Code of Conduct by internal audit personnel are to
be dealt with in accordance with the Procedures for the Administration of the Model Code
of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW. The Chief Executive Officer must consult with the
council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee before any disciplinary action taken
against the Chief Corporate Officer in response to a breach of the council's Code of Conduct.

Internal auditors are also required to comply with the Code of Ethics for the Professional
Practice of Internal Auditing issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors.

Administrative arrangements

Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings

The following Council officers will attend Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings
as non-voting attendees:

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Corporate Officer

Manager Customer Service, Governance and Records

Manager Finance and Technology

Manager Human Resources, Workforce Development and Risk

Executive Assistant

Other staff attendees deemed appropriate by the Chief Corporate Officer

The following persons may attend Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee meetings as
non-voting observers:

« One Councillor, as appointed by the governing body
« External audit (financial) service providers

« NSW Auditor General’s Office representatives

« Other observers deemed appropriate by the Chair of the Committee

The Chair of the Committee can request that attendees and observers leave a meeting at
any time.

The Chief Executive Officer must meet separately with the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee at least once per year,

The Chief Executive Officer can meet with the Chair of the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee at any time, as necessary, in between committee meetings.

External audit
Internal and external audit activities will be coordinated to help ensure the adequacy of
overall audit coverage and to minimise duplication of effort.

Periodic meetings and contact between internal and external audit shall be heid to discuss
matters of mutuai interest and to facilitate coordination,

External audit will have full and free access to all internal audit plans, working papers and
reports.

Dispute resolution

Internal Audit service providers should maintain an effective working relationship with
the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee and seek to resolve any differences they
may have in an amicabie and professional way via discussion and negotiation.
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In the event of a disagreement between an Internal Audit service provider and the
council, the dispute is to be resolved by the Chief Executive Officer and/or the Audit, Risk
and Improvement Committee. Disputes between the Internal Audit service provider and
Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee are to be resolved by the governing body of the
council.

Unresoived disputes regarding compliance with statutory or other requirements are to be
referred to the Secretary of the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment in
writing.

Review arrangements

Council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee must review the performance of the
internal audit function each year and report its findings to the governing body. A strategic
review of Internal Audit must be conducted each council term that considers the views of
an external party with a strong knowledge of internal audit on the performance of the

Internal Audit and reported to the governing body.

This charter is to be reviewed annually by the Committee and once each council term by
the governing body. Any substantive changes are to be approved by the governing body.

Further information
For further information on Tenterfield Shire Council’s internal audit activities contact the

Manager Customer Service, Governance and Records on council@tenterfield.nsw.gov.au
or by phone at (02) 6736 6000.

Reviewed by the Chief Executive Officer of Tenterfield Shire Council

Daryl Buckingham
Chief Executive Officer
16 August 2022

Reviewed by Chair of the Tenterfield Shire Council Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee
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Peter Sheville
Chair
16 August 2022
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Reviewed and adopted in accordance with a resolution of Tenterfield Shire

Council

Bronwyn Petrie
Mayor
August 2022

Res No.22/
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Schedule 1 - internal audit function responsibilities

Audit
Internal audit
« Conduct internal audits as directed by the council's Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee
+ Implement the council’s annual and strategic internal audit work plans
« Moniter the implementation by council of corrective actions
* Assist the council to develop and maintain a culture of accountability and
Integrity
* Facilitate the integration of risk management into day-to-day business
activities and processes, and
« Promote a culture of high ethical standards.
External audit
« Provide input and feedback on the financial statement and performance audit
coverage proposed by external audit and provide feedback on the audit
services provided
* Review all external plans and reports in respect of planned or completed audits
and monitor council’s implementation of audit recommendations, and
e« Provide advice on action taken on significant issues raised in relevant
external audit reports and better practice guides,
Risk

Risk management
Review and advise:

if the council has In place a current and appropriate risk management
framework that is consistent with the Australian risk management standard
whether the council’s risk management framework is adequate and effective
for identifying and managing the risks the coundl faces, including those
associated with individual projects, programs and other activities

If risk management is integrated across all levels of the council and across
all processes, operations, services, decision-making, functions and reporting
of the adequacy of risk reports and documentation, for example, the council’s
risk register and risk profile

whether a sound approach has been followed in developing risk
management plans for major projects or undertakings

whether appropriate policies and procedures are in place for the
management and exercise of delegations

If council has taken steps to embed a culture that is committed to ethical and
lawful behaviour

if there is a positive risk culture within the council and strong leadership that
supports effective risk management

of the adequacy of staff training and induction in risk management

how the council’s risk management approach impacts on the council's
insurance arrangements
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of the effectiveness of council's management of its assets, and

of the effectiveness of business continuity arrangements, including
business continuity plans, disaster recovery plans and the periodic testing
of these plans.

Internal controls
Review and advise:

whether council’'s approach to maintaining an effective internal audit
framework, including over external parties such as contractors and advisors,
1s sound and effective

whether council has in place relevant policies and procedures and that these
are periodically reviewed and updated

whether appropriate policies and procedures are in place for the
management and exercise of delegations

whether staff are informed of their responsibilities and processes and
procedures to implement controls are complied with

if the council’s monitoring and review of controls is sufficient, and

if internal and external audit recommendations to correct internal control
weaknesses are implemented appropriately

Compliance
Review and advise of the adequacy and effectiveness of the council’'s compliance framework,

incdluding:

If the council has appropriately considered legal and compliance risks as part
of the council's risk management framework

how the council manages its compliance with applicable laws, regulations,
policies, procedures, codes, and contractual arrangements, and

whether appropriate processes are in place to assess compliance,

Fraud and corruption

Review and advise of the adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s fraud and corruption
prevention framework and activities, including whether the council has appropriate

processes

and systems in place to capture and effectively Investigate fraud-related

information.

Financial management
Review and advise:

if council is complying with accounting standards and external accountability
requirements
of the appropriateness of council’s accounting policies and disclosures
of the implications for council of the findings of external audits and
performance audits and council’s responses and implementation of
recommendations
whether the council’s financial statement preparation procedures and
timelines are sound
the accuracy of the council’s annual financial statements prior to external
audit, including:
o management compliance/representations
o significant accounting and reporting Issues
the methods used by the council to account for significant or unusual
transactions and areas of significant estimates or judgements
appropriate management signoff on the statements
if effective processes are in place to ensure financial information included in
the council’s report is consistent with signed financial statements

9
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if the council’s financial management processes are adequate
the adequacy of cash management policies and procedures
if there are adequate controls over financial processes, for example:
o appropriate authorisation and approval of payments and transactions
o adequate segregation of duties
o timely reconciliation of accounts and balances
o review of unusual and high value purchases
if policies and procedures for management review and consideration of the
financial position and performance of the council are adequate
If council’s grants and tied funding policies and procedures are sound.

Governance
Review and advise of the adequacy of the councii governance framework, including the

council's:

.

decision-making processes

implementation of governance policies and procedures

reporting lines and accountability

assignment of key roles and responsibilities

committee structure

management oversight responsibilities

human resources and performance management activities

reporting and communication activities

information and communications technology (ICT) governance, and
management and governance of the use of data, information and knowledge.

Improvement
Strategic planning
Review and advise:

of the adequacy and effectiveness of the council’s Integrated Planning &
Reporting (IP&R) processes

if appropriate reporting and monitoring mechanisms are in place to
measure progress against objectives, and

whether the council is successfully implementing and achieving its IP&R
objectives and strategies.

Service reviews and business improvement
Review and advise:

if [council has robust systems to set objectives and goals to determine and
deliver appropriate levels of service to the community and business
performance

If appropriate reporting and monitoring mechanisms are in place to
measure service delivery to the community and overall performance, and
how the council can improve Its service delivery and the council’s
performance of its business and functions generally.

Performance data and measurement
Review and advise:

if council has a robust system to determine appropriate performance
indicators to measure the achlevement of its strategic objectives

if the performance indicators council uses are effective, and
of the adequacy of performance data collection and reporting.
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Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Submitted by: Manager Finance & Technology

Reference: ITEM GOV69/22

Subject: FINANCE & ACCOUNTS - PERIOD ENDED 31 JULY 2022

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Leadership - LEAD 14 - Resources and advocacy of Council are
aligned support the delivery of the community vision outlined in the
Community Strategic Plan.

CSP Strategy: Council is a financially sustainable organisation, delivering value
services to the Community.

CSP Delivery Ensure that financial sustainability and the community's capacity to
Program pay inform adopted community service levels.
SUMMARY

The purpose of this Report is for the Responsible Accounting Officer to provide, in
accordance with Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 a
written report setting out details of all money that the Council has invested under
Section 625 of the Local Government Act 1993. The Report must be made up to the last
day of the month immediately preceding the meeting.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council receive and note the Finance and Accounts Report for the period
ended 31 July 2022.

BACKGROUND

In accordance with Clause 212 of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 the
Responsible Accounting Officer must provide a written report setting out details of all
money that the Council has invested under Section 625 of the Local Government Act
1993. The Report must be made up to the last day of the month immediately preceding
the meeting.

REPORT:

A reconciliation of cash books of all funds has been carried out with the appropriate
bank statements. A certified schedule of all Council’s investments showing the various
amounts invested is shown as an attachment to this report.

(a) Reconciliation of Accounts

A reconciliation of the cash books of all funds have been carried out with the appropriate
bank statements as at 31 July 2022.

Cash Book Balances on this date were as follows:-

General (Consolidated) $ 30,205,781.06 Credit
General Trust $ 382,340.85 Credit

(b) Summary of Investments
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The attachment to this report is a certified schedule of all Council’s investments as at
31 July 2022 showing the various invested amounts and applicable interest rates.

Concealed Water Leakage Concession Policy Update
For the month of July 2022 no concessions were granted under Council’'s Concealed
Water Leakage Concession Policy.

603 Certificates

During the sale of a property a 603 Certificate is usually requested to identify if there
are any outstanding or payable fees to Council by way of rates, charges or otherwise in
respect of a parcel of land. There were 45 applications for 603 Certificates in July 2022.

In the calendar year to date, there have been 223 applications compared to 281
applications for the same period last year.

Cash and Investments - Detailed Analysis of External Restrictions

Please note: Council is currently undertaking its Annual Financial Statements and Audit
reporting requirements. Detailed analysis will be presented after the completion of Audit
in September.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:

1. Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
Nil.

2. Policy and Regulation
e Investment Policy (Policy Statement 1.091)
Local Government Act 1993
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005
Ministerial Investment Order
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
Australian Accounting Standards
Office of Local Government Circulars

3. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)
Nil.

4. Asset Management (AMS)
Nil.

5. Workforce (WMS)
Nil.

6. Legal and Risk Management
Nil.

7. Performance Measures
Nil.

8. Project Management

Nil.
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Kylie Smith
Chief Corporate Officer

Prepared by staff member: Roy Jones

Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Kylie Smith, Chief Corporate Officer

Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Attachments: 1 Investment Report July 2022 1 Page
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TENTERFIELD SHIRE COUNCIL - SUMMARY OF INVESTMENTS 31 JULY 2022

Financial Institution Issuer Investment Maturity Interest Amount Percentage
Rating Term Date Rate Exposure
I NAB I AA- | | 90 Days I 26/Sep/22 I 2.25% | 1,500,000.00 | 25.00%'
TOTAL NAB INVESTMENTS 1,500,000.00 25.00%
|Commonwealth Bank | AA- | | 3 Months | 26/Sep/22 | 2.44% | 3,000,000.00 | 50.00%
TOTAL CBA INVESTMENTS 3.000.000.00 50.00%
| Westpac I AA- | | 3 Months | 27/0ct/22 | 264% | 1500,000.00 | 25.00%)
TOTAL WESTPAC INVESTMENTS 1,500,000.00 25.00%
|]NVES’IW[ENTS TOTAL | | | | 6,000,000.00' 100 .ﬂﬂ%l
Summary

Thereby certify that the investments as shown herein, have been invested in accordance with Section 625 of the Local Government
Act 1993, and associated Regulations, and in accordance with Council policy and procedures.

Responsible Accounting Officer R.Jones

* Except as lighlighted in the associated Council Report.
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Reference: ITEM GOV70/22

Subject: CAPITAL EXPENDITURE REPORT AS AT 31 JULY 2022

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Leadership - LEAD 14 - Resources and advocacy of Council are
aligned support the delivery of the community vision outlined in the
Community Strategic Plan.

CSP Strategy: Council is a financially sustainable organisation, delivering value
services to the Community.

CSP Delivery Collaborate and deliver resources with other organisations to
Program ensure a variety of cost effective services across the service area.
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to show the Year-to-date (YTD) financial progress of Capital
Works projects against the budget.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council receive and note the Capital Expenditure Report for the period
ended 31 July 2022.

BACKGROUND

The Capital Expenditure Report indicates to Council the financial progress of each
project against the forecast expenditure for that project. The information has also been
set out to show which Council service the expenditure relates to.

REPORT:

The carry-forward budgets for capital projects that are ongoing from the 2021/22 year,
in particular grant-funded works, will be presented in the first Quarterly Budget Review
for September 2022. These projects account for the most significant capital expenditure
variances at this stage of the financial year, which is to be expected.

Staff are reminded to proceed with their capital projects as early as possible in the year,
so that the funds can be spent within the financial year as per the operational plan and
budget. The purpose of this is to avoid excessive carry forward projects across future
financial years and to achieve the projects that Council presented in the Operational
Plan for the current year.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:

1. Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
Nil.

2. Policy and Regulation
e Local Government Act 1993
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
Australian Accounting Standards
Office of Local Government Circulars
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3. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)
Nil.

4. Asset Management (AMS)
Nil.

5. Workforce (WMS)
Nil.

6. Legal and Risk Management
Nil.

7. Performance Measures
Nil.

8. Project Management
Nil.

Kylie Smith
Chief Corporate Officer

Prepared by staff member: Roy Jones; Jessica Wild

Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Kylie Smith, Chief Corporate Officer

Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Attachments: There are no attachments for this report.
205

18 August 2022



COUNCIL 24 AUGUST 2022
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Submitted by: Manager Finance & Technology
Reference: ITEM GOV71/22
Subject: 2021/2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO BE REFERRED FOR

AUDIT

CSP Goal:

CSP Strategy:

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

Leadership - LEAD 14 - Resources and advocacy of Council are
aligned support the delivery of the community vision outlined in the
Community Strategic Plan.

Council is a financially sustainable organisation, delivering value
services to the Community.

CSP Delivery Ensure that financial sustainability and the community's capacity to
Program pay inform adopted community service levels.
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to comply with statutory requirements in relation to the
General Purpose Financial Statements and Special Purpose Financial Statements for the
year ended 30 June 2022. The Financial Statements are to be referred to Council’s
Auditor, with authorisation from the Mayor, a Councillor, the Chief Executive and the
Responsible Accounting Officer.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council;

(1) In relation to the Financial Statements and in accordance with Section
413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended):

a) Council resolves that in its opinion the General Purpose Financial
Statements and the Special Purpose Financial Statements for the
year ended 30 June 2022 and Special Schedules are properly drawn
up in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act
1993, (as amended) and the Regulations there under; and

b) That the Financial Statements be approved and signed by the
Mayor, the Deputy Mayor, the Chief Executive and the Responsible
Accounting Officer.

(2) That the Financial Statements be referred to Council’s Auditor for audit;

and

(3) That the audited Financial Statements be forwarded to the Office of
Local Government by 31 October 2022; and

(4) That the Chief Executive Officer be delegated authority to place the
Audited Financial Statements on public exhibition from Tuesday, 1
November 2022 if possible (or the soonest practicable alternative date
if not) and that notice be given that Council will present its Audited
Financial Statements at the Ordinary Council Meeting to be held on 23
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November 2022 if possible (or the soonest practicable alternative date
if not); and

(5) That the audited Financial Statements be presented at the meeting of
Council to be held on 23 November 2022 if possible in accordance with
Section 419(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) or
alternatively at the soonest practicable date as determined by the Chief
Executive Officer.

BACKGROUND

As per Section 416(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), a Council’s
Financial Statements for a year must be prepared and audited within four (4) months
of the end of the reporting period concerned.

The statutory process that must be followed is that:

1. A statement as required under section 413(2) (c) must be made by resolution and
signed by the Mayor, one (1) Councillor, the Chief Executive and the Responsible
Accounting Officer.

2. The Financial Statements must then be referred to the Council’s Auditor, and once
audited the statements must be included in Council’s Annual Report.

3. Copies of the Audited Financial Statements must then be lodged with the Office of
Local Government by 31 October 2022.

4. As soon as practicable after Council receives a copy of the Auditor’'s report, the
Statements must be placed on public exhibition for a period of seven (7) days and
notice given of a meeting at which Council proposes to present its Audited Financial
Statements, together with the Auditor’s report. This act of giving notice of the
meeting is required to be delegated to the Chief Executive as technically the notice
of meeting cannot be set until the final audited Statements and Audit Report are
received, however, subject to any matters raised during the audit, the Audited
Statements and Audit Reports will be presented at the Council Meeting to be held on
23 November 2022.

It should be noted that Council’s Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee was provided
with the draft set of Financial Statements prior to the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee meeting held on Tuesday 23 August 2022 and comments received will be
incorporated into revisions of these draft financial statements.

REPORT:

A draft of the General Purpose Financial Statements, Special Purpose Financial
Statements and Special Schedules for Council for the year ended 30 June 2022 are
attached to this report to be referred for audit.

The draft 2021/2022 Financial Statements were presented at the 23 August 2022 Audit,
Risk and Improvement Committee meeting where it was resolved:

(1) That the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee note the report.
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(2) That any comments/suggestions from the Audit, Risk and Improvement
Committee be incorporated into the final version of the Draft Financial
Statements to be presented to Council at the 24 August 2022 Council
Meeting.

(3) That the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee recommends to Council
that at the 24 August 2022 Ordinary Council meeting, the draft set of
Financial Statements (including any changes identified by the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee and the remaining sections once completed) be
referred to Council’s Auditors for Audit.

Once the 2021/2022 Financial Statements have been audited, the Auditor’s Reports and
analysis will be presented to Council and the public at Council’s Ordinary Meeting to be
held on 23 November 2022, in accordance with Section 419 (1) of the Local Government
Act 1993 (as amended).

Overall Result:
The draft Income Statement identifies a Net Operating Result for the year of $17.633M
($17.493M in 2020/2021) including capital income.

Council’s draft operating result excluding capital income and capital contributions is
showing a surplus of $2.128M compared with a $2.535M deficit in 2020/2021.

It should be noted that this is a preliminary result and is still to be audited. The
Audited Financial Statements will be presented to Council at the 23 November 2022
Ordinary Council meeting.

The Annual Financial Statements are prepared on an accrual basis.
The main factors contributing to the surplus during the Financial Year 2021-22 include:

- Operating Grants - 75% of Financial Assistance Grant for 2022/23 received in
2021/22 financial year totaling $4,192,840.

- Operating Grants - Received cash income of $1,000,000.00 in March 2022 for
February 2022 Floods Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangement - Category D - nil
expenditure as at 30 June.

- Other Income - Accounting treatment of Waste Transfer Station remediation (non-
cash) de-recognition of remediation provision of $950,000.

- Operating Grants - Received cash income of $1,500,000.00 in March 2022 for
February 2022 Floods Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangement - Immediate
Recovery Works - $706K expenditure as at 30 June.

It is important to note that due to the nature of accrual accounting and timing
differences of when revenue is received and associated expenses are spent (at
times across more than one reporting period) the surplus figure (before capital
income) is not a true indicator of Council’s financial operation/performance
and comparatively an increase in associated expenses in next financial year
will/may result in a larger deficit in the operating statement.

Water and Sewer Fund Results
e As per the draft Special Purpose Financial Statements, the Water Fund has made
a draft surplus of $404K compared to a budgeted surplus (March 2022 Quarterly
Budget review) of $461K before capital income.
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e The Sewer Fund has made a draft surplus of $800K compared to a budgeted
surplus (March 2022 Quarterly Budget Review) of $799K before capital income.

The surplus will be reinvested into their respective funds to be used for asset renewal
and upgrade required as per Council Asset Management Strategy.

Certification

Under section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), before audit
certificates can be issued, it is necessary for Council to adopt a resolution to be attached
to the Financial Statements stating that:

Council’s Annual Financial Statements and Special Purpose Finance Statements are
being prepared in accordance with:

e The Local Government Act 1993, (as amended) and the Regulations made
thereunder;

e The Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board

e The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

These statements must be signed by the Mayor, one (1) other Councillor, the Chief
Executive and the Responsible Accounting Officer. A copy of the required statement to
be signed is included in the attached draft Financial Statements. It has been assumed,
similar to past practice, that the Mayor and Deputy Mayor will sign this statement in
conjunction with the Chief Executive and Manager Finance & Technology as the
Responsible Accounting Officer. The draft financial statements until audited are not a
legal document.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:

1. Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
The Audited Financial Statements form part of Council’s Annual Report and
therefore represents an integral part of the Integrated Planning and Reporting
Framework. The Audited Financial Statements provide an important avenue for
the review of Council’s progress by any interested stakeholders including the
Community and Council is required to exhibit the audited Financial Statements.

It is a requirement that as soon as practicable after receiving a copy of the
Auditor’s report, that the Statements must be placed on public exhibition and
notice given of a meeting at which Council proposes to present its Audited
Financial Statements, together with the Auditor’s report. As advised above, this
should occur at the November Ordinary Council Meeting.

2. Policy and Regulation
There are no Policy issues arising out of this report.

3. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)
The Financial Statements are Council’s primary form of review on Council’s
sustainability and the financial performance of Council throughout the reporting
period. For this reason, they remain a crucial part of the performance
measurement framework and the financial performance as disclosed should be a
serious consideration in any future decision making.
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4. Asset Management (AMS)
There are no specific asset management issues arising out of this report.

5. Workforce (WMS)
There are no workforce issues arising out of this report.

6. Legal and Risk Management
The preparation, audit and review of Council’s Financial Statements ensure
compliance with:
e The Local Government Act 1993, (as amended) and the Regulations made
there under;
e The Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board;
e The Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial
Reporting.

7. Performance Measures
There are no performance measure issues arising out of this report.

8. Project Management
There are no project management issues arising out of this report.

Kylie Smith
Chief Corporate Officer

Prepared by staff member: Roy Jones

Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Kylie Smith, Chief Corporate Officer

Department: Office of the Chief Corporate Officer

Attachments: 1 Draft Financial Statements 2021-22
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Overview
Tenterfiedd Shire Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at

247 Rouse Streat
Tenterfield NSW 2372

Council's guiding principles are detaded in Chapter 3 of the LGA and indudes:

principles applying fo the exercise of functions generally by counal,

principles to be applied when making decisions,

principles of community particpation,

prnciples of sound financal management, and

principles for strategic planning relating 1o the developmeant of an integrated planning and reporting framework

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note B1-2

Through the use of the intemet, we have ensured thal our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press refeases, financial statements and other informabon are pubhcly available on our wabsite: www tenterfield nsw.qov.au
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Understanding Council's Financial Statements

Each year NSW Local Governments are required to present audited financial statements to their counal and community

Page 3 of 85
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Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local
Government Act 1993 (NSW)

The attached general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with:
« the Local Government Adt 1993 and the regulations made thereunder,
« the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

+ the Local Govemnment Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
« present faily the Council's operating result and financial position for the year
« accord with Counail's accounting and other records
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 24 Augusat 2022.

Bronwyn Petrie John Macnish

Mayor Deputy Mayor

24 August 2022 24 August 2022

Daryf Buckmgham Roy Jones

Chief Executive Responsible Accounting Officer
24 August 2022 24 August 2022
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Tenermeld Shire Council | Income Statement | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Original
unaudited
budget
2022

$ 000

11,035

9,388
3,633

618
789

2,398
270

24,198

3722
3,722

1

Actual
2022
Notes $ '000
Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges B34 11,260
User charges and fees B2-2 2,466
Other revenues B2-3 1,712
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes B24 16,748
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes BZ4 15,505
Interest and investment income B2-5 122
Other ncome B2& 160
Total income from continuing operations 47,973
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs B 8,836
Materials and services B3-2 10,132
Borrowng costs B3-3 562
Depreciation, amortisation and impament of non-financial B34 7.945
assets v
Other axpenses B3 817
Net loss from the disposal of assets B4-1 2048
Total expenses from continuing operations 30,340
Operating result from continuing operations 17,633
Net operating result for the year attributable to Council 17,633
re r e nts a
Contributions provided for capita; purpases 2128

The abave Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Actual
2021
$'000

10,765
2919
1,090

11,926

20,028

174
46,968

8473
8346
485

7,608

1,751
2812

20475
17,493

17,493

{2,535)

Page 5of 85
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
ictes $ 000 $'000
Net operating result for the year - from Income Statement 17.633 17,493
Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently 1o the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaiuation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment C16 7,838 1133
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating
result 7.838 1,133
Total other comprehensive income for the year i 47,_838 1.133
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to Council 25471 18,626
The abave Statement of Comprehensive income should be read in conjunciion with fhe accompanying notes
Page 6 of 85
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
Péotes $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents CH-1 37,107 13,383
Receivables C13 3,021 5026
Inventories c14 326 355
Contract assets and contradt cost assets Ct5 5,584 717
Total current assets 46,038 26,181
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE) Ct6 489 847 469,004
Intangible assets C1-7 772 789
Right of use assets G2 128 246
Total non-current assets 490,745 470,039
Total assets 536,783 496,220
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables C3-t 4,458 2433
Contract liabilities c32 1,721 3412
Lease habiitiss C24 36 63
Bormowings C33 870 804
Employee benefit provisions Cas4 1,639 1912
Provisions c38 : 1,412 863
Total current liabilities 20,036 9,487
Non-current liabilities
Lease lisbilities C2-1 113 153
Borrowings C33 17,979 12,905
Provisions C35 2168 2659
Total non-current liabilities 20,260 15,717
Total liabilities 40,296 25204
Net assets 496,487 471,016
EQUITY
Accumuated surplus 189,010 171,377
IPPE revaluation reserve Cé-1 307,477 299 639
Council equity interest 496487 = 471016
Total equity 496,487 471,016
The above Statement of Financia Pasition should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
Page 7 of 85
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Statement of Changes in Equity | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

as at 30/06/22 as at 30/06/21
IPPE IPPE
Accumulated revaluation Total Accumulated revaluation Total
surplus reserve equity surplus reserve equity
Nates $'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Opening balance at 1 July 171,377 299,639 471,016 153,884 298,506 452,390
Restated opening balance 171,377 299,639 471,016 153,884 298,506 452,390
Met operating result for the year 17,633 - 17,633 17,493 - 17,493
Restated net operating result for the period 17,633 - 17,633 17,493 - 17,493
Other comprehensive income
Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment C1-6 - 7,838 7,838 - 1,133 1,133
Other comprehensive income - 7,838 7,838 - 1,133 1,133
Total comprehensive income 17,633 7,838 25,471 17,493 1,133 18,626
Closing balance at 30 June 189,010 307,477 496,487 171,377 299 639 471,016
The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
Page 80f85
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2022 2022 2021
$'000 Notes $ 000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
11,035 Rates and annual charges 11,316 10,984
2682 User charges and fees 3,007 3,102
120 Interest received 103 183
12,321 Grants and contnibutions 44,144 29518
— Bonds, deposits and retentions received 53 25
1,762 Other 1,550 187
Payments:
(9,388) Payments to employees (9,166) (8,349)
(3,633) Payments for materials and services (9,979) (10,071)
{618) Borrowing costs (471) (437)
{(2,398) Other _ (148) (807)
11,883 Netcash flows from operating activities G- 40,411 24335
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
~  Sale of real estate assels 49 324
2418 Proceeds from sale of IPPE 1.706 2,057
Payments:
(17,786) Payments for IPPE (23.434) (31,519)
- Purchase of intangible assels (80 (211)
(15,368) Netcash flows from investing activities ~ (21,760)  (29.349)
Cash flows from financing activities
Receipts:
5905 Proceeds from borowings 5,904 4049
Payments:
{803y Repayment of borrowings (764) (650)
(60)  Principal component of lease payments (67) (68)
5042 Netcash flows from financing activities 5073 3,331
1,557 Netchange in cash and cash equivalents 23,724 (1,683)
13,383 Cash and cash equivalenis at beginning of year - 13,383 15,066
14 840 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year lat - 37,07 13,383
The abave Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjuncion with the accompanying notes.
Page 9of 85
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

A About Council and these financial statements 12
A1-1 Basis of preparation 12

B Financial Performance 16
B1 Functions or activities 16
B1-1 Functions or achivities — income, expenses and assels 16
B1-2 Components of functions or activities 17

B2 Sources of income 19
B2-1 Rates and annual charges 19
B2-2 User charges and fees 20
B2-3 Other revenues 21
B2-4 Grants and contributions 22
B2-5 Interest and investment income 25
B2-6 Other income 25

B3 Costs of providing services 26
B3-1 Employee benefils and on-costs 26
B3-2 Matenals and services 27
B3-3 Borrowing costs 28
B34 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets 29
B3-5 Other expenses 30

B4 Gains or losses N
B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets 3

B6 Performance against budget 32
B5-1 Matenal budge! variations 32

C Financial position 34
C1 Assets we manage 34
C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents 34
C1-2 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 35
C1-3 Receivables a7
C14 Inventories 39
C1-5 Contract assets 40
C1-6 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 41
C1-7 Intangible assels 45

C2 Leasing activities 46
C2-1 Council as a lessee 46
C2-2 Council as a lessor 49

C3 Liabilities of Council 50
C3-1 Payables 50
C3-2 Contracl Liabilities 51
C3-3 Borrowings 52
C34 Employee benefit provisions 54
C3-5 Provisions 55
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

C4 Reserves 57
C4-1 MNature and purpose of reserves 57

D Council structure 58
D1 Resuits by fund 58
D1-1 Income Statement by fund 58

D1-2 Statement of Finanaal Position by fund 59

D2 Interests in other entities 60
D2-1 Subsidiaries, jeint arrangements and associates not recognised 60

E Risks and accounting uncertainties 61
E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held 61

E2-1 Fair value measurement 64

E3-1 Contingencies 67

F People and relationships 70
F1 Related party disclosures 70
F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP) 70

F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses 7

F2 Other relationships 72
F2-1 Audit fees 72

G Other matters 73
G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information 73

G2-1 Commitments 74

(G3-1 Events occurring after the reporting date 75

G4 Statement of developer conftributions as at 30 June 2022 76
G4-1 Summary of developer contributions 76

G4-2 Developer contributions by plan 77

G5 Statement of performance measures 78
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H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited) 81
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A About Council and these financial statements
A1-1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 24 August 2022. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Coundi to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financal statements are sel out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Austrakian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Govemment
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council is a not for-profit entity
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Unless otherwise indicated, &l amounts disclosed in the financial statemants are actual amounts. Specific budgetary amounts
have been included for comparative analysss (to actuals) in the following reports and notes:

* Income statement
« Statement of cash fiows
«  Note B5.-1 — Material budget variations

and are clearly marked.
COVID-18

The outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), declared by the Warld Health Organisation as a “Global Pandemic” on
11 March 2020, has impacted global financial markets. Travel restinctions have been impiemented by many countries

Counci did not identify any potential matenal adjustments required to be done as a result of the pandemic. Even though the
pandemic had a widespread effect on slowing down economies around the world, as at 30 June 2022 it is hard to predict any
significant future implications on Councill’s busness. Counal's busness operations remain on the same pattern. Coundd is not
aware of any post balance sheet date events which would result in separate disclosures or adjustments to the 30 June 2022
financaal results. Hence, 30 June 2022 financial statements were prepared on a going concem basis

Historical cost convention

These financial stalements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investmant propery

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accocunting estimates. it also requires management
to exerdse its judgament in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical expenence and other factors, including
expectatons of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed o be reasonable under
the crcumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumphions concaming the future The resulting accounting estimates wil, by definition, seldom
equal the related actua results. Estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following
financial statement notes:

{1} estimated fair values of infrastructure, propesty, plant and equipment — refer Note C1.6

(i) estimated tip remediation provisions - refer Note C3-5
(i) employee benefit provisions — refer Note C3-4.
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A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Significant judgements in applying the Council's accounting policies

i. Impairment of recetvables — refer Note C1-3.

i. Determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific and whether the condract is within the scope
of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and / or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities — refer to Notes
B2-2 -B24.

. Determination of the lease term, discount rate (when not implicit in the lease) and whether an arrangement coniains a
lease — refer to Note C2-1.

Monies and other assets received by Council
The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 40%(1) of the Local Govermnmment Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Coundil's Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be heid in the Council's Trust Fund.

Cash and other assats of the following entities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

General purpose operations
Tenterfield Water service
Tenterfield Sewerage service
Stormwater Management Fund
Waste Management Fund

Due to their immatenal value and nature, the foowing committees, entities and operations have been excluded from
consosdation:

Sir Henry Parkes Memonal Management Committee (Joint Committee);
Tenterfield Saleyards Advisory Commitiee;

Aborngnal Advisory Committee;

Heritage Advisory Committee;

ANZAC Centenary Steenng Committee; and

Disability, Inclusion and Access Advisory Committee.

The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1893 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the counal in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts refating to those monies. Trust monies and proparty subject to
Council's control have been included in these reports.

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the counci office by any person free of
charge

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised nel of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred 1s not
recoverable from the taxation authorty. In this case it 1s recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the assel or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payabies are stated inclusive of the amount of GST recetvable or payable. The netamountof GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables ar payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash fiows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows ansing from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authonty, are presented as operating cash flows

Volunteer services

Council doas not recognise services provided by volunteers in its income statement due to the immaterniaiaty and
unjustifiable cost of trying to reliably capture and assign a value to the many services volunteers in cur community provide.
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A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective
New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncemeants) have been pubished by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2022 reporting penod.

Council has elecied not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before ther operative dates.

Council's assassment of these new standards and interpretations (where they have been deemed as having a maternal impact
on Council's future financial performance, financial positon and cash flows) are set out below:

AASB 2020-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current; and AASB 2020-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Classification of Liabifities as Curremt
or Non-current — Deferral of Effective Date

AASB 2020-1 amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements to dlarify requirements for the presentstion of liabilities
in the statement of financal posdion as curent or non-current.

For exampla the amendments clarify that a hability is classified as non-current if an entity has the nght at the end of the
reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting pericd. The meaning of setfiement
of a liability is also clarified.

Council does not expect any material impact from the above amendments and to its classification of liabilities as
current or non-current.

This standard has an effective date for the 30 June 2024 reporting period.

AASB 2020-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Annual Improvements 2018 - 2020 and Other
Amendments

This Standard amends a number of standards as follows:

= AASB 1 fo simplify the application of AASB 1 by a subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter after its parent in relation
to the measurement of cumulative transiabion differences,

» AASB 3to update a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the accounting
requirements for business combinations,

« AASE 9to darnfy the fees an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability,

« AASB 116 to require an enlity to recognise the sales proceeds from selling items produced while preparing property,
plant and equipment for its intended use and the related cost in profit or loss, instead of deducting the amounts received
from the cost of the asset,

= AASB 137 to specify the costs that an entity includes when assessing whether a contract will be loss-making, and

= AASB 141 to remove the requiremant to exclude cash flows from taxation when measuring fasr value, theraby aligning
the fair value measurament requiraments in AASB 141 with those in other Australian Accounting Standards,

Council does not expect any material impact from the above amendments.
This standard has an effective date for the 30 June 2023 reporting period.

AASB 2021-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition
of Accounting Estimates [amends AASB 7, AASB 101, AASB 108, AASB 134 & AASB Practice Statement 2]

This Standard amends a number of standards as follows:

AASS 7 to clarify that infarmation about measurement bases for finandal instruments is axpected to be matenal to an entity’s
financial statements;

AASEH 101 to require entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies;

AASB 108 to danfy how entities should distinguish changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates,
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A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

AASB 134 to dentify matenal accounting policy information as a component of a complete set of financial statements, and
AASB Practice Statement 2 to provide guidance on how to apply the concept of materiaity to accounting policy disclosures.
Above amendments might result in reductions in quantum of accounting policies disciosures to focus on key decision
areas and material policies only. Council does not expect any material impact on reported financial performance or
position.

This standard has an effective date for the 30 June 2024 reporting period

Apart from the standards listed above there ara no other released standards and interpretations (with future effective dates)
that are expected to have a material impact on Counci

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before ther operative dates.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted all accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australlan Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatonly effective from the frst time at 30 June 2022

None of the newly adopted standards had a material impact on Council's reported financial position, finandal performance
and/lor associated financial statement disclosures.
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B Financial Performance
B1 Functions or activities

B1-1 Functions or activities —income, expenses and assets

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities. Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Income Expenses Operating result Grants and contributions Carrying amount of assets
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 " 2022 2021
$ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ '000 $'000

Functions or activities
Civic Office - 16 - 405 - (389) = 16 = 262
Organisation and Leadership - - - 817 - (817) - - - -
Community Development - 10 - 188 - (178) - 10 - 354
Economic Growth and Tourism - 1,100 - 1,411 - (311) - 1,062 - 2,043
Theatre and Museum Complex - 72 - 259 - (187) - (21) - 196
Finance and Technology - 8,126 - 1,059 = 7,067 = 3,387 = 9,317
Corporate and Govemance - 1 - 688 - (68T) - - - 576
Workforce Development - 262 - 1,507 - (1,245) - 52 - -
Library Services - 86 - 466 - (380) - &1 - 131
Emergency Services - 37 - 639 - (322) - 316 - 634
Asset Management and Resourcing = 1 = 647 = (646) = - = 2035
Commercial Works = 283 = 195 = 88 - - - _
Environmental Management - 503 - 638 - (135) - 498 - 23
Planning and Regulation - 1,808 - 582 - 1,226 - 909 - 334
Plant, Fleet and Equipment - 70 - (511) - 581 - - = 7,967
Buildings and Amenities - 1,838 - 1,428 - 410 - 1,579 - 10,851
Livestock Saleyards = 103 - 135 - (32) - - - 2,295
Parks, Gardens and Open Space = 135 - 1,115 - (980) - 21 - 10,025
Swimming Complex - 20 - 189 - (169) - 20 - 961
Stormwater and Drainage - 74 - 100 - (26) - 2 - 3,740
Transport Network - 22,158 = 10,846 = 11,312 = 22,076 = 377,578
Sewerage Services - 2712 - 1,674 - 1,038 - 16 - 27,356
Waste Management - 2,857 - 2453 - 404 - 72 - 8,022
Water Supply - 4416 - 2545 - 1,871 - 1,858 - 31,520
Other - - - - - - 32,253 - 536,783 -
Total functions and activities - 46,968 - 29475 - 17,493 32,253 31,954 536,783 496,220

(1) Contributions in amount of $2_133 thousand were included in 2020 for comparative purposes
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B1-2 Components of functions or activities

Details relating to the Council's functions or activities as reported in B1-1 are as follows:
Civic Office

Corporate affairs and relations; the governance framework; overall corporate performance and reporting; community advocacy,
mayoral, councilior and committes support, and meda and external communications

Organisation and Leadership

Collaboration vath other organisations and govemments; confinual improvement, overall strategic direction of the administrative
arm; community engagement, administrative support; service integration and corporate advertising.

Community Development

Community engagement, development of partnerships, indigenous affairs, inclusiveness, accessible services, supporting
diversity and cultural events.

Economic Growth and Tourism

Community prospertly, tourism, conneclivily, partnering, promoticn and livabilty. The Office of the Chief Executive directly
oversees thesa outcomes

Theatre and Museum Complex

Sir Henry Parkes School of Art; cultura diversity, events and art activities; youth engagement; volunteering; and festivals.
Finance and Technology

Information technology; financial sustanabiity and advise, investments, finandal capacly, procurement compliance;
reguiatoryand stalufory compliance; business systems; property siralegy, overall management and register, land mapping
service (GIS).

Corporate and Govermance

Statutory reporting, businass processes and integration; procurement compiiance; audd; community nvolvement, customer
service; governance, information technology and nformation management; insurance, risk and business continuity, registers
and records management, legal services and elechon support.

Workforce Development

Workpiace health and wellbeing, planning and culture; workers compensation; workforce performance; training; recruitment,
selection and retention; and internal communications.

Library Services

Home services, vision impaired; review and updating collections; exchanges; internet and Wi Fi access, accessible technology:
exhibitions; online training and resources; research and reference services, and the management of corporate art and
memorabilia

Emergency Services

Integrating land use pdicies to support emergancy management, disaster management, review of emergency management
plans; inter-agency communication and coliaboration; and rural addressing.

Asset Management and Resourcing

Review, investigation, survey, design, development and project management; asset irvestigation, planning, policy formulation
and management (both as a bureau service to whote organisation and for transport infrastructure).

Commercial Works
Private works management, benchmarking, offsetting costs through oreating synergies.
Environmental Management

Education; noxious plants; feral pests (advocacy), illegal dumping and poliution, and roads & footpath regulatory enforcement

continued on next page ... Page 17 of 86

Attachment 1 - Draft Financial Statements 2021-22 Page 228



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1
2021/2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO BE Draft Financial
REFERRED FOR AUDIT Statements 2021-22

Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financal Statements 30 June 2022

B1-2 Components of functions or activities (continued)

Planning and Regulation

Development planning, controls, assessment and ceritcation; regulation of premises, built envronment, urban design, land
use data, mapping and reporting; building and assessment advice; hentage; domestic animals; public health and pollution.

Plant, Fleet and Equipment
Effective prowision and managemant of plant, fleet, equipment, store and depots; and tendering and procurement.
Buildings and Amenities

Energy management and conservation, asset planning and maintenance scheduling; building and amenities utilisation, income
generation and administration.

Livestock Saleyards
Ptanning, development, maintenance, operabions and administration of the Saleyards
Parks, Gardens and Open Space

Consultation, planning, development, increasing patronage; amenity; maintenance and operations; public art; cycleways;
public trees; sportsgrounds (adive and passive); cleanliness and administration.

Swimming Complex
Service provision, regulatory compliance, planning; supervision of patrons; and management.
Stormwater and Drainage

Ongoing management and improvement of ali stormwatear infrastructure, gross pollutant traps, natural urban waterways and
erosion control apparatus

Transport Network

Sustainable management and improvement of all infrastructure used to facilitate transportation: vehicular, aviation, pedestrian
and cyclists; car parking; quarries; delineation, ine marking, signage and lighting; regulatory compliance; emergency response
and on-call; traffic committee administration; and risk metigation.

Sewerage Services

Ongoing calchment, transporiation, and treatment,; monitoring, reporting, environmental compliance and emergency
management, frade waste and commerdial, fees and charges; public education and adminsstration.

Waste Management
Ongoing and sustainably managing waste: reduction; recycing; landfill remedsation and development, and public education
Water Supply

Ongoing water catchment, storage, treatment, distribution, monitoring, regulating, reporting, compliance, charging and
administration.
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B2 Sources of income

B2-1 Rates and annual charges

2022 2021

$°000 $°000
Ordinary rates
Residential 2122 2,107
Farmiland 2,368 2321
Mining 10 10
Business 32 280
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) (130) {136)
Rates levied to ratepayers 4,692 4,582
Pensioner rate subsidies receved 73 75
Total ordinary rates 4765 4,657
Annual charges
{rrsuant 10 5456 40N 5 988 sSNT A ST
Domestic waste management services 1,080 1,015
Stormwater management services n 70
Water supply services 1,364 1,294
Seworage services 2,545 2,394
Waste management services (non-domestic) 180 180
Waste managemert faciity charge 1,342 1,254
Less: pansioner rebates (mandatory) (217) {218)
Annual charges levied 6,376 5,989
Pensioner subsidies received:
- Water 30 30
- Sewerage n 27
— Domestic waste management 63 62
Total annual charges 6,495 6,108
Total rates and annual charges 11,260 10,765
Timing of revenue recognition for rates and annual charges
Rates and annual charges recognised at a point in time (2) 11260 10,765
Total rates and annual charges 11,260 10,765

Council has used 2019 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates

Accounting policy

Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue at the beginning of the rating period to which they relate. Prepaid rates
are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rabates ralate to reductions n rates and certain annual charges for sligible pensioners’ place of residance in the
local govermment councd area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Govemment to provide a contnbution towards the pensioner rebates and
are recognised within the underlying revenue item based on their substance.
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B2-2 User charges and fees

Timing 2022 2021
$ 000 $'000

Specific user charges
(per 5.502 - specific "actual use' charges)
Water supply services 1 1,116 1,299
Sewerage services 1 126 173
Wasle management services (non-domestic) 1 272 304
Trade waste 1 18 27
Total specific user charges 1,632 1,803
Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges - statutory and regulatory functions (per 5.608)
Inspection servicas 2 19 21
Planning and buiding regulation 2 363 334
Private works — section 67 2 118 283
Section 603 certfficates 2 7 38
Other 2 - 1
Companion animals 2 3 4
Local government and health act fees 2 10 9
Total fees and charges — statutory/regulatory B {ﬂ 690
{ii) Fees and charges — other {(incl. general user charges (per s.608))
Aerodrome 2 1 1
Cemeteries 2 121 113
Saleyards 2 120 103
Toursm 2 7 32
Cirema 2 44 26
Library 2 4 5
Museum and theatre 2 3 53
Service installation 2 25 55
Othar 2 31 38
Total fees and charges - other 384 426
Total other user charges and fees 934 1,116
Total user charges and fees 2,466 2919
Timing of revenue recognition for user charges and fees
User charges and fees recognised over time (1) 1,532 1,803
User charges and fees recognised at a point in time (2) 934 1,116
Total user charges and fees | 2,466 2,919

Accounting policy
Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obigation is compieted and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service, the customer is required 1o pay on amval or a deposit in advance.
There is no material obigation for Council in relation to refunds or retums.

Where an upfront fee is charged the fee is recognised on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-lerm or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the icence is granted rather than over the term of the licence.
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B2-3 Other revenues

Timing 022 2021
----- $ '000 $'000
Diesel rebate 2 60 70
Recycling income (non-domestic) 2 89 52
Insurance rebates 2 2 27
Sale of surplus material 2 1 1
Found assets 2 - 532
Traning reimbursement 2 300 180
Net effed from de-recognition of remedsation provisions . . 1119 4
Other 2 3 116 224
Total other revenue 1,712 1.090
Timing of revenue recognition for other revenue
Other revenue recognised over time (1) - -
Cther revenue recognised at a point in time (2) 1,712 1,090
Total other revenue 1,712 1,090

Accounting policy for other revenue
Where the revenue is eamed the provison of specified goods / services under an enforceable contract, revenue s recognised
when or as the the obligations are satished

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received or when
the penally has been apphed, whichever occurs fiest

Cther revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever
occurs first.
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B2-4 Grants and contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
Timing $ '000 $ '000 $ 000 $ 000
General purpose grants and non-developer
contributions {untied)
General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance — general component 2 1,807 1,636 - -
Financial assistance ~ local roads component 2 920 824 = _
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance — general component 2 2774 1,750 - -
Financial assistance — local roads component 2 1419 885 - -
Amount recognised as income during current
year 6,920 5,095 - -
Special purpose grants and non-developer
confributions (tied)
Cash contributions
Water supplies 1 53 - 1516 862
Bushfire and emergency services 2 145 136 - 20
Community centres 1 - - 6 337
Economic development 2 135 89 - -
Environmental programs 2 - 18 - -
Heritage and cultural 1.2 104 1,227 184 1,590
Library 2 62 62 19 19
LIRS subsidy 2 15 19 - -
Noxious weeds 1.2 165 498 - -
Recreation and cullure 2 40 29 245 2
Community development 2 343 9 - -
Public conveniences 1 - - (62) 144
Street lighting 2 3 66 - -
Town planning 12 80 50 1 139
Waste management 2 - - 88 50
Disaster recovery 2 5,593 1,261 - -
Transport (roads to recovery) 2 1,081 1,567 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 12 204 16 13,238 15,844
Critical drought initiative 2 - - - 793
Other councils — joint works/services 1 126 133 - -
Transport for NSW contributions (regional roads, block
grant) 2 1,694 1,504 = —
FBT contributions 2 51 52 = -
Waste management services 2 4 5 /-~ —
Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions — cash 9,828 6831 15246 19,800
Total special purpose grants and
non-developer contributions (tied) 9,828 6,831 15246 19,800
Total grants and non-developer
contributions 16,748 11926 15,245 19,800
Comprising:
— Commonweaith funding 9,704 8,333 10,607 5963
— State funding 6,813 3,503 4639 13837
- Other funding 231 - (1) -
16,748 11,926 15245 19,800
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Developer contributions

Operating Operating Capital Captal
2022 201 2022 2021
Timng $ 000 $'000 $ 000 $ ‘000
Developer contributions: M
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the
LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.11 — contributions towards
amenities/sarvices 2 - - 212 197
S 64 — water supply contributions 2 - - 23 15
S 64 — sewerage service contributions 2 - - 25 16
Total developer contributions — cash - - 260 228
Total developer contributions - - 260 228
Total contributions - - 260 228
Total grants and contributions 16,748 11926 15505 20,028
Timing of revenue recognition for grants and
contributions
Grants and confributions recognised over time (1) 178 133 1,470 1,343
Grants and confributions recognised at a point in time
{2) 16,569 11,793 14,035 18,685
Total grants and contributions 16,748 11,926 15,505 20,028
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Unspent grants and contributions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on the condition they be spent in a specified manner or in a future
period but which are not yet spent in accordance with those conditions are as follows:

Operating Operating Capital Capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
Naoies slm 5'(X)0 ‘.m slooo
Grants
Unspent grants at 1 July 1,207 2,626 3577 946
Add: Funds recognised as revenue
in the reporting year but not yet
spent in accordance with the
condiions 2,628 1,180 445 154
Add; grants received for the
provision of goods and
services in a future penod - - 11,490 3412
Less: Funds recognised as revenue
in previous years that have
been spent during the reporting
year (1,189) (2,196) (154) (426)
Less: Funds received in prior year
~ but revenue recognised and
funds spent in current year - (412). (B3412) (509
Unspent grants at 30 June 2,548 1,207 11,946 3,577
Contributions Gt
Unspent contnbutions at 1 July - - 222 -
Add: contributions recognised as
revenue in the reporting year
but not yet spent in accordance
with the conditions - - 248 222
Less: contributions recognised as
revanue in previous years that
have besn spant during the
reporting year — - - -
Unspent contributions at 30
June i - - B 470 222

Accounting policy
Grants and contributions - enforceable agreement with sufficiently specific performance obligations

Grant and contribution revenue from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance
obligations is recognised as or when control of each perfarmance obligations is transferred.

The performance cbligations may vary according to the agreement. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant,
cash is received upfront for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Performance obligations may be satisfied either at a point in tme or over time and this is reflected in the revenue recognition
pattem. Point in time recognition occurs when the baneficiary obtains control of the goods / servicas at a single time (e.g.
completion of the project when a report / outcome is provided), whereas over time recognition is where the control of the
senices is ongoing throughout the project (e.g. provision of community heaith services through the year).

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropnate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Capital grants
Capital grants received by Counal under an enforceable contract for the acquisition or constructon of infrastructure, property,

plant and equipment to identified specifications which will be under Councif's control on completion are recognised as revenue
as and when the obligation to construct or purchase s completed
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)
For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project.
For acquisitions of assets, the revenue s recognisad when the asset is acquired and contralled by the Council
Developer contributions

Councit has obligations to provide facikties from contribution revenues levied on developers undar the provisions of sections
74,711 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP8A Act).

While Council generally incorporates these amounis as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributiors
are only racognised as income upon receipt by Counal, due to the possibility that individual deveicpment consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Counci

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but Council may
apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules for the contribution plan.

Other grants and contributions

Assets, including cash, received from other grants and contributions are recognised at fair value when the asset is received.
Councit considers whether there are any ralated liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the tme
that the asset is recewed

B2-5 Interest and investment income

2022 2021
$ ‘000 %000
Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost
-~ Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 70 33
— Cash and investmants 52 33
Total interest and investment income (losses) i 122 66
Interest and investment income is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
General Council cash and investments 122 66
Total interest and investment income 1 122 66
Accounting policy
Interast income s recognised using the effective nterest rate at the date that interest is eamed
B2-6 Other income
2022 2021
Heotes $°000 $'000
Rental income
Other lease income
Counci owned property 160 174
Total other lease income ] 160 174
Total rental income c2:2 160 174
Total other income , 160 174
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B3  Costs of providing services

B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs

2022 2021

$°000 $°000

Salaries and wages 7,525 7.50
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 1,345 1513
Superannuation 880 880
Workers’ compensation insurance 186 188
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 39 46
Other a2 45
Total employee costs 10,017 10,263
Less: capialised costs H (1,181) (1,790)
Total employee costs expensed 8,836 8473

Accounting policy
Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Councd contributes to various defined
benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expanse as they become payable, Prepaid contrbutions are
recognised as an assel 1o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is avaslable

Council participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes
payable — refer to Note E3-1 for more information
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B3-2 Materials and services

2022 2021
Notes $'000 $'000
Raw matenals and consumables 3,292 2,752
Contractor and consuitancy costs 4818 3514
Audit Fees 2-1 60 50
Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses F1-2 184 182
Advertising 36 127
Cleaning 42 57
Election expenses 84 -
Electricity and heating 27 23
Insurance 523 461
Postage 3 42
Printing and stationery N 15
Street lighting 127 117
Subscriptions and publications 137 223
Telephone and communications 258 248
Travel expenses 10 4
Traning costs (other than salarnies and wages) 75 133
Other expenses 107 119
Legal expenses: other M 37
Other 4 14
Total materials and services 10,132 8,346
Total materials and services 10,132 8,346
Accounting policy
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the council receives the goods or services
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B3-3 Borrowing costs

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
(i) Interest bearing liability costs
Interest on leases 9 7
Interest on loans 522 463
Total interest bearing liability costs 531 470
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 531 470
(ii) Other borrowing costs
— Remediation Eabilities 4 H 15
Total other borrowing costs 31 15
Total borrowing costs expensed | 562 485

Accounting policy
Bomowing costs are expensed as incurred
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B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets

2022 2021

Nates s ‘000 $ '000
Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 779 646
Office equipment 55 45
Fumiture and fittings 4 5
Land improvements (depreciabie) 36 36
Infrastructure: €16
— Buildings 846 772
— Other structures 182 118
- Roads 3,306 3,204
— Bridges 926 941
- Footpaths 42 42
- Stormwater drainage 100 100
- Water supply network 718 71
- Sewerage network 493 488
~ Swimming pools 25 21
- Other open space/recreatonal assets 148 108
Right of use assets c2-1 120 85
Other assets:
— Library books 3N 24
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets:
- Tip assets 161 333
- Quarry assets ¢ 16 6
Intangible assets c17 97 151
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 8,085 7,836
Less: capitalised costs {140 _(228)
Total depreciation and amortisation costs | 7945 7,608
Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment for
non-financial assets )] 7,945 7,608

Accounting policy

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are induded in Note C1-6 for IPPE assets and Note C1-7 for intangible assets

Depreciation is capitalised where in-house assets have contributed to new assets.

Impairment of non-financlal assets

Councit assets held at faer vaiue that are nol held primarily for their abshity to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to
be speciahised, are not lested for imparment since these assets are assessed on an annual basis 1o ensure that the carrying
amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment loss would be captured during this assessment.

Intangible assels nol yel available for use, are tested annually far impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other non-financiad assets that do not meet the criteria above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s camying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset agamst the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with only the excess lo be recognised in the Income Statement.
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B3-5 Other expenses

Receivables write-off
Other
Total impairment of receivables

Other

Grants funded rates credit

Grants funded donations, contributions and assistance 1o other
organisations (incl. Section 356)

Council funded donations, contributions and assistance to other
organisations (incl, Section 356)

Emergency services levy (includes FRNSW, SES, and RFS levies)
Total other

Total other expenses

Accounting policy

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
- 25

- 25

= 493

3 603
66 126
374 504
817 1,726
817 1,751

Cther expenses are recorded on an accruals basis when Council has an obligation for the expenses

Impaimment expenses are recognised when identified
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B4  Gains or losses

B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

2022 2021

Notes $°000 $°000
Gain (or loss) on disposal of plant and equipment -1-8
Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 1,708 2,057
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold'wntien off i (1,880) (2,347)
Gain (or loss) on disposal (1785) (290)
Gain (or loss) on disposal of infrastructure €15
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off (1,884) {2,564)
Gain (or loss) on disposal (1,884) (2,564)
Gain (or loss) on disposal of real estate assets held for sale
Proceeds from disposal - real estate assets 49 324
Less: carrying amount of real estate assets soldwritten off . (38) (282)
Gain (or loss) on disposal 1 42
Net gain (or loss) from disposal of assets (2,048)  (2,812)

Accounting policy
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are includad in the Income
Statement

Non-infrastructure assets

The gan or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the
asset is de-recognsed

Infrastructure assets

Itis not common for infrastructure assets fo be sold. De-recognition of carrying value of infrastructure assets usually ocaurs in
cases of replacement or when they are no longer serviceable. Physical replacement of infrastructure assets result in foss from
disposal of replaced assets through profit and loss account. Renewal works which represent reversal of consumed service

potential add up to the camrying value of the asset.
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B5S Performance against budget
BS-1 Material budget variations

Council's onginal budget was adopted by the Council on 3105/2021 and is not required to be audited. The ariginal projections
on which the budget was based have been affected by a number of factors. These include state and federal govermment
decisions, including new grant programs, changing economic activity, environmental factors, and by decisions made by
Counai.

While these General Purpose Financial Statements indude the orniginal budget adopted by Councd, the Ad requires Council to
review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so it is able to manage the variation between actuals and budget that invanably
occur during the year.

Material variations of more than 10% between original budget and actual results or where the vanance is considered material
by nature are explained below.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavowrable budget variation

2022 2022 2022
$ "000 Budget Actual <o Variance ——
Revenues
Rates and annual charges 11,036 11,260 225 2% F
User charges and fees 2,682 2,466 (216) 8)% U
Other revenues 1,762 1,712 (50) 3)% U
Operating grants and contributions 8,600 16,748 8,148 95% F
Capital grants and contributions 372 15,605 11,784 3% F
Interest and investment revenue 120 122 2 2% F
Other income - 160 160 = F
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B5-1 Material budget variations (continued)

$ 000

Expenses

Employee benefits and on-costs
Materials and services

Borrowing costs

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of

non-financial assets
Other expenses
Net losses from disposal of assets

2022 2022 2022
Budget Actual < Variance ——

9,388 8,836 552 6% F

3,633 10,132 (6,499) (179)% U
618 562 56 9% F

7,891 7,945 (54) Mm% v

2,398 817 1.581 66% F
270 2,048 (1,778) (659)% U

Includes amount of write offs of undepreciated components of renewed infrastructure assets. It is hard to budget for this

category of loss.

Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

11,883 40411 28,528 280% F
(15,368) (21,760) (6,392) 2% U
5,042 5,073 £ 1% F
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C Financial position
C1 Assets we manage

C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

$°000 $'000
Cash assets
Cash on hand and at bank 30,726 8631
Cash equivalent assets
- Deposits at call 6,000 4370
Trust account J - 382 382
Total cash and cash equivalents 37,107 13,383
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 37,07 13,383
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows - 371107 13,383

Accounting policy

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents indude: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial nstitutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with origina! matunties of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insgnificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.
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C1-2 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments

2022 2021

$ ‘000 $ 000

(a) Externally restricted cash,
cash equivalents and
investments

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 37,107 13,383
Less: Extemally restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments 31626 14 583
Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external
restrictions { 5481 (1,200)
External restrictions
External restrictions — included in liabilities
Extemal restrickons included in cash, cash equivalents and investments above comprise
Spedific purpose unexpanded grants — general fund 11,132 3413
Speafic purpose unexpendead grants — water fund 588 -
External restrictions - included in liabilities 1{.720 3413
External restrictions — other
Extemnal restrictions induded in cash, cash equivalents and invesiments above
comprise:
Speafic purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) — general fund
{including waste and stormwater) 2,654 1345
Spedfic purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) — waler fund 28 -
Bruxner Way widening (RMS) - 26
Developer contributions — general (including waste and stormwater) 388 222
Developer contributions — water fund 38 —
Developer contributions — sewer fund 41 -
RFS reserves 92 -
Water fund 2,180 500
Sewer fund 5,704 4846
Domestic waste management 7,373 3,109
Stormwater management 1,026 1,032
Trust fund 382 -
External restrictions — other 19906 11,170
Total external restrictions 31,626 14 583

Cash, cash equivalents and investments subject 1o external restrictons are thase which are only avadable for specific use
by Council due i a restriction placed by fegisiation or third-party contractual agreement.
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C1-2 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

2022 2021

$ ‘000 $ '000
(b) Internal allocations
Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external
restrictions 5481 (1,200)
Less: Intemally restricted cash, cash equivalents and invesiments 5,000 -
Unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 481 (1,200)
Internal allocations
At 30 June, Counal has internally alfocated funds to the following:
Spedial projects 6,000 .
Total internal allocations 5,000 .

Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to extermnal restrictions may be intemally aliocated by resolution or
policy of the elected Counal

2022 2021
$'000 $'000

(c) Unrestricted and unallocated
Unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 481 (1,200)
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C1-3 Receivables

2022 2022 201 2021
Current Nen-current Current Non-cusrent
$ 000 $'000 $ ‘000 $ 000
Rates and annual charges 396 - 452 -
Interast and extra charges 79 - 62 -
User charges and fees 486 - 775 -
Private works B - 86
Accrued revenues
— Interest on investments 3 - 1
Government agency receivables 1,287 - 3,036 -
Net GST receivabie 708 - 628 -
Other debtors 36 - 41 _
Total 3.076 - 5,081 -
Less: provision for impairment
Other debtors (55) - (55)
Total provision for impairment —
receivables (55) - (55)
Total net receivables 3,021 - 5,026 -
Externally restricted receivables
Water supply
— Rates and availabidity charges 69 - 67 -
- Other 625 - 1,079 -
Sewerage services
Rates and availabdity charges 118 - 122 _
- Other 60 - 99 -
Domestic waste management 209 - 213 -
Stormwater management S - 4. -
Total external restrictions 1,085 - 1,584 -
Unrestricted receivables 1,936 - 3,442 -
Total net receivables 3,021 - 5,026 -
2022 2021
$ 000 $'000

Movement in provision for impairment of receivables

Balance at tha beginning of the year (calculated in accordance with AASB 139) 56 55
Balance at the end of the year 56 55
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C1-3 Receivables (continued)

Accounting policy

Receivables are recognised indtially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Recewvables are generally due for settiement within 30 days.

Impairment
Impairment of finanaal assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expedted aedit loss (ECL) basis.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recogniton, and when
estimating ECL, the Council considers reascnable and suppartable information that is relevant and available vathout undue
cost or effort. This indudes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council's historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and induding forward-looking informaton.

When considering the ECL for rates dabtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property s next sold. For nonrates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 60 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.
The Council uses the prasantation that a financial asset is in default when
« the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations 1o the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to actions
such as realising security (if any is held) or
« the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 0 days past due.

Credtt losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows dus 1o the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability wexghted approach

Counci uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.
There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the cument reporting penod.

The Coundal writes off a frade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.
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C14 Inventories

2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
$'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000
(i) Inventories at cost
Real estate for resale 32 - 70 -
Stores and materials 284 - 285 -
Total inventories at cost 326 - 355 -
Total inventories 326 - 355 -
(i) Other disclosures
2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current  Non-cument
jot $'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000
(a) Details for real estate development
Residential 32 - 70 -
Total real estate for resale 32 = 70 .
{Valued 2 the lower of cost and net reaisable value)
Represented by:
Acquisition costs 32 - 70 -
Total costs 32 = 70 —
Total real estate for resale 32 = 70 —
Movements:
Real estate assets at beginning of the year 70 - 352 -
-~ WDV of sales (expense) B4-1 (38) - {282) -
Total real estate for resale 32 - 70 -

Accounting policy

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

Raw matenals and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned 1o individual tems of inventory an the basis of weighted average costs. Casts of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

Land held for resale

Land hekl for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by spectfic identification and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development and bormowing costs during development. When development is completed,

borrowing costs and other hoiding charges are expensed as incured.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are thase costs that would have been avoidad if the expenditure
on the acguisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while active development is

interrupted for extended penods are recognised as expenses.
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C1-5 Contract assets

2022 2022 2021 2021

Current Non-current Current Non-current

$ 000 $'000 $ ‘000 $'000

Contract assets 5,584 - 7417 -

Total contract assets 5584 - 7417 -

Contract assets

Grant Contract Asset (AASB 1058 - asset

exemption) 4264 - 4482 -

Accrued Income (AASB 1058) 1,194 - 2,802 -

Contract Asset (AASB 15) 126 - 133 -

Total contract assets _ 5,584 - 7417 -

Significant changes in contract assets

Contract Assets relating to work for external parties (AASB 15)

No significant changes - consistent with prior year

Grant Contract Assets - work related to infrastructure grants (AASB 1058 - Asset Exemption)
No significant changes - consistant with prior year

Accrued Income - not specific or not enforceable grants (AASB 1058)

Drop was largerly attributed to funds receipted o cover expenditure incurrad on DRFA disaster recovery prajeds in 2021
financial year.

Accounting policy

Contract assets
Contract assets represent Councils right to payment in exchange for goods or services the Council has transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time.

Contract assels arise when the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of vanous milestones established in
the contract and therefore the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily concide with the amounts
billed to or certified by the customer. Once an invoice or payment claim is raised or the refevant milestone s reached, Council
recognises a receivable.

Impairment of contract assets is assessed using the smplified expected aedit loss model where lifetime credit losses are
recognised on initial recogniion.
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C1-6 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

e 1 by T Hussat mossmants Aing the repeting pedlod e 10 Jone TR
Rerwabsaton
Anoumudated [ Trars s b o ramerts! Rovduation A cumudatin ™

Gross camying degraciation caming Moo Addiorsnew  Caming ke ol Depraciation Adjsimans and Fackass i ravedidion  inpaimenii et o Gross caming dipredaion camng
By aggregalad amaunt ard impaimet amewt ranavals A dzpads L P traratars ranaters catone prcdgan @ty AR @ty (ARR amewt andimpaiTant amoit
asset class £00C £000 E00C £ 00 £ £ 000 £000 £'o00 £ 000 S000 £ oo & 0oC §'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 0
Capital wark in progress 16,056 - 16,056 3,046 11,873 - - (7.803) - - (5) - - 20,678 - 22 678
Plant and equipment 16,383 16,653) 9,430 2,170 H [1,880) (779) 2 - - - - - 16,708 (7732) 8,977
Office equipment 724 (388) 335 - 45 - (55) - - - - - - 770 {444) 328
Fumiture and fitings 155 (138) 17 - - - (4 - - - - - - 155 (142) 13
Land:
— Crown land - managed by councl 1278 - 1278 - - - - - - 223 - - - 1,502 - 1,502
— Crown land - dewohved to council 2,750 - 2,750 - - - - - - (223) - - - 2,527 - 2,527
— Operational land 3008 - 3905 - - - - - - - - - - 3,005 - 3,005
— Community land 1,828 - 14825 - - - - - - - - - - 1,528 - 1,825
— Land under roads {post 30/&/08) 10 - 10 - - - - - - - - - - 10 - 10
Land improvements — depreciable 1,758 (6186) 1,142 - - - (36) - - - - - - 1,758 (652) 1,106
Infrastructure:
— Buildings 32,850 (17.671) 15,278 166 541 (50) (848) 387 - - - - - 33,508 (18.408) 15,488
— Other structures 4,080 {1,794) 3,166 - 7 - (182) - - - - - - 4,967 (1.878) 2,091
— Roads 268,882 [52,429) 216,453 2,156 1.0 (1.134) (3,208) - - - - - - 270,357 (55,167 215,190
— Bridges 80,403 [41,344) 48,050 1,831 - (BEE) (826) 4,001 - - - - - 00,278 (37 .002) 52,377
— Footpaths 3,374 (915) 2,459 - - - 42) - - - - - - 3,374 (as5a) 2,416
— Bulk earthworks (non-depreciable) 23,783 - 23783 159 - - - - - - - - - a3,922 - |3.822
— Storrmwater drainage 8,305 [4,650) 3,738 a3 13 1) (100) - - - - - - 8.431 (4720} 3,711
— Water supply netwark 58,672 (34,813 23,859 - 2 - (T18) 3,582 - - - - 8984 66,057 (30328) 35,728
— Sewerage network 34,217 (12,537) 21,680 - 86 - [483) - - - - {(1.158) - 31.622 [11.524) 20,008
- Swimming poals 1,408 (1.047) 361 - - - (25 - - - - - - 1,408 (1072) 336
— Other open spaceirecrestional assets 2,056 (708) 2,248 11 174 [10) [148) - - - - - - 3,130 (B53) 2,277
Other assets:
— Library books 167 {60) 107 - - - 33) - - - - - - 167 (84 73
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration assets
{refer Hote C3-5):
— Tip assets 3,124 (1.810) 1.214 - - - [181) - 1.114 - - - - 3.440 (1.273) 2,167
— Cuarry sssefs 105 (23) 82 - - - (18) - 47 - - - - 152 (409 112
Total infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 647,010 (178,006 469,004 9,704 13,777 (3,763) (7, 868) = 1,161 = (5) (1,156) 8,934 663,133 (173,286) 489 84T
(1) Renswslsare defined as the replacement of existing assets (as apposed to the acquisition of new assets).
continued on next page Page 41 of 85

Attachment 1 - Draft Financial Statements 2021-22 Page 252



Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1
2021/2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO BE REFERRED FOR AUDIT Draft Financial Statements 2021-22

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

C1-6 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

A1y F0E0 et ManTants g the neporting perod A8 30 June 2021
Foevakuation
Mat TS Mgt

Giroas caTyng carrying Jov— als Adtiorsnew  Camying valueof Depreciation at impaiTrent to Gross camying carying
By agyregand amount amcunt anets dispcsals AT FV thiough Eoulty ] ety (ARFR) ot amount
asset dass D00 £ 000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ '000 £ 000 £ 000 £ "000 £ 000
Capital work in progress 7177 - TA77 2,800 7,850 - - (1.781) - - - - 16,056 - 16,056
Plantand equipment 14,747 (6.649) 8098 2,865 1,306 (2347) (646) &0 5 - - - 16,383 16,853) 8,430
Office equipment 871 (344) 327 - 53 - [45) - - - - - 724 (380) 335
Fumiture and fittings 155 (133) 22 - - - [5) - - - - - 155 (138) 17
Land:
— Operational land 3,441 - 3441 - 21 - - - - 532 - - 3,005 - 3,005
— Community land 1.414 - 1414 - - - - - - - - 111 1,525 - 1,525
— Crown land - managed by counci 1,202 - 1202 - - - - - - - - ki 1,278 - 1,278
— Crown land - devolved to council 2,504 - 2504 - - - - - - - - 247 2,750 - 2,750
— Land under roads (post 30/608) 10 - 10 — — - - — - - - - 10 - 10
Land improvements — depreciable 1,746 (291) 1355 - - - (36) - (9 - (331) 162 1,758 (6186) 1,142
Infrastructure:
— Buiklings 30,643 [17.230) 13413 456 1.922 218) 772} 27 176 - - - 32,950 [17.671) 15,278
— Other structures 3,642 (1.324) 2318 - 272 - (118) 197 (167) - - 654 4,960 (1.794) 3,166
— Roads 263,213 (50,777) 212436 3,996 4,581 (1,356) (3.204) 1 - - - - 268,582 (52.428) 216,453
— Bridges 80,157 42,384) 46763 1,753 244 {@27) (@41) 1,167 - - - - BO,403 (41,344) 48,050
— Footpaths 3,350 (873) 2477 - 2 - (42) - - - - - 3,374 (215 2,459
— Bulk earthwarks {non-depreciable) 01,880 - 01880 - 1,883 - - 1 - - - - 03,763 - 03,763
— Stormwater drainage 8,354 (4,558) 3796 - 40 - (100} - - - - - 8,385 14,658 3,736
— Water supply netwark 58,100 (34,507) 23593 747 36 (18) 711) 1 - - - 210 58,672 (34,813) 23,850
— Sewerage network 33,905 111,834) 21871 - - - (488) - - - - 188 34,217 (12,537) 21,680
— Swimming poals 1,205 (208) oo7 - - - 21) - - - (524) - 1,408 {1.047) 361
— Other open space/recreationsl assets 2,350 [668) 1682 a2 220 [45) {108) <] [5) - - 320 2,056 [TOE) 2,248
Other assets:
— Library books 047 {816) 131 - - - 24) - - - - - 167 (60 107
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and
restoration assets (refer Mote C3-5):
— Tip assets 2,865 (1.667) 1198 - - - (333) - 340 - - - 3,124 (1.810) 1,214
— Quarry assets a8 (39) 40 - - - (6] - k] - - - 105 (23 82
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 622,766 (174,602) 448,164 12,748 18,548 (4811) (7.600) - 388 532 (855) 1,088 847,010 {178,006) 460,004
(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assats).
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C1-6 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the camying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from current fair value.

Water and sewerage network assets are indexed at each reporting pertod in accordance with the Rates Reference Manual
issued by Department of Industry (Dol) — Water

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credded to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
of loss. Decreases thal reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class, all other decreases are charged (o the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are induded in the assat's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as approprate, only when it
is probable that fulure economic benefils associated with the item will flow o Council and the cost of the tem can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged 1o the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

When infrastrudure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council for nil or consideration significantly less than fair
value, the assels are imbally recogmsed at thesr fair value at acquisition date

Land is not depreciated unless it was acquired to be controied by the council for a specified period of time. Depreciation on
other assets is caiculated using the straight-ine method to alocate their cost, net of their residual vaiues, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Water and sewer assets Years

Office equipment 10 Water - Mans 801 90

Office fumiture . 101020 Water - Pumping Siations . 3080

Computer equipment 4 Water Dam 100

Plants - Light vehicies 1 Water - Rasarvoirs 4010 80

Plants - Heavy plantroad making equipment 10 Water - Treatment Works 3010 B8O

Other plant and equipment 10 Sewerags - Ancilkary 3010 50
Sewerage - Pumping Stations 30

Transportation assets - Sewerape - Treatment Works 3010 70

Sealed roads: surface 30 Sewerage - Mains 7010 210

Sanked roads: pavemen! base 50

Sealed roads: pavemant sub-base Infinite  Stormwater assets

Unsesled roads surface. ‘ _ Drains 80

- deprecaable component 25

- non-depreciable component Infinite. Bulldings

Bulk earthworks Infinite  Buildings 15175

Bridge: concrete 100

Bridge: timber 80 Other infrastructure assets

Karb, guttar and footpaths 80 Swimming pools 50
Othar open space/ recreational assets 10to 100

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. As at 30 June
2022 ony vehide assets had residual values.

Depreciation starts in the year following the year of acquisition of an asset,

Land under roads
Land under roads s land under rcadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008. Land under roads acquired after 1 July
2008 s recognised in accordance with the IPPE accounting policy.

Crown reserves

Crown researves under Council's care and contral are recognised as assels of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Counal retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.
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REFERRED FOR AUDIT Statements 2021-22

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022
C1-6 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incumred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within Council's Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the coundal of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed™.

Council did not recognise Rural Fire Services Assets, including buldings, plant and equipment, due to lack of evidence of
control over the economic benefits which are expecied to flow from these assets
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

C1-7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are as follows:

2022 2021

$°000 $'000
Software
Opening values at 1 July
Gross book value 1175 964
Accumulated amortisation (386) (235)
Net book value — opening balance 789 729
Movements for the year
Purchases 80 211
Amortisation charges 97 (151)
Closing values at 30 June
Gross book value 1,256 1,175
Accumuiated amortisation (483) (386)
Total software — net book value N 772 789
Total intangible assets — net book value I 772” ' 789

Accounting policy

Information technology (IT) and software
Costs incurred in devetoping products or systems and costs incurred in acquinng software and kcenses that will contribute to
future peariod financial benelits through revenue generation andfor cost reduction are capitabsed to software and systems

Costs capitalised include external direct costs of matenals and service, direct payroll, and payroll related costs of employees’
fime spent on the project Amortisation is calculated on a straight line basis over perods genearally rangng from five to ten
years. IT development coslts include only those costs directly attnbutable to the development phase and are only recognised
following completion of technical feasibitty, and where Cauncil has an intention and ability to use the asset
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C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee

Information relating fo the leases in place and associated balances and transactions is provided below

Buildings
Council leases land for operational purposes. The land leases contains an annual pricing mechanism based on CPI
movements al each anniversary of the lease inceplion

Office and IT equipment

Leases for office and IT equipment are generally for low value assets, except for significant items such as pholocopiers. The
leases are for 5 years with no renewal option, the payments are fixed, however some of the leases include vanable
payments based on usage

(a) Right of use assets

Office and IT
equipment Land Total
$ '000 $ 000 $'000
2022
Opening balance at 1 July 114 132 246
Depreciation charge (105) (15) (120)
Balance at 30 June 9 117 126
2021
Opening balance at 1 July 178 - 178
Additions to right-of-use assets . 132 132
Adjustments to nght-of-use assets due to re-measurement of lease
liabikity 21 - 21
Depreciation charge (85) - (85)
Balance at 30 June 114 132 246
(b) Lease liabilities
2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current
$°000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Lease hiabilities 36 13 63 153
Total lease liabilities 36 113 83 153
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financal Statements 30 June 2022

C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

(c) (i) The maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of lease liabilites based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

Total per
Statement of
Financial
<1year 1-5years > 5 years Total Position
$'000 $ ‘000 $ ‘000 § "000 $ ‘000
2022 ‘
Cash flows 40 53 96 189 149
2021
Cash flows 77 75 106 258 216
(d) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statament relating to leases where Counal s a lessee are shown below

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Interest on lease liabilities k) 7
Variable lease payments based on usage not included in the measurement of lease
liabikbes - 14
Depreciation of right of use assets 1@; | 85
129 106
(e) Statement of Cash Flows
Total cash outflow for leases 8 75
m 75
(f) Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary / peppercorn leases

Council has a lease at significantly below market for land and building which is used for Schoal of Arts.

The lease is for 80 years and requres payments of a maximum amount of $1 per year. The use of the rightlo-use asset is
restncted by the lessor Lo specdied community services which Council must provide, these services are detailed in the lease
Council does not beieve that this lease is maternal from a statement of finandal position or performance perspective.

Accounting policy

At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists - i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use
of an Wentified asset for a perod of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

Al the lease commencement, Council recogrises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension perods where Council belsaves it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease Eability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives. The nght-of.use
ts depreciated over the lease term on a straxght.dine basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the empairment
of asset accounting policy
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C2-1 Council as a lessee {continued)

The lease kability s intially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implict in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council's
incremental borrowing rate for a simitar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to imtial recognition, the lease liabilty is measured at amortised cost using the effective mterest rate method. The
lease kability is re-measwred when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability s re-measured, the nght-of-.use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement

Exceptions to lease accounting

Counci has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for bath short-term leases (i.e. leasas with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low.value assets (below $10,000). Council recognises the payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases

Council has eleded to measure the right of use asset ansing from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease kability at inhal recognition.
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C2-2 Council as a lessor

Operating leases

Council leases oul a number of properties to communily groups, these leases have been classified as operating leases for

financial reporting purposes and the assets are included in the Statement of Financial Position as:

—property, plant and equipment —whare the rental s incidental, or the asset is held to meet Councils service delivery obective

(refer note C1-6)

(i) Assets held as property, plant and equipment

Lease incame (excluding variable lease payments not dependant on an index or rata) 160

Total income relating to operating leases for Council assets

(iii) Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be received after
reporting date for all operating leases:

Maturity analysis of future fease income receivabie showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

<1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

3-4 years

4-5 years

>5 yaars

Total undiscounted lease payments to be received

Accounting policy

2022
$°'000

160

160
160
160
160
160
160

2021
3000

74
174

174
174
174
174
174
74
1044

When Counci is a lessor, the lease is classified as etther an operating or linance lease at incephon date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The dassification of the sub-lease s based on the right-of-use asset which ansas from the head lease rather

than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and nonJease components, the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with AASB

15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-ine basis over the lease term for an operating lease and as finance ncome

using amortised cost basis for finance leases.
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C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables

2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-currant
$°000 $'000 $'000 $ 000
Goods and services 3,044 - 1,363 -
Goods and services — accruals 21 - 267
Accrued expenses.
- Borrowings 140 - 80 -
- Salaries and wages 190 - 147 -
Advances 7 — 7 -
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 184 - 131 -
Other 300 - 5 -
Trust account 382 - 382 -
Total payables 4458 . 2,433 —
Payables relating to restricted assets
2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-cusrent
$°000 $'000 $ '000 $'000
Externally restricted assets
Watter 290 - 323 -
Sewer 81 - 27 -
Other - - 72
Payables relating to externally restricted assets ast - 422
Total payables relating to restricted
assets 351 - 422 -
Total payables relating to unrestricted
assets 4,107 = 2,011 -
Total payables 4,458 - . 2433 -

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabiibes initially at fair value less fransaction costs, subsequently financial kabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest rate method.

Payables
Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Council poor to the end of finanaal year that are unpaid
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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C3-2 Contract Liabilities

2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Noles ‘ '000 S 'Ow S ‘000 $ ‘000
Grants and contributions received in advance:
Unexpended capital grants (o :
construct Council controlled assets) 11,721 - 3412 -
Total grants received in
advance 1,721 - 3412 -
Total contract liabilities ] 11,721 - 3412 -

Notes

{1} Council has received funding fo construd assets 1o be controlled by the counal under Stronger Countrty Communities
Funding and Drought Stimulus Package grant agreaments. The furds recewved are under enfarceable contracts which
require Council to construct an identified asset which will be under Councif's control on completion. The revenue is
recognised as Council constructs the assel and the contract kabdity reflects the funding received which cannot yet be
recognised as revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.

{ii) The contract kability relates o grants received prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 being satisfied since
the performance obligations are ongoing.

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Grants and contributions received in advance:
Capita! grants (fo construct Council controlled assets) 3412 921
Total revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability |
balance at the beginning of the period ) 3412 921

Significant changes in contract liabilities
Unexpended capital grants (to construct Council controlied assets)

Increase by $8 million year over year is due to receipt of funds in advance for infrastructure projects. Major components of the
contract liability as at 30 June 2022 is represented by the unspent grant funds for the following projects:

a) Tooloom Road West Rehabilitation - $2M;

b) Local Roads & Community Infrastructure Program - Round 3 - $1M;

¢) Tenterfield Youth Precinct & Mountain Bike Traihead - $1M;

d) Kildare Road (Tenterfield Tourist Route 9) as part of Fixing Local Roads program - $1.7M;
e) BLERF - Improve Mt Lindesay Road - $1M; and

) BSBRO0064 1 - Drake Vilage Revitaksation - 30 9M.

Accounting policy
Contract liabilities are recorded when consideration is received from a customer / fund pravider prior to Council transferring
a good or service 1o the customer, Counci presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liabrlity
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C3-3 Borrowings

Loans — secured
Total borrowings

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

2022
Current
$ "000
870
870

) Loans are secured over the general rating income of Councé

Desclosures on (iabiity interest rate nsk exposures, fair value disclosures and security can be found (n Note E1-1

Borrowings relating to restricted assets

Externally restricted assets

Water

Sewer

Borrowings relating 1o extemally restricted
assels

Total borrowings relating to restricted
assets

Total borrowings relating to
unrestricted assets

Total borrowings

continued on next page ...

2022
Non-current
$'000
17,879
17,979

2022 2022
Current Non-current
$°000 $°000
7 5799
101 1,669
272 7368
272 7,368
598 10,611
870 17,979

2021
Current
$ ‘000

804
804

2021
Current

237
93

330

474
804

2021
MNon-current
$ ‘000

12,905
12,905

2021
Non-current
$ '000

5931
1,670
7,601

7601

5,304

12,905
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C3-3 Borrowings (continued)

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
20 Nom-cash movements 20
o T Acqunition o
due 1o shange
Opening Fair valwe  inacooumting Other nencash Chsing
Sesnce Cash flows Acquisition changes pokcy movement balarcw
$ o0 § voa $ voo 5 %o 5 o0 § voo $ ‘000
Loans - securad 13708 5140 - - - 10540
Lease kab#ty (Note C2-1b) 216 o7 = - - 140
Total liabilities from financing
activities 13,925 5073 - - - 18,998
2020 Non-aesh movements 20
Acquinticn dus
o charge n
Opening Far value sccaounting  Other men-cash
Sasnce Cash fown Acqumtion changes poicy —oamant Ciosng bEsnce
$ o § a0 3o $%00 3 %00 3 too 300
Loans - secured 10,310 3,399 - - 13708
Lease kabity (Note C2-1b) i k]| (47) 132 - 218
Total liabilities from financing
activities 10,441 3352 132 13,925
{(b) Financing arrangements
2022 2021
$°000 $'000
Total facilities
Credi cards/purchase cards 50 50
Total financing arrangements 50 50
Undrawn facilities
- Credit cards/purchase cards i 2 41
Total undrawn financing arrangements 32 41

Accounting policy

Councl measures all financial liabiliies initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the estabkshment of loan facikbes are recognised as lransaction costs of the laan 1o the exterd that itis probable

that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

Borrowings are removed from the Statament of Financial Posiion when the oblkgation spedified in the contract is discharged,
cancelied or expired. The dfference between the carrying amount of a finandal habdity that has been extngusshed or
transferrad to anather party and the consideration pad, including any non-cash assets rarsferred or kabidities assumed, is

recognised in other income or borrowing costs.
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C3-4 Employee benefit provisions

2022 2022 2021 2021

Current Non-current Current Non-current

$'000 $°000 $ 000 $ ‘000

Annual leave 683 - 759 -
Long service leave 856 - 1,153 -
Total employee benefit provisions 1,539 - 1,912 -

Current employee benefit provisions not anticipated to be settied within the next twelve months

2022 2021
$ '000 $'000
The following provisions, even though dassified as cument, are not expected to be settied
in the next 12 months
Provisions — employees benefits i 1,108 1,215
1,108 1,215

Accounting policy

Employee benelit provisions are presented as current kabiities in the Statement of Financal Position if Counal does not
have an unconditional nght to defer setllement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardiess of when the actual
settlement is expedted te occur and therefore all annual leave and vested long service leave (or that which vests within 12
months) is presented as current.

Short-term obligations

Liatxlities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
whally settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the refated service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting perod and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liatilities are settied. The Labilty for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. Al other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The Babilty for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected lo be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in resped of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
expenence of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national governmant bonds with terms to matunty and curency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash cutflows.

On-costs
The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will anse when payment of current employse
benefits is made in fulure penods.

These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expenses which wil be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilties which employees are antitied to at the reporting penod.
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C3-5 Provisions

Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financal Statements 30 June 2022

2022 2022 201 2021
Current Non-Current Current MNon-Current
$ 000 $'000 $ ‘000 $ ‘000
Other provisions
Workers compensation 32 - 42 -
Sub-total — other provisions 32 - 42 -
Asset remediation/restoration:
Asset remediationfrestoration (future works) 1,380 2,168 B21 2659
Sub-total ~ asset remediation/restoration 1.380 2,168 821 2659
Total provisions 1,412 2,168 863 2,659
Description of and movements in provisions
Other provisions
Workers Net
compen- Asset carrying
sation remediation amount
$ ‘000 $'000 $ 000
2022
At beginning of year 42 3,480 3,622
Unwinding of discount - n N
Remeasurement effect through profit and loss (Note B2-3) - (1,119) (1,119)
Remeasurement effect through asset (Note C1-6) - 1,161 1,161
Amounts used (payments) (Note C1-6) - 15) (5)
Other {10) - (10)
Totai other provisions at end of year 22 3.548 3,580
2021
Al beginning of year 29 3,160 3,189
Unwinding of discount - 15 15
Remeasurement effedt through asset (Nole C1-6) - (22) 22)
Amounts used (payments) (Note C1-6} - 19) {T79)
Other . A3 406 419
Total other provisions at end of year 42 3.480 3522

Nature and purpose of provisions

Asset remediation
Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the counal tip and quarry.

Accounting policy
Provisions are recognised when Counal has a presant legal or constructive cbkgation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outfiow of resources will be required to setlle the cbligation, and the amount has been rehably estmated

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considenng the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihcod of an outflow with respect to
any one item mcluded in the same class of obkgations may be small

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporing date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the Bability. The increase in the provision due fo the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost

Asset remediation — tips and quarries

Close-down and restoration costs inciude the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual matenals
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting penod when
the abligation arising from the relaled disturbance ocaurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the operation
phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs. Provisons for cse-down and restoration costs do not include
any addibonal oblgabons which are expecled to arise from future disturbance. The cost estimates are calculated annually
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C3-5 Provisions (continued)

during the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives
of operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

The ultimate cost of environmental remadiation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response 1o many factors, including
changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or expanence at other locations
The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quary reserves or production
rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and environmental
clean-up, which would affect future financal results.

Other movaments in the provisions for close-down and restorabon costs, including those resulting from new disturbance,

updated cost estmates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates, are capitalised within
infrastructure, property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.
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C4 Reserves

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

IPPE Revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE) revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements
in the revaluation of mirastructure, property, plant and equipment
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D Council structure
D1 Results by fund

General fund refers to all Council achvities other than water and sewer. All amounts disciosed in this note are gross i.e.
inclusive of internal charges and recoveries made between the funds, Assets and liabdites shown in the water and sewer
columns are restricted for use for these activities.

D1-1 Income Statement by fund

General Water Sewer
2022 2022 2022
$ '000 $ 000 $'000
Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 7,454 1310 2,496
User charges and fees 1,160 113 167
Interest and investment income 111 2 9
Other revenues 1,694 8 10
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 16,487 234 27
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 13,941 1530 25
Other income 180 B
Total income from continuing operations 41,007 232 2,734
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 7.985 514 337
Materials and sefvices 8,349 874 209
Bomowing costs 266 161 135
Dspreciation, amortisation and impaxment of non-financial assets B6.677 740 528
Other expenseas 817 = =
MNet iosses from the disposal of assets 2048 = =
Total expenses from continuing operations 26,142 2,289 1,909
Operating result from continuing operations 14,865 1,943 825
Net operating result for the year 14,865 1,943 825
Net operating resuit attributable to each council fund 14,865 1843 825
Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes 924 404 800
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D1-2 Statement of Financial Position by fund

General Water Sewer
2022 2022 2022
$ ‘000 $°000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 28528 2834 5745
Receivables 2.149 694 178
Inventories 326 = =
Contract assets and contract cost assets 5140 444 =
Total current assets 36,143 3972 5923
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 426 (24 39,400 21,423
Intangible assels 72 - -
Right of use assets 126 - -
Total non-current assets 420922 39,400 21423
Total assets 466,065 43372 27,3468
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 4112 285 61
Incoma recetved n advance (5) 5 =
Contract liabilities 11,133 588 -
Lease lisbilties 36 - -
Borrowings 508 m 101
Employee beneft provision 1,539 - —
Provisions 1.412 = =
Total current liabilities 18,825 1,049 162
Non-current liabilities
Lease labikes 13 - =
Borrowings 10,611 5799 1564
Provisions 2168 - =
Total non-current liabilities 12,802 5780 1564
Total liabilities 31717 6,848 1,731
Net assets 434,348 36,524 25615
EQUITY
Accumidated surplus 159 123 15,850 13,928
Revaluation reserves 275,225 20,565 11,687
Council equity interast 434,348 36,524 25615
Total equity 434,348 36,524 25615
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D2 Interests in other entities
D2-1 Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

New England Joint Organisation (NEJO)

The NEJO was established on 11 May 2018 and is a separately constituted entity pursuant to Part 7 (Sections 4000 to 400ZH)
of the Local Govemment Act (NSW) 1993, as amended, and the Local Govemment (General) Regulation 2008

The principle purpose of the NEJO is to esiablish sirategic regional priorities and to provide regional leadership to the
geographical area for which it serves, and to identify and take up opportunities for intergovemmental cooperation on matters
relating to the joint organisation area.

NEJO comprises of seven voling member coundls: Armidale Regional Counci, Glen Innes Severn Counal, Inverell Shire
Council, Moree Plains Shire Council, Namabri Shre Counal, Tenterfield Shire Council and Uralla Shire Council.

The Board of NEJO consists of:
« The Mayors of each Member Council, who are entitied to one (1) vote at Meetings;

« A non-voting representative of the NSW Government, who is the Regional Director of the Department of Premier and
Cabinet

The Chairperson s {o be elected by the voting representatives of the Board from one (1) of the Mayoral representatives.
Chairperson does not have a casting vote.

A decision of the Board is supporied by a majonity at which a quorum is present is a decision of NEJO.

Tenterfield Shire Council, as a member of the NEJO, has a one severith voting right in respect to the decisions of the Board.
Considering the fact that decision making is basad on majorty votes, council doas not have control, joint control or significant
influence over relevant activities of the organisation.

In accordance with the Charter each member of the NEJO contnbutes amual fees towards the operation of the jint
organisation. In 202072021 the contribution made by Tenterfield Shire Councd was $13,180. For the period ended 30 June
2021 NEJO's net operating result was $81 thousand (2020, $46 thousand).

North West Weight of Loads Committee (NWWLC)

Councit pined the North West Weight of Loads Committee (NWWLC) in March 2021. The NWWLC is a joint venture between
the Coundl of the Shire of Moree Plains, the Counci of the Shire of Narrabn, the Westem Plains Regional Council, the Council
of the Shire of Glen Innes Severn, the Council of the Shire of Gunnedah, the Council of the Shire of Tenterfield, the Council
of the Shire of Inverell and the Council of the Shire of Warrumbungle.

Councit's interest in the group capital is 12 5% whith no control or significant influence over the group's activity. The principal
activity of the NWWLC is the checking and enforcement of load weights camed by heavy vehicles on roads within the above
named Council boundaries.

Tenterfield Shire Council's member contribution to the NWWLC was $2,026 .55 in 2020/21.

For the penod endad 30 June 2021 NWWLC's net oparating mcome altributable to Tenterfield Shire Councll was zero,
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E Risks and accounting uncertainties

E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held

Council’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictabilty of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of Council.

Council's objedive is 1o maximise as return on cash and investments while mantaining an adequate level of liquiddy and
preserving capital. The finance team manage the cash and investments portfolio with the assistance of independent advisers.
Council has an investment policy which complies with s 625 of the Act and the Ministerial Investment Order. The policy is
regularly reviewed by Council and a monthly investment report is provided to Council setting out the make-up and performance
of the portfalio as required by local govemment regulations.

NSW Counal does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subjed to foreign curency
nsk.

Financial risk management is carried oul by the finance team under pohicies approved by the Councitlors.
The fair value of receivables, loans, investments and inancial liabilities approximates the carrying amount.
The risks assocated with the financal instruments held are

« interest rate risk - the nsk that movements in interest rates could affect retums

«  liquidity risk — the risk that Counal wall not be able to pay its debls as and when they fall due

« credit risk — the risk that a contracting enfity will not complete its obtigations under a financial instrument resulting in
a financial loss to Counal,

Councit manages these risks by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high credit ratings or capital
guarantees. Council also seeks advice from its independent advisers before placing any cash and investments.

(a) Market risk — interest rate and price risk

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
The impact on result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the price
of investments held and interest rates s shown below. The reasonably possible movements
were determined based on historical movements and economic conditions in place at the
reporting date.
Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates )
~ Equity / Income Statement 183 5

(b) Credit risk
Council's receivables for the purposes of credd risk exposure comprise two categones

1) Category 1: rates and annual charges (including interests on outstanding rates); statutory entitements (GST receivable);
govemment grants and subsidies; accrued grants income; and interest on investments.

2) Category 2 user charges and {ees, private works, other deblors.

Council manages the credit risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent
debt recovery procedures. Councd also encourages ratepayers to pay ther rates by the due date through incentives

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligihle, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and camies out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

Credit risk profile

Receivables - Category 1

Rates and annual charges (including interest on overdue rates debtors)

Credd risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the abikty of Council to recover these debts as a secured charge over
the land, that is, the land can be sokd lo recover the debt. Council is also able fo charge interest on overdue rates and annual
charges at higher than market rates, which further encourages payment.

Government grants, subsidies, GST receivable

Credit risk on this type of debtors is negligble due to allocation of the funds to the counal for the whole penod of fund
agreemants, absence of evidence of default of the Australian Government in the past, currently and in the future and tamely
payments made by the govemment.

Interest on mvestments

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financal assels is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
repulable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

Contract Assets

This class of assats comprises of accrued ncome under vanous govemnment grants. Credit nsk on this type of accruals is
neghgile due o allocation of the funds o the council for the whole period of fund agreements, absence of evidence of default
of the Australian Government in the past, currently and in the future and timely payments made by the govemment.

Not yet overdue rates and annual charges

overdue <5 years 2 5years Total
$ 000 $'000 $'000 $ 000
2022
Gross carrying amount - Receivables (AASB 9) 396 - - 396
Contract Assets (AASE 15 and AASE 1058) 5584 - - 5,584
2021
Gross carmying amount - Recelvables (AASB 9) 528 514 . 1.142
Contract Assets (AASB 15 and AASE 1058) 7A17 - - 7417

Receivables - Category 2
Fees and charges, Private works and other debtors

Councit apphes the simplified approach for Category 2 debtors to provide for expectad credit lossas prescribed by AASS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision, To measure the expected credt losses, Category 2 deblors have
been grouped based on shared credit risk charaderistics and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2021 is determined as follows. The expeded credit losses ncorporate forward.
looking information

Not yet Overdue debts
overdue 0- 30 days 31- 60 days €1- 90 days > 91 days Total
$ ‘000 $ 000 $'000 $ '000 $ 000 $ ‘000
2022
Gross carrying amount 2,040 48 L) 588 - 2,680
Expected loss rate (%) 0.29% 10.00% 18.00% 7.90% 0.00% 202%
ECL provision 6 5 1 43 - 56
2021
Gross carrying amount 2,083 1,110 293 453 - 3939
Expected ioss rate {%) 0.15% 0.42% 0.48% 11.00% 0.00% 141%
ECL provision 3 1 1 50 - 55
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables, lease Rability and bormrowings are both subject to liquidity sk — the nisk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Councl manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating arcumstances) also be extended and overdraft faciities utilised as required

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate nisk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt serviang requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous
to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to setfie finanaal liabilties reflects the earliest contractual settiement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be matenally different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease ligbilties (for lease liability
maturity analysis refer to Note C2-1) and therefore the balances in the table may not equal the balances in the slatement of
financial position due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted _
average  Subject payable in: Actual
interest to no 1-§5 Total cash carrying
rate  maturity $1 Yoar Years & Years outflows values
% $°000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
2022
Payables 0.00% 184 4,274 = - 4,458 4,458
Loans 4.61% - 1,575 7,603 16,244 26,422 18,849
Total financial liabilities 184 5849 7803 16244 20880 23307
2021
Payables 0.00% 131 2,035 - - 2,166 2433
Loans 4% - 1407 7852 9603 18662 13709
Total financial liabilities 1 3442 7652 9603 20828 16,142
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E2-1 Fair value measurement

The Council measures the following asset and kability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:
- Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

The fair value of assets must be estimated in accordance with vanous accounting standards for either recognition and
measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes

AASBH 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assels and hatxlities measured at fair value 1o be assigned 1o a ‘level’ in the
fair value hierarchy as follows.

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in adive markets for identical assets or liabdities that the enfity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included wathin level 1 that are observable for the assel or liability, ether directly
or indwectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Level 3 Significant
Dateoffatest  Level 2 Significant unobservabie

valuation observable inputs inputs Total
$'000 Foarsme 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Infrastructure, property, C16
plant and equipment
Plant and equipment 0/00/ 200818 - - BSTT 9,430 8,977 9430
Office equipment N0 3006116 - - 326 335 226 335
Furndure and fittings WVIGI 3006116 - - 13 17 13 17
Crown land 006221 300621 - - 4028 4028 4,029 4,028
Land — operational I0G/E 300618 - - 3385 3,995 3,995 3,995
Land — community 006721 300621 - - 1525 1,525 1,528 1.525
Land under roads 00 200614 - - 10 10 10 10
Land improvements —
depreciated 0N 200621 - - 11068 1142 1,108 1142
Buiddings 30006/48 300618 - - 15488 15279 15,489 15,279
Ofher structures 00621 300621 - - 2891 3166 2891 3166
Roads D008 200619 - - 215,180 216453 215,180 216,453
Buk earthworks 300613 3006/19 - - 52377 4805 523717 48059
Footpaths 006IM 3006/19 - - 2418 245 2418 2459
Briages 0006/ 300619 - - 93822 93763 93,922 93763
Stormwater assels A0 300819 - - am 3,736 am 3,736
Water supply assets V0622 30°06/17 - - 38728 23859 5729 23859
Sewerage network |0 00617 - - ”m 21,680 20,008 21680
Swimiming pools WI08/2Y 2010821 - - 336 361 238 361
Open space and recreation 0B 300621 - - 2277 2248 247 2.248
Library books W06 2006121 - - 73 107 73 107
Tip assets 0008/22 200618 - - 2187 1,214 2,967 1,214
Quarry assets X082 300618 - - 112 82 12 82
Total infrastructure,
property, plant and
equipment | - -, M66869 452948 466,869 452948

Valuation techniques

Where Coundl is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead utilses a spread of both observable nputs (level 2 inputs) and unobsarvable inputs {level 3 mputs)

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed white utilising level 2 and level 3 mputs are as follows:
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment {(IPPE)
Crown Land

All valuabons of Crown Land are based upon the land valuations issued by the Valuer - General. Crown Land was valued
as at 30 June 2021 using the 1 July 2019 VG valuation data. There has been no change to the valuaton procass dumg the
reporting penod.

Community Land

Al valuations of Community Land are based upon the land valuations issued by the Valver - General. Community Land was
valued at as 30 June 2021. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Operational Land

The valuation of Operational Land has been based upon relevant sales in the area. In certan locations there was a lack of
approgriate comparable sales evidence and in these instances the closest comparable sales and factors relating the land
parcels geographic, land use and zoning where also taken into consideration. The last valuation was undertaken at 30 June
2018 by Scoft Fullarton Valuations Pty Lid. There has been no change 1o the valuation process during the reporting period

Other Structures, Swimming Pools and Open Space & Recreation Assets

The valuation process involved current replacement cost approach. Unobservable inputs such as replacement cost, asset
condition and useful life required extensive professional judgement. The unobservabie inputs place this class of asset at Level
3. The last valuation was undertaken on 30 June 2021 by APV Valuers and Asset Management Pty Ltd. There has been no
change to the valuation process during the reporting period.

Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings and Library Books

Plant & Equipment, Fumiture & Fittings, Library Books and Office Equipment are valued at cost but disciosed at fair value in
the Notes of the financial stataments. it is assumed that the carrying amount of these asset classes s approximate fair value
Assets include graders, motor vehicies, mowers, chainsaws, computers, tables, chairs, lighting, litrary books and resources
The key unobservable input is the condition of the assets. There has been no change to the valuation process during the
reporting period

Buildings

Buildings assets are valued externally. Council engaged Scoft Fullarton Valuations Pty Ltd to perform a comprehensive
valuation of buildings assets as at 30 June 2018.

Most of the Council’s buildings are specialised by nature and were valued utilising the cost approach. The approach estimated
the replacement cost of each building and componentising of sigrificant parts of specific buildings with different usaful lives
and taking into account a range of factors. Where the unit rates could be supported by market evidence, Level 2 inputs were
utilised. Other inputs (such as estimates useful life, asset condition and componentisation) required extensive professional
judgement and impacted significantly on the final determination of fair value. As such, these assets have been valued utilising
Level 3 inputs.

There were no changes in valuation technique from prior year.

Water supply and Sewerage network assets

Due to specialised nature of the assets all water and sewer network assets were valued using cost approach with the Level 3
input dominating the valuation. As a result, this class of assets is always valued extemally with suffident regularity to ensure
carrying amount of the assets is not matenally different to fair value. Council engaged independent professional valuer,
Australis Assetl Advisory Group, to perform a comprehensive revaluation of its waler and sewerage supply nelwork assets
as & 30 June 2022

Valuer applied significant judgement in determining following inputs into the valuation process: unit rates, condition assessment
and obsolescence, useful life. The valuation technique has not changed from previous year.

Transportation assets

Transportation assets is a valuation dlass of asset for the purposes of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement which combines
following classes of assets from Note C1.6. roads, bridges, feotpaths, bulk earthworks, starmwaler drainage

This valuation relies on key uncbservable inputs such as unit rates, condition ratings, useful life. The key uncbservable inputs
and no active market place these assets categones at Leve! 3. The last valuation of replacement cost was undertaken on 30
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)
June 2019 by AssetVal Pty Ltd. Further adjustments were then applied based on the condition of the assets using intemal
inspection data.
Remediation Assets for Tips and Quarries
Restoration, ced capping, leachate collection and site ciosures have been recognised as significant costs for the remediation
assets. In particular, the closing of a landfill site will indude preparation, final cell capping, site re-vegetation and leachate

management. The key unobservable inputs are discount rate, estimated costs, legisiative requirements, and timing of
remediation and indexation of labour costs. There has been no change to the valuation process during the reporting penod

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

There were no movements between levels of hierarchy during the year. For schedule of changes in values please refer to
Note C1.6

Highest and best use

Al of Council's non-financial assels are considered as being utiised for their highest and best use
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E3-1 Contingencies

The following assets and liabiiies do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowiedge
and disclosure s consxdered refevant to the users of Council’'s financial report,

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED
1. Guarantees

{I) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Councit is parly 10 an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Lol Government Superannuation Scheme, named The Local
Government Superannuation Scheme — Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been deemed lo be a
‘multi-employer fund' for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

— Assets are nol segregated within the sub-group according 1o the employeas of each sponsonng employer

- The confribution rates have been the same for all sponsoning employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring empioyer.

— Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are delermined according to the same formulae and wathout regard to
the sponsoring employer.

- The same actuanal assumptions are cumrently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuanial risks associated wath current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the assodated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not bome by members)

Descriplion of the funding arrangements.

Pooled Employers are required to pay future service employer contributions and past service employer contributions to the
Fund

The future service employer contrbutions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate
sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-ime of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current future sesvice
employer contribution rates are::

Division C 2.5% salarie

* For 180 Point Members, Employers are required to contribute 7.5% of salanes fo these members’ accumulation accounts,
which are paid n addition to members’ defined benefits.

The past service contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total past service contnibutions of $40.0 milion per
annum for 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2021 and $20.0 million per annum for 1 January to 31 December 2024, apportioned
according to each employer’s share of the accrued lisbilities as at 30 June 2021. These past service contributions are used
to maintain the adequacy of the funding position for the accrued Eabilities.

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between trennials.

Description of the extent fo wiich Counai can be liabie to the plan for other Council's obligations under the terms and conditions
of the mutti-empioyer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring empioyer (Counol) is exposed to the aduanal nsks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring empioyers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

Howaver, there is no rekel under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from ther defined benefit obligations
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full psyment
of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no spectic provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on vind-up
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Govemnment Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2022 was $ 72,689 98. The last valuation of the Scheme was
performed by

Fund Actuary, Richard Boyfield FIAA as at 30 June 2021.

Council's expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $51,543.60.

The estimated employer resarves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2021 is

loyer reserves only * Smillions Asset Coverage
Assets 2,376.6
Past Servico Liabilties 23807 894%
Vested Benefits 2,3017 99 4%

* excluding member accounts and resarves in both assets and liabilities.
The share of this defict that is braadly attributed to Counal is estimated to be in the order of 0.20% as at 30 June 2022.

Council's share of that deficiency cannol be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual amangement where assets and
liabibas are peoled logether for all member councils. For this reason, no liabilly for the deficiency has been recognised in
Counail's accounts. Council has a possible cbiigation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment o correct
the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to caiculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

[nvestment retum 5 5% per annam
[Salary nflaton 3.5% per annum
increase in CPI 25% per annum

The contribution requirements may vary from the cumrent rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the actuarial
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsaring employers in the Pooled Employers group

(ii) Statewide Limited

Council is a member of Statewide Mutual, a mutual pool scheme providing liabilty insurance to local government.
Membership includas the potential to share in either the net assets or habilities of the fund depanding on its past performance
Councit's share of the net assets or liabilities reflects Council's contnbutions to the pool and the result of insurance claims
within each of the fund years.

The future realisation and finalisation of clams incurred but not reported to 30/6 this year may result in future liabilties or
benefts as a result of past events that Coundil will be required to fund or share in respedively

(iii) StateCover Limited
Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover o the NSW local govermnment industry and
specifically Council.

Counci has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital base as a
result of the company's past performance and/or daims experience or as a resull of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

{iv) Other guarantees
Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

2. Other liabilities

{I) Third party claims

The Council is nvolved from time to time in vanous daims ncidental 1o the ordinary course of business including clams for
damages relating to its services.

Councit balieves that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liablkbes to eventuate

{ii) Potential land acquisitions due to planning restrictions imposed by Council
Council has dassified a number of privately owned land parceis as local open space or bushland.
As a result, where notified in wrting by the vanous oaners, Councl will be required to purchase thase land parcels

Al reporting date, refiable estimates as to the value of any potential liability (and subsequent tand asset) from such potential
acquistions has not been possible.

(ili) Remediation of closed landfill

Council derecognised provision for remediation of the closed landfill at the Tenterfield Waste Transfer Station due to high leve!
of uncertainty about timing and expenditure subject to an order from the Environment Protection Authority (EPA) (see Note
B2-3). Based on the latest information available, the EPA allows counal to keep the things as they are at the moment, without
performing any works in addition o what has already been done in the past.

Based on management’s estimates, should the EPA issues an order for remediation works, the cost may vary from $120
thousand to $1 million in 2022 financal year terms.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED
(i) Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account fand under reads that it owned or controlled up
to and including 30/6/08

{il) Infringement notices/fines

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is fallowed up and callected by the Infringement
Processing Bureau.

Counail's revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for 1l as revenue on receipt
Accordingly, at year end, there is a potentia asset due to Council representing issued but unpaid infringement notices.

Due to the imded information available on the status, value and duration of outstandng natices, Council is unable to delermine
the value of oulstanding income
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F People and relationships
F1 Related party disclosures

F1-1 Key management personnel (KMP)

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or

indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

2022
$'000

Compensation:

Short-term benefits =
Post-employment benefits -
Total -
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to

F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses

The aggregate amount of Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses
inciluded in matenals and services expenses in the Income Statement are

Mayoral fee
Councilors’ fees
Other Counallors’ expenses (including Mayor)

Total

the Financal Statements 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$ ‘000 $ 000
27 27
118 122
39 33
184 182
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financal Statements 30 June 2022
F2  Other relationships
F2-1 Audit fees

2022 2021

$°000 $ 000
During the year, the following fees were incurred for senvices provided by the auditor
of Coundl, related practices and non-related audit firms
Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:
{i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements 60 50
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 60 50
Total Auditor-General remuneration 60 50
Total audit fees 60 50
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

G Other matters

G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information

Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from operating activities

2022 2021

$ 000 $'000
Net operating result from income Statement 17,633 17,493
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 7,845 7608
Net losses/{gains) on disposal of assels 2,048 2812
Net effect from found assets - (532)
Net effed from de-recognition of remediaton provision (1,119) -
Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions N 15
+/- Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decreasel(increase) in receivables 2,005 {2,889)
Decreasea/(increasa) in inventones 9) (27)
Decrease/(increase) in accrued grants income -
Decrease/(increase) in confract assels 1833 (2,038)
Increase/{decease) in payables 1,681 (864)
Increase/{decrease) in accrued interest payable 60 33
Increase/{dearease) in other accrued expenses payable 43 56
Increase/{decrease) in other liabilities 297 110
Increase/{decease) in contract kabilities 8,309 2.491
Increasei{decrease) in empioyee benefit provision (373) 68
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions . 27 -
Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities o
from the Statement of Cash Flows 40,411 24,335
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

G2-1 Commitments

Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

2022 2021
$ 000 $ '000
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Water Supply 8,340 9,046
Ptant and equipment 216 -
Intangibles 51 73
Sewer Network 17 100
Waste Management 100 110
Roads 8,141 4252
Parks 147 19
Buildings 139 362
Other 5 83
Total commitments 17,256 14,045
These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year 17,256 14 045
Total payable 17,256 14,045
Sources for funding of capital commitments:
Unrestricted general funds 384 458
Future grants and contributions 14,089 12,808
Extemally restricted resarves 275 779
Intemally restricted reserves 2,508 -
Total sources of funding ] 17,256 14,045
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financal Statements 30 June 2022

G3-1 Events occurring after the reporting date

Council s unaware of any matenal or sigreficant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed. No othar matters have arsen
subsequent to balance date that would require these financial statements to be amended
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G4  Statement of developer contributions as at 30 June 2022

G4-1 Summary of developer contributions

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Contributions Expenditure Held as Cumulative

Opening received during the year Interest and during restricted balance of internal

balance at Cash N h investment year and transfers Internal asset at 30 June borrowings

1 July 2021 as on-cas income eamed to unrestricted borrowings 2022 (to)/from

$ 000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Drainage 2 2 = = = = -

Roads 145 168 - 3 (15) - 301 -

MNew multi-residential development 4 = = - = = 4 -

Open space 2 2 - - = = 4 =

Community facilities 5 5 - = - = 10 -

Emergency services 10 10 - - - - 20 -

Waste management 18 19 = - = = 37 -

Other 5 6 = = = = 11 -

S7.11 contributions —under a plan 191 212 = 3 (15) = 391 =
Total §7.11 and $7.12 revenue under

plans 191 212 - 3 (15) - 391 -

S64 contributions 31 48 - - - - 79 -

Total contributions 222 260 - 3 (15) - 470 -

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvement of amenities or

services) infrastructure in new release areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

G4-2 Developer contributions by plan

Contributions Expenditure Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and during restricted balance of internal
balance at Cash Non.cash investment year and transfers Intemal asset at 30 June borrowings
1 July 2021 - income eamed to unrestricted borrowings 2022 (to)/from
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ 000 $'000 $'000

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 2013
Drainage 2 = = = = = 4 -
Roads 145 168 - 3 (15) - 301 -
MNew multi-residential development 4 - - - = = 4 -
Open space 2 = = = = = 4 -
Community facilities 5 5 = = = = 10 -
Emergency services 10 10 - - = = 20 -
Waste management 18 19 - - = = 37 -
Other 5 [ - - - - 11 -
Total 191 212 - 3 (15) - 391 -
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GS Statement of performance measures

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

G5-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated resuits

$ 000

1. Operating performance ratio

Total continusng operating revenue excluding
capital grants and contnbutions less aperatng
expenses *

Total continung operating revenue excluding
capital grants and contributions °

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all
granis and contrbubions *

Tota! continuing operating revenue '

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions

Cumrent liabilities less specific purpose liabiihes

4, Debt service cover ratio

Operating result before capital excluding interest
and deprecation/impairment/amortisation *

Prinapal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows)
plus barrowing costs (Income Statement)

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding
percentage
Rates and annual charges outstanding

Rates and annual charges collectable

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all
term deposis

Monthiy payments from cash fiow of operating
and financing activities

Amounts

2022

4176
32,468

15,720
47,973

__ 415
11,844

37,107
1,716

Indicator

2022

12.86%

32.77%

1.96x

9.10x

4.01%

21.62
mths

Indicators
2021 2020
1.12% 1.14%

31.97% 3963%
225x 217x
6.98x 5.49x
441% 7.55%

7.88 877
mths mths

Benchmark

>0.00%

> 60.00%

> 1.50x

> 2 00x

< 10.00%

=300
mths

1) Excludes fair value increments on investment propenies, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on
recelvables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests (n joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes

pensianer rate subsidies

@) Excludes impairmentirevaluation decrements of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assels
and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method
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G5-2 Statement of performance measures by fund

$ '000

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions less

operating expenses -2
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding capital grants and contributions °
Total continuing operating revenue °

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities

4. Debt service cover ratio

Operating result before capital excluding interest and
depreciation/impairment/amortisation

Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) plus borrowing costs (Income
Statement)

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage
Rates and annual charges outstanding
Rates and annual charges collectable

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year's cash and cash equivalents plus all term deposits
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating and financing activities

(1) - (2) Refer to Notes at Note G5-1 above.
(3) General fund refers to all of Council's activities except for its water and sewer activities which are listed separately.

2022

10.98%

25.80%

1.96x

12.30x

5.91%

19.38
mths

General Indicators *

2021

(4.24)%

24 .64%

2.25x%

6.67x

6.37%

468
mths

Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Water Indicators

2022

15.00%

58.10%

3.79x

3.64x

0.00%

21.97
mths

2021

6.99%

57.24%

4.50%

512

0.00%

Sewer Indicators

2022

29.53%

98.10%

36.56x

6.42x

0.00%

4992
mths

2021

37.91%

98.41%

42.23x%

11.77x

0.00%

Benchmark

> 0.00%

> 60.00%

> 1.50x

= 2.00x

<10.00%

>3.00
mths
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Tememield Shire Council | MHobes 1o the Frnancsl Statements 30 June 2022

End of the audited financial statements
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022
H Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio

Commentary on 2021/22 rasult
Purpose of operating

12.86 performance ratio 2021/22 ratio 12 86%
#
2
This rabo measures Councit's
achievement of containing
operatng expenddure within
rating revenue.
114 112 PEIERg Feane
D2 2021 2022
Benchmark: — > 0.00%

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financiat Repoarting B Ratiois outside benchmark

2. Own source aperating revenue ratio

Commentary on 2021/22 result
| | Purpose of own source

operating revenue ratio

202122 tatio 32.77%

39.63
97 nn”n

Ratio %

This ratio measwes fiscal
fiexibiity. It is the oegree of
0 redance on axtarnal funding
SOUTCes SUCh as operating grants
and coniributions

2020 2021

Benchmark: — > 60 .00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting B Ratio is outsice benchmark

}. Unrestricted current ratio

Commentary on 202122 result
Purpose of unrestricted |

current ratio 2021122 ratio 1 96x

o3
3 217 2.2%
25 : 196
- To assess he adequacy of
W S warking capilal and ils ahilty fo
safisfy abligations in e shon
term for the unrestricted activities
of Counci.
202 ) 2072
Benchmark: — > 1.50x

Ratio achieves benchmark

Soutce of benchmark. Code of Accounting Practice and Financal Reporting - Ratio is oulside benchmark
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022
H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs) (continued)

_4. Debt service cover ratio

Commentary on 2021/22 result
Purpose of debl service

a.10

cover ratio
2021/22 ratio 9.10x
€98
,3 649
2
4 This rato measures the
avadabiity of operatrg cash o
service debd ncuding inlerest,
2 — — 1 | principal and lease payments
P20 ras ry
Benchmark: — > 2.00x

Ratio achieves benchmark

Soutce of benchmark. Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting B Ratiois outside benchmark

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

Purpose of rates and Commentary on 2021/22 result
annual charges

outstanding percentage | 202122 ratio 4 01%

7.55

Ratio %

40 To assass the impact of

uncollected rales and annual
charges on Coundil's fquidéy and
the adequaty of recovery efforts

) S

Benchmark: — < 10.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark. Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Repotting I Ratiois cutside benchmark

6. Cash expense cover ratio

Commentary on 2021/22 result
Purpose of cash

2162 expense cover ratio 202122 rate 2162 mths
g,
3
} — ” This liquidity ratic indcates the
- 8.77 758 { | numbder of monts a Counci can
contmus payng for its immediate
eapanses without aaditoral cash
— e | infow.
2020 2021
Benchmark: — > 3.00mths

Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark. Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting B Ratiois culside benchmark
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Terterfield Shire Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

H1-2 Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
247 Rouse Streat
Tenterfield NSW 2372

Contact details

Mailing Address: Opening hours:
PO Box 214 9:00am - 4 30pm
Tenterfield NSW 2372 Monday to Frnday
Telephone: 02 6736 6000 Internet:  www ienierfield nsw.gov.au
Facsimile: 02 6736 6005 Email: council@enterfield nsw gov au
Officers Elected members
Chief Executive Mayor
Daryl Buckingham Bronwyn Petrie
Responsible Accounting Officer Councillors
Roy Jones Greg Sauer (Deputy Mayor)
Gary Verri
Public Officer Bronwyn Petrie
Kylie Smith John Macnish
Brian Murray
Auditors Tom Peters
Audit Office of New South Wales Don Forbes
GPO Box 12 Robert Rogan
SYDNEY NSW 2001 Michael Petrie

Other information
ABN: 85010 810 083
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Tenterfield Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Independent Auditor's Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])

Independent Auditor's Report

Please uplift Councifs Audit Report PDF (opinion) for mclusion in the GPES report (via the Home screen)
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Notes 1o the Financal Statements 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Independent Auditor's Reports: (continued)

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3])

Independent Auditor's Report

Please uplift Councifs Audit Report PDF (commentary) for inclusion m the GPFS report (via the Home screen)
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Tenterfield Shire Council

SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2022

"Quality Nature, Quality Heritage and Quality Lifestyle”
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors and Management 3
Special Purpose Financial Statements:

Income Statement of water supply business activity
Income Statement of sewerage business activity

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity
Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity

w N O

Note — Significant Accounting Policies

Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements 11

Background

i. These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Govemnment in fulfiling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

ii. The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field’ between parsonsi/entities competing
in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors

Essantially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate without
net competifive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

li. For Council, the pnnciple of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to deciared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being water
supply, sewerage services, abaltars, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a tumover of more
than $2 milton that Council has formally declared as a business adwity (defined as Category 1 activities

iv. In preparing these financial statements for Council’s seli-classified Category 1 busnesses and ABS-defined adivities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attributon induding tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefis from Council's borrowing position by companson with
commercial rates)
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
« the NSW Government Palicy Statement ‘Application of National Compelition Policy fo Local Government’,
« the Division of Local Govermment Guidelines ‘Priang and Costing for Councd Businesses — A Guide fo Competitive
Neutrabty’,
« the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,
« the NSW Office of Water Best-Practice Management of Water and Sewerage Guideines
To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
« presentfairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council's declared business adtivities for the year, and
+ accord with Council's accounting and other records
« present overhead reallocation charges to the water and sewerage businesses as fair and reasonable.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 24 August 2022,

Bronwyn Petrie John Macnish

Mayor Deputy Mayor

24 August 2022 24 August 2022

Daryl Buckngham Ray Jones

Chief Executive Responsible Accounting Officer
24 August 2022 24 August 2022
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Tentetield Shire Councll | Income Statement of water supply business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Income Statement of water supply business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$°000 $ '000
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 1,310 1,238
User charges 1,116 1,200
Fees 23 56
Interest and investment income 2 6
Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 234 218
Other income i 8 (72)
Total income from continuing operations 2,693 2,745
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 514 542
Borrowing costs 161 225
Materials and services 874 958
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 740 734
Loss on derecognition of assels - 18
Other expenses i — 76
Total expenses from continuing operations 2289 2553
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 404 192
Grants and contnbutions provided for capetal purposes 15639 1,670
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 1943 1,862
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 1,843 1,862
Less: corporate taxation equivalent (25%) [based on result belore capital] (101) (50)
Surplus (deficit) after tax ! 1,842 1,812
Plus accumulated surplus 14013 12,151
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Corporate taxation equivalent 104 50
Closing accumulated surplus 16,859 14013
Return on capital % 14% 1.4%
Subsidy from Council 817 23
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (defiat) after tax 1,842 1812
Less: capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions) {1,539) {1670)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 303 142
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 162 70
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Income Stalement of sewerage business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Income Statement of sewerage business activity
for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$°000 $'000
Income from continuing operations
Access charges 2,496 2,344
User charges 126 173
Liquid trade waste charges 18 27
Fees 23 34
Interest and investment income il 7
Grants and contnbutions provided for operating purposes 27 27
Other income 3 10 B4
Total income from continuing operations 2,709 2696
Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefds and on-costs 337 270
Bomrowing costs 135 142
Matenals and secvices 209 636
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 528 507
Net loss from the disposal of assets - 26
Other expenses —! a3
Total expenses from continuing operations 1,909 1,674
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts 80D 1022
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes Il 25 16
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts 825 1,038
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax 825 1,038
Less: comporate taxation equivalent (25%) [based on result before capital] (200) (268)
Surplus {(deficit) after tax 625 772
Plus accumulated surplus 13,101 12,063
Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Corporate taxation equivalent 202 266
Closing accumulated surplus 13828 13,101
Return on capital % 4.4% 51%
Subsidy from Council — -
Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (defiat) after tax 625 772
Less: capital grants and contnbutions (excluding developer contributions) i (25) (16)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes 600 756
Potential dividend calculated from surplus 300 a7
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Tenterfieks Shire Coundil | Stalement of Financial Position of water supply business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position of water supply business activity
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021

$°000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Contract assets and contract cost assets 444 784
Cash and cash equivalents 2834 590
Receivables 694 1,146
Total current assets 3,972 2,520
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 39400 20557
Total non-current assets 39,400 29,557
Total assets 43_,.3;2 32,077
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Contract labilities 588 -
Payables 285 318
Income received in advance 5 9
Borrowings ! m 237
Total current liabilities 1,049 560
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 5,799 5931
Total non-current liabilities 5,799 5931
Total liabilities 6,848 6,491
Net assets 36,524 25,586
EQUITY
Accumutated surplus 15,959 14,014
Revaluation reserves 20,565 11,572
Total equity 36,524 25586
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TenterMield Shire Council | Statement of Financial Positon of sewerage business activity | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Statement of Financial Position of sewerage business activity
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021

$°000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,745 4 846
Receivables ! 178 221
Total current assets 5,923 5067
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 21423 22 668
Total non-current assets 21423 22668
Total assets 27 346 27,735
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 61 27
Borrowings 1m 93
Total current liabilities 162 120
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 1,569 1670
Total non-current liabilities 1,569 1670
Total liabilities | 1,731 1,790
Net assels 258615 25,945
EQUITY
Accumudated surplus 13,928 13,102
Revaluation reserves N 11,687 12,843
Total equity 25,615 25945
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Tenerfield Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Stalements 2022

Note — Significant Accounting Policies

A statement summansing the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the specal purpose financial
staterments (SPFS) for National Competition Palicy (NCP) reporting purposes fallows

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
these statements, the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in thesa special purpose financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with the recogndion
and measurement critena of relevant Austrakan Acoounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these spedal purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (Act), the Local Govemment (General) Regulation 2005 (Regulaton) and the Local Government Cade of Accounting
Practice and Financal Repaorting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take inte account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, fair value of non-current assets. Cestain taxes and other costs, appropnately
described, have been imputed for the purpeses of the National Competition Policy.

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assets/Eabilities receivable from/payable to Council's general fund. These
balances raflect a notional infra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business adwities

National Competition Policy

Council has adopled the principle of ‘competitive neutrality” in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government. The framewoark for its application is set out in the June
1996 NSW Govemment Policy statement titled "Application of National Competition Pdlicy to Local Govemment. The Pricing
and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide fo Compefifive Neutrakty issued by the Office of Local Government in July
1897 has alsc been adopted.

The priang and costing guidelines outline the process for identfying and allocating costs to aclivities and provide a standard
for disdlosure requirements. These disdosures are reflected in Council's pricing and/or financial reporting systems and inciude
taxation equivatents, Council subsidies, and retumns on investments (rate of return and dividends paid).

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Coundil has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1
fwhere gross operating umover is over $2 milon)

Nil
Category 2
fwhere gross operating urnover Is less than §2 mitson)

a. Tenterfield Shire Water Supplies
Water supply system servicing the towns of Tenterfield, Urbenville and Jennings

b. Tenterfield Shire Sewerage Services
Sewerage reticulation and treatment system servicing the towns of Tenterfield and Jennings.

Taxation equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay vanous taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations just
like all other costs. However, where Councd does not pay some taxas, which are generally paid by private sector businesses,
such as income tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activties and are
reflected in special purpose finanncial statements. For the purposes of disdosing comparative information relevant to the
private sector equivalent, the following taxation equivalents have been apphed to all Counclnominated business activies
(this does not include Council's non-business activities).

Notional rate applied (%)

Corporate income tax rate — 25% (2021 26%)

continued on next page ... Page 8of 11
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Tenerfield Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Stalements 2022

Note — Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Land tax — the first $822 000 of combined land values aftracts 0%. For the combined tand values in excess of $822 000 up
to $5,026,000 the rate is $100 + 1.6%. For the remaining combined iand value that exceeds $5,026,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% applies.

Payroll tax — 4.85% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $1,210,000,

In accordance with the Department of Planning, Industry & Environment — Water guidelines, a payment for the amount
calculated as the annual tax equivalent charges {(excluding incoms tax) must be paid from water supply and sewerage business
activities

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, refemmed fo in the Best Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewer
Guideines as a 'dividend for taxation equivalent’, may be applhied for any purpose allowed under the Act.

Achievement of substantial compliance to the DPIE— Water guidelines is not a prerequisite for the payment of the tax equivalent
charges; however the payment must not exceed $3 per assessment.

Income tax

Anincome {ax equivaient has been applied on the profits of the business activities. Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for
the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs o be taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of retum requeed on
capital invested. Accordingly, the retum on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level — gain/{loss) from ordinary activities before
capital amounts, as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should inciude a provision equivalent to the
corporate income tax rate, currently 25% {20121 26%)

Income tax is only applied where a gain from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved. Since the taxation
equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to the ‘Council’ as the owner of business operations - it represents an intemal
payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council.

Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of intemal charges in the SPFS. The rate applied of 25% isfis not the equivalent
comparny tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments have been made for variations that have occumred during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been appled to all assets owned, or
exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Coundl business activities face true’ commercial barrowing costs in ine with
private sector competitors. In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the differential borrowing
rate would have been between the commercia rate and Council’s borrowing rate for its business activities.

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsides, must be explicitiy
disclosed. Subsidies occur where Coundl provides services on a less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised on a
range of services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations. The overall effect of subsidies is contained
within the Income Statements of business activities.

{ii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected o generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of retumn for private businesses operating in & similar field’.

Funds are subsequently available for meeting commitmants or financing future investment sirategies. The rate of return is
disclosed for each of Council's business activities on the Income Statement.

(iii) Dividends

Council is not required fo pay dividends to either #self as owner of a range of businesses, or to any external entities.

A local government water supply and sewerage business is permitted to pay annual dividends from their water supply or
sewerage business surpluses. Eachdividend must be calculated and approved n accordance with the DPIE — Water guidelines

and must not exceed 50% of the relevant surplus in any one year, or the number of water supply or sewerage assessments
at 30 June 2022 multiplied by $30 (less the payment for tax equivalent charges, not exceeding $3 per assessment).
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TenerMeld Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Stalements 2022

Note — Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

In accordance with the Best Practice Management of Water Supply and Sewer Guidelines, a Dividend Payment form,
Statement of Complance, Unqualified Independent Financial Audit Report and Compliance Audit Report are submitted to
DPIE ~ Water
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Temeield Shire Council | Special Purpose Financial Statements 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
far the year ended 30 June 2022
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Tenterfield Shire Council

SPECIAL SCHEDULES
for the year ended 30 June 2022

"Quality Nature, Quality Heritage and Quality Lifestyle”
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Tenterfield Shire Council

Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Contents

Page
Special Schedules:
Permissible income for general rates 3
Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022 5
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Tenterfietd Shire Council | Permissible income for general rates | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Permissible income for general rates

Calculation Calculation

2021722 2022/23
$'000 $'000

Notional general income calculation *
Last year notional general income yield 3 4715 4825
Plus or minus adjustments 2 b ) - L (4)
Notional general income ceash 4,715 43821
Permissible income calculation
Or rate peg percentage ¢ 2.00% 0.70%
Or plus rate peg amount =ex{c+4 94 N
Sub-total 4,809 4,855
Plus (or minus) last year's carry forward total 2 (15)
Sub-total A=(+m 2 (15)
Total permissible income pek+n 4,811 4,840
Less notional gensral income yield B 4825 4882
Catch-up or (excess) result Q=a~p (14) (12)
Carry forward to next year * t=q+res (14) (12)

Notes

1) The notional general income will not reconcie with rate income in the financial statements in he corresponding year. The statements are
reparied on an acaual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years' rates income

2) pgjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any NCrease of decrease in land value occuring during the year
The adjustments are called ‘suppiementary valuations™ as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916 (NSW)

# Carry forward amounts which are in excess {an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require Ministerial approval by order
published in the NSW Govemment Gazetfe In accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993 The OLG wik extract
these amounts from Coundcil's Permissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this
process.
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Permissible income for general rates

Permissible income for general rates: PLUS PDF inserted here

Council needs to uphft custom PDF here - please uplift via "PLUS PDF" choice in the Home/TOC screen
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022 | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022

Estimated cost

Estimated cost to bring to the Assets in condition as a percentage of

to bring assets agreed level of 2021/22 2021/22 Gross
to satisfactory service set by Required Actual Netcarrying  replacement gross replacement cost
Asset Class  Asset Category standard Council maintenance * maintenance amount  cost (GRC)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 1 2 3 4 5

Buildings Other = = = = 15,489 = 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%

Sub-total - - - - 15,489 - 0.0% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 00%
Other Other structures - - - - 2,991 = 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
structures Sub-total - - - - 2,991 - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Roads Other = = = = 363,905 = 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%

Sub-total - - - - 363,905 = 0.0% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 0.0%
Water supply Other - — - — 35,729 = 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
network Sub-total - - - - 35,729 - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 00% 0.0%
Sewerage Other - — - — 20,098 — 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
network Sub-total - - - - 20,098 - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Stormwater Other - - - — 3,711 — 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
drainage Sub-total - - - - 3,711 - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Open space/ Swimming pools - — - — 2613 — 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
recreational Open Space & Recreation = = = = = = 00% 00% 00% 00% 00%
assets Sub-total = = = = 2,613 - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total — all assets - - - - 444 536 - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

ia} Reguired maintenance is the amount identified in Council's asset management plans.
Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

1 Excellent/very good MNo work required (normal maintenance) 4 Poor Renewal required
2 Good Only minor maintenance work required 5 Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required
3 Satisfactory Maintenance work required
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Tentesfield Shire Council | Report on infrastruciure assets as al 30 June 2022 | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (consolidated) *

$°000

Amounts Indicator Indicators Benchmark
2022 2022 2021 2020

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio *

Asset renewds *

0.00% 151.93% 102.03% >= 100 .00%

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 6,784

Infrastruciure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets o a salsfactory

standard - 0.00% 6.24% 510% < 2.00%
Net canying amount of infrastructure assets 467,514

Asset maintenance ratio

Actual asset maintenance - - 100.03% 100 01% > 100.00%
Required asset maintenance -

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

Estimated cost to brmg assets o

an agreed service leve! set by Council - - 401% 3.74%

Gross replacement cost

) All asset performance indicators are caicualed using dasses identified in the previous lable.

M Includes renewal works

In Work in Progress (WIP)

1) Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets 1o an equivalent capacity/perfarmance as opposed fo
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacityperformance.
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022 | For the year ended 30 June 2022
Tenterfield Shire Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio

Asset maintenance ratio
300 125
Buildings and Commentary on result neset Commentary on result
. infrastructure ) )
750 renewals ratio 2122 ratio  0.00% 100 ==100.01 b maintenance ratio 2122ratic =
200
75
: 15193 s
'-g 150 43 Compares actual vs.
[ [ required annual asset
N 102.03 'I;|o :‘sts:ss the r:tt: at 50 mqai nienance. A rafio
100 —— which these assets are -
being renewed relafve E:::Lii‘: '2 il::::i":;
fo the rate atw.h»c.h they 25 enough funds to stop
50 are depreciating. the infras tructure
backlog growing.
0 0.00 0
2020 2021 2022 2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — =>=100.00% Ratio achieves benchmark Benchmark: — > 100.00%

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Repaorting

Infrastructure backlog ratio

B FRatiois outside benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

Ratio achieves benchmark

I Ratiois outside benchmark

Costto bring assets to agreed service level
g 5
Commentary on result c : Commentary on result
ost to brin
Infrastructure g
backlog ratio ; 401 assets to agreed ;
. 6.24 2122 ratic  0.00% 4 374 service level 21122 ratio =
5.10
£ #?
oy ] N )
% -g This ratio provides a
= This ratio shows what €3 =na pSh?Of “f'e
proportion the backlog is outszxraorz?r: n;:ewal
_ against the total value of g
2 o Councll's works compared to the
infrastruch 1 total value of assets
irEstruEiiE. under Council's care
.00 and stewardship.
- - - G N
2020 2021 2022 2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — = 2.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Repaorting

. Ratio is outside benchmark
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Tenterfield Shire Council | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022 | For the year ended 30 June 2022

Tenterfield Shire Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (by fund)

General fund Water fund Sewer fund Benchmark
$'000 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio *
Assetrenewals © — 0.00% 172.18% 0.00% 105.06% 0.00% 0.00% >=100.00%
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Infrastructure backlog ratio
Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory standard 0.00% 5 47% 0.00% 23,429 0.00% 161% <2.00%

Met carrying amount of infrastructure assets

Asset maintenance ratio

g‘;‘:;'rgzS;;;gf;ﬂ";?:gf;eme w 100.03% w 100.00% w0 100.00% > 100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

Estimated cost to bring assets to an agreed service level set by

Council =0 2.26% =0 21.37% =0 0.00%
Gross replacement cost

(1) Includes renewal works in Work In Progress (WIP).

1) Assetrenewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that
increases capacity/performance.
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COUNCIL 24 AUGUST 2022

Department: Office of the Chief Executive

Submitted by: Executive Assistant & Media

Reference: ITEM GOV72/22

Subject: MURRAY DARLING ASSOCIATION INC - 78TH NATIONAL
CONFERENCE & ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING - ALBURY NSW
- 19 - 21 SEPTEMBER 2022

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Leadership - LEAD 13 - Council recognises the diversity of the
communities that make up the Tenterfield Shire Council Local
Government Area.

CSP Strategy: Council recognises the diversity of the communities that make up
the Tenterfield Shire Council Local Government Area.

CSP Delivery Identify, represent, advocate and lobby for inclusion of the Shire’s
Program needs in regional and state planning.
SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is for Council to endorse and approve the attendance of
Council delegate on the Murray Darling Association Inc to attend the 78% National
Conference and Annual General Meeting at Albury on 19 to 21 September 2022.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council approve the attendance of Council’s Murray Darling Association
Inc delegate and Region 11 Executive Member, Councillor Greg Sauer at the
78t National Conference & Annual General Meeting at Albury, 19 to 21
September 2022.

BACKGROUND

Council’s delegates to the Murray Darling Association Inc (MDA) are the Mayor/Deputy
Mayor and any one (1) Councillor as an alternative if the Mayor or Deputy Mayor are
unavailable. (Resolution 31/22, 23 February 2022).

Deputy Mayor Greg Sauer is an Executive Member of the Region 11 Murray Darling
Association Inc.

REPORT:

The 78% National Conference and Annual General Meeting of the Murrary Darling
Association Inc is bannered Economics, Dams, and Infrastructure and this exciting event
will bring together leaders and decision makers from across the Murray-Darling Basin.

This year's program will explore many themes such as:-
o Water Uses

Water Security

Tourism

Circular Economy

Algae/Bushfires

Climate Change.
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Our Governance No. 72 Cont...

A resilient economy, and infrastructure to support it, is essential to the people of the
Basin Communities. In the same way, a healthy river system must have a balance of

flow and harvest. There is no future on a dry system.

COUNCIL IMPLICATIONS:

1.

Community Engagement / Communication (per engagement strategy)
Nil.

Policy and Regulation
e Councillor Expenses & Facilities Policy 1.160.

. Financial (Annual Budget & LTFP)

e Registration - $943.56 per person
e Accommodation - 2 person unit reserved - $271.50 per night x 4 nights
e Transport - Cr Sauer has requested to take his own vehicle and will
requested that he be reimbursed for the cost of fuel only, not the
reimbursed travel per kilometer rate.
Asset Management (AMS)
Nil.

. Workforce (WMS)

Nil.

. Legal and Risk Management

Discussions around water security for the Shire are always relevant therefore it
seems prudent that Council is represented at this Conference.

. Performance Measures

Nil.

Project Management
Nil.

Daryl Buckingham
Chief Executive

Prepared by staff member: Elizabeth Melling

Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Daryl Buckingham, Chief Executive

Department: Office of the Chief Executive

Attachments: 1 Murray Darling Association - 2
Conference 2022 Information Pages
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MURRAY DARLING ASSOCIATION INC - 78TH Murray Darling
NATIONAL CONFERENCE & ANNUAL GENERAL Association - Conference
MEETING - ALBURY NSW - 19 - 21 SEPTEMBER 2022 Information

2022

S 78“| gag'ii%lal Conference

IS 19 - 21 September, 2022 atbury, nsw
REGISTER NOW! EARLY BIRD TICKETS AVAILABLE UNTIL 31/7/22

Join us for the MDA’s 78" National Conference in Albury NSW,
Monday 19'" - Wednesday 21** September.

The MDA’s 78th National Conference is an annual event that is held in
different locations of the Murray-Darling Basin each year, and facilitates
extensive and in-depth networking between delegates, local government, and
organisation representatives.

With an overarching theme of Economics, Dams, and Infrastructure, this
year’s National Conference will explore many themes such as Water Uses,
Water Security, Tourism, Circular Economy, Algae/Bushfires, and Climate
Change.

A resilient economy, and infrastructure to support it, is essential to the people
of the Basin Communities. In the same way, a healthy river system must have a
balance of flow and harvest. There is no future on a dry system.

The MDA’s 78" National Conference & AGM is your opportunity to be part of
the solution — to join the conversation, to inform future policy, and to engage
with the innovators, scientists, educators, and leaders of our time.

Join us in Albury, home to the winding Murray River and its waterways; where
local, technical, and political leaders will come together to tackle the big issues
of the Basin and forge a future for councils, catchments, and communities.

For more information on the upcoming Conference, and to register, please
navigate to the MDA’s website, or click on REGISTER NOW below.
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MURRAY DARLING ASSOCIATION INC - 78TH Murray Darling
NATIONAL CONFERENCE & ANNUAL GENERAL Association - Conference
MEETING - ALBURY NSW - 19 - 21 SEPTEMBER 2022 Information

2022

& reaister ow! | (=) FiND ou more! ]
(Z SPONSORSHIP

GUEST SPEAKERS INCLUDE:

a0 N
.. ol MICHAEL JONES
SENATOR PERIN DAVEY | CEO ANDREW McCONVILLE ( IXOM | Stomrwmiorme
T 6!.‘.{.'._/ s b aen et DAVID HAMMOND
> N
@ SAM BIRRELL MP
MICHAEL PISASALE . HON TROY GRANT @ DR MEINZ SCHANDL
o Poig gy v it M Gt e s g e i
TN
\
uunv JOHNSON W e | PROF. MAX FINLAYSON

EARLY BIRD TICKETS END 31/7/22

Kind Regards,

GREG RYAN 5o s

i 8 rera s v v d vy

| PROF. JAMIE PITTOCK

Tim

Communications and Engagement Officer
- - -
2 Tim Phillips

Murray Darling Association
Contact: (03) 5480 3805, or 0429 862 122

A N t.phillips@mda.asn.au | www.mda.asn.au

Murray Darling Association acknowledges the traditional owners & custodians of country and pay our
respects to the people, cultures and elders past, present and emerging.
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Department: Office of the Chief Executive

Submitted by: Executive Assistant & Media

Reference: ITEM RES8/22

Subject: COUNCIL RESOLUTION REGISTER - JULY 2022

LINKAGE TO INTEGRATED PLANNING AND REPORTING FRAMEWORK

CSP Goal: Leadership - LEAD 14 - Resources and advocacy of Council are
aligned support the delivery of the community vision outlined in the
Community Strategic Plan.

CSP Strategy: Council fosters a strong organisational culture which strives for
best practice in all operations with a supportive corporate
governance framework.

CSP Delivery Ensure that the performance of Council as an organisation complies

Program with all statutory reporting guidelines and information is available
to decision makers.

SUMMARY
The purpose of this Report is to provide a standing monthly report to the Ordinary
Meeting of Council that outlines all Resolutions of Council previously adopted and yet to
be finalised.

OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council notes the status of the Council Resolution Register to July 2022,

Daryl Buckingham
Chief Executive

Prepared by staff member: Elizabeth Melling

Approved/Reviewed by Manager: Daryl Buckingham, Chief Executive

Department: Office of the Chief Executive

Attachments: 1 Resolution Register 14 Pages
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Ordinary Council Meeting - 24 August 2022 Attachment 1

COUNCIL RESOLUTION REGISTER - JULY 2022 Resolution Register
OUTSTANDING ACTIONS REPORT Printed: Thursday, 18 August
2022 9:09:36 AM

Division: Date From:

Committee: Date To:

Officer:
Compulsory Acquisition of Crown Land for

Council 27/02/2019 2702/2019 | Counsell, David | the Mount Lindesay Road Upgrade, 0-6km 13032019

Section East of Legume

3018 | Resolved that Council:

(1) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the land described as part of Lot 7016 DP 1073681, Lot
7017 DP 1106730 and Lot 7020 DP 1106731 for the purpose of operational land belng for road widening
in accordance with the requirements of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991 and
subject to the Undetermined Aboriginal Land Claim being withdrawn; and

{2) Make an application to the Minister and the Governor for approval to acquire part of Lot 7016 DP
1073681, Lot 7017 DP 1106730 and Lot 7020 DP 1106731 by compulsory process under section 177(1)
and 177(2)(b) of the Roads Act 1993; and

{(3) Requests the Minister for Local Government approve a reduction in the notification period from 90 days
to the minimum 60 days.

(Greg Sauer/Gary Verri)

Notes

14 Feb 2022 2:56pm Gibbins, Jessica

Awatting final survey plans.

02 Dec 2021 12:48pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

18.3.19 Awarting Fnal plans to be sent with application to Minister.

12 .4.19 No change to status.

10.5.19 No change.

12,719 Fnal plans being reviewed.

19.8.19 Pricing being sought from registered surveyors for the initial set out of proposed acquisition areas.

15.11.19 No change to status.

10.2 20 Section of existing boundary between 0.1 to 1 km has been pegged in consultation with RMS design review.

Adwvice of determination of Land Claim received for Lots 7016, 7017 & 7020 received at start of November. Likely impacts to the
project to be discussed with RMS

11.5.20 Interim section 0.1km to 1.0km agreed with RMS for commencement of works once water is again available for
construction. Drainage materials have been ardered and remaining sections to be surveyed with a view to minimese any compulsory
acquisition required.

1.7.20 Survey of design centradine has been initially done on Legume 0-6 Okm section and minor adjustments being considered to
minenise extent of works impacting on adjacent propertes

7.8.20 The set out of a slightly modified alignment has commenced that should minimise extent of acquisition required.

Revised construction design plans have been sent to the consultant kand surveyors for use in defining the land acquisition
boundaries.

14 4 21 Land surveyors from Tenterfield are currently pegging proposed acquisition boundaries although access for this task has
been hampered by recent wet ground conditions.

7.5.21 Surveyars are back on site continuing with field work

7.6.21 Land surveyors are preparing plans for proposed acquisition.

14.10.21 Land surveyors have been delayed by wet weather to complete the field work to peg acquisition boundarnes.

10.11.21 Ongoing process with surveyors to prepare survey plans.

[ Meeting ~ [ Da [ Officer [ Title [Target
Council 18/12/2019 18/12/2019 | Keneally, Fiona | ROAD NAMING 1/01/2020
286/19 | Resolved that Councll start the process of renaming of:

 Seven Mile Lane / Herding Yard Creek Road;

« Old Maryland Lane/ Catarins Road, Maryland;

¢ Cullendore Road; and

* Red Ridge Road.

(Gary Verri/Brian Murray)

Notes
16 Jun 2022 4:22pm Melling, Elizabeth
2522
Resolved that Council:

(1) Make an application for Herding Yard Creek Road to be renamed to Seven Mile Road;

(2) Do not change the name of Red Ridge Lane ;
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Officer:
[Mesing. D [Tie Target
(3) Further investigate/consull on naming of Old Maryland Land/Catarins Road.
(Tim Bonner/Grag Sauer)
Motion Camied
19 May 2022 1:03pm Ritchie, Hayley
Refer to Resolution 25/22

02 Dec 2021 1:12pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imprted from Resdlution Register

17.2 20 Inttial road status investigations being carmed out.

1.7.20 Still awaiting road status report from search agents, recent follow up requested has been made to them.
14 4 21 Result of road status search have not been received as yet.

10.5.21 Pending submissions of Road Asset Management Plan.

7.6.21 Follow up request has been made to the road status search agents.

16.7 21 Results from Status search Agents now received. Consultation with road users to commence

18.8.21 Letters sent to property owners on Herding Yard Creek Road, Catarins Road & Red Ridge Lane

14 10.21 Responseas have been recewved from property owners and a report will be prepared for Council

Council 24/06/2020 24006/2020 | Counsell, David | Aerodrome Grass Area Lease | 810712020

100/20 | Resolved that Council resolve to advertise for the four (4) year lease of the grassed area within the
Tenterfield Aerodrome not directly associated with the landing strip for the purpase of restricted agricultural
operations including the mowing and harvesting of grass with any submissions received to be reported back
to Council for consideration.

(Brian Murray/Donald Forbes)

Notes

18 Aug 2022 9:03am Melling, Elizabeth

Draft - Aerodrome Operational Manual Completed. Awaiting Council decision at Ordinary Coundl Meeting regarding disposal of
asset

08 Mar 2022 1:45pm Counsell, David

Aerodrome Operational Manual being finalised before presenting to Coundal at a future meeting.

14 Feb 2022 12:05pm Counsell, David

Aerodrome Operational Manual being compiled for comphiant activities and will be presented to Coundl in March 2022 with other
issues such as fencing and risk associated with the Aercdrome.

02 Dec 2021 1:16pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

1.7.20 Plan of area to be prepared for lease documents.

Not yet advertised.

7.8.20 Survey of the airsinip has been undertake and is being compiled with lease documents for advertising

14 4 21 Documents and advertising still to be finalised.

10521 To be advertised.

15.6.21 Accompanying documents to be drafted.

14.10.21 Task is being included in the scope for a consultant to complete Management Plan of the Aerodrome operations.
10.11.21 Consultant engaged to include this action with Plan of Management process for the aerodrome.

Meeting _Date K 5 4 T - | Ta N |
: Tenterfield Common Easement and Lot

Council 22/07/2020 2210712020 | Pryor, James Compulsory Acquisition 271072020

133120 | Resolved that Council:

(1) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the interest in the land described as right of carriageway
and easement for water supply within Lot 7023 DP1126222 and within Lot 7022 DP 1126834 for the
purpose of creating and obtaining an easement for water supply and right of carriage way to the
vaater source and pump infrastructure in accordance with the requirements of the Land Acquisition
(Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991;

(2) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the land described as subdivided Lot 7022 DP 1126834
for the purpose of subdivision and acquisition of the newly-formed Lot for the purposes of developing
water Infrastructure on the site and security infrastructure around the site In accordance with the
requirements of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991;

(3) Make an application to the Minister and the Govemor for approval to acquire interest in the land
described as right of cariageway and easement for water supply within Lot 7023 DP1126222 by
compulsory process under section 186(1) of the Local Govemment Act;
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IR [Date [ Officer | Title — [ Target
(4) Make an application to the Minister and the Governor for approval to acquire the subdivided Lot 7022
DP 1126834 by compulsory process under section 186(1) of the Local Government Act;

(5) (assifies the land as operational land;

(6) Requests the Minister for Local Government approve a reduction in the notification period from 90
days to 30 days;

(7) Proceed with the subdivision of the land described as Lot 7022 DP1126834 and all other processes
required for the purpose of compulsory acquisition of the newly-formed Lot in accordance with the
requirements of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991;

(8) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the land described as 'Proposed Lot 17 for the purpose of
developing a site for established emergency water infrastructure in accordance with the requirements

of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991.
(Brian Murray/Michael Petrie)

Notes

02 Dec 2021 1:17pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register.

13.8.20 Jennings & Kneipp instructed to develop the 888 instrument for the easement.

CA apphcation drafted

No response from the Common Trust regarding their concurrence within the allotied imeframe.

9.9 20 Jemnings & Kneipp are to develop the BBB instrument for the easement. Mo resporse from Common Trust regarding their
concurrence within the allotted imeframe. CA application drafted and signed by CE.

15.10.20 Compulsory Land Acquisition submitted to Crown Lands for processing.

3.12.20 Sentto OLG as advised by Crown to begin next steps

9.2 21 Register Acquisition Pian being finaksed between surveyor and OLG.

10.3.21 Regsstered Acquisttion Plan with NSW Land Registry Services for advice.

204 21 This acquisition has stalled as the Common Trust Beard have not signed the papers for the Agreement.

11.6.21 Resending papers to trust.

Waiting on response

9.9 21 Advisemants underway to proceed with acquisition due to second attempt with no response.

11.11.21 Several attempis made by phone and letter to the Common Trust since Apnl 2021, however no response has been
received.

Warks are being scheduled to proceed.

' ' "NOTICE OF MOTION - MARYLAND T
Council 2610872020 26/08/2020 | Coonan, Neville | CULLENDORE ROAD THROUGH 91092020
MARYLAND NATIONAL PARK

176/20 | Resolved that Council contact Crown Lands Department and National Parks & Wildlife Service informing
them that Tenterfield Shire Council wishes to keep the Maryland Cullendore Road open.
(Gary Verri/Bronwyn Petrie)

Notes

02 Dec 2021 1:24pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

11.9.20 Letter forwarded to NPWS dated 3 September 2020, awaiting response.

12.2.21 Phone meeting hekd NPWS & EO 1412 20 further details to be discussed through CE & Manager EDCE
12.3.21 Meeting held with Acting CE,DI,EO & Manager EDCE. EO to provide response to NPWS.

19.4.21 NPWS has confirmed that gazettal documents have been withdrawn from the Ministers Office. Meeting to be aranged
between TSC and NPWS.

10.5.21 Making arrangements for NPWS to attend June 2021 Councillor Workshop.

10.6.21 Councillor workshop with NPWS 10 06.21

18.8.21 NPWS looking at all paper roads through NP. Will priontise Maryland NP. TSC to pay for survey.

14.10 21 Estimate of survey costs and any other expenses being arranged for consderation

: : [ Title — | Target
Cooper, Mark__ | Crown Lands Plans of Management 110720
195/20 | Resolved that Council endorse the listed draft Plans of Management and forward to the Crown Lands Minister
for approval prior to the compulsory community consultation period:

* Plan of Management - General Community Use;
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| Dste | Officer | Title [ Target_
* Plan of Management - Sportsgrounds;
» Plan of Management - Parks;
* Plan of Management - Natural Areas.

(Greg Sauer/Michael Petrie)

Notes

02 Dec 2021 1:31pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

1510 20 Amendment being made to draft and prepared for sending 1o Minister

6.11.20 Ongoing

4.12 20 Plans sent to Minister

9.2 21 Awaiting response from Minister

8.3.21 Awaiting response from Minister

6.4.21 Awaiting response from Minister

4.5.21 Crown lands (CL) advised verbally in May that they are working on the review. A request for an update sent to CL on 11/6/21
11.6.21 Crown Lands (CL) have reviewed the draft PolM's. On 15/06/21 CL provided a list of minor amandments. PoM's to ba
amended and returned.

13.7.21 There is an issue with the categorisation of R540103 at Drake. CL have suggested that the reserve be excluded from the
POM and resubmit excluding the reserve.

8.10.21 Revised General Community Use PoM drafted. Others are close to complete.

11.11.21 Continued checkng and amending documents in accordance with crown lands requests

8.12 21 Continuation of above

‘:' = &D i m; 1mfz = — | Ta S
Council 230972020 23/09/2020 | Counsell, David | McLeods Creek Road, Sandy Hill 71072020

207/20 | Resolved that Coundil approve the action required as detailed in this report.

(Bronwyn Petrie/Gary Verri)

Notes

14 Apr 2022 12:07pm Gibbins, Jessica

Report was tabled at Februrary meeting & matter deferred.

14 Feb 2022 2:54pm Gibbins, Jessica

Further report being tabled at February 2022 Council Meeting.

02 Dec 2021 1:35pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

15.10.20 Engaged Sokator to assist in process

15.5.21 Commencing process with Office of Local Govemment.

10.6.21 Advice received from Solicitors

16.7.21 Comespondence sent 12.07.21 to State Forestry seeking clarification on acquisition process through Girard State Forest.
14.10.21 Review of costs to date and estimate of survey work being undertaken prior to commencing survey works.

- e ;Matcha'rli u‘oio;ceornonon TENTERFIELD TOWN e
Council 23/08/2020 230872020 | Gigign DAM FOR RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES 71072020

202/20 | Resolved that Coundll investigate the opportunities that may be available near and including the town dam
for recreational activities with a view to producing a master plan for presentation to the Coundl and
subsequently the community.

(Bob Rogan/Greg Sauer)

Notes

18 Jul 2022 4:34pm Marchant, Gillian

Note masterplan grant applied for 14/07/2022

Fishing Platform fence has been altered to accomodate platform, requotabons supplied and approved, meeting due 21/07/2022
02 Dec 2021 1:34pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

1.10.20 Scheduled for discussion at Councillor Workshop 21/10. Meeting with invited community members (due to COVID) 2710
1.12.20 Meetings held, resuits consolidated and provided for comment. Survey of parks underway. Focus group established.
15.4.21 Site inspecton with focus group held, preliminary designs under invesbgation

6.5.21 Investigation into possible grants underway

11.6.21 - 9.9 21 Investigations continue-note awarded fishing platform grant

18.10.21 Signed Deeds of Grant

12.11.21 Platform planning underway.
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| Target
71012020

Council 23/08/2020 2310912020 | Counsell, David

187120 | Resolved that Coundil:
(1) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the land described as Lot 7013 in DP 1075621 for the

purpose of developing the Mingoola Waste Transfer Station in accordance with the requirements of the
Land Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991; and

Compuisory Acquisition

(2) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the land described as the western portion of subdivided Lot
7018 in DP 1075621 for the purpose of subdivision, acquisition and developing the Mingoola Waste
Transfer Station in accordance with the requirements of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms
Compensation) Act 1991; and

(3) Make an application to the Minister and the Governor for approval to acquire Lot 7013 in DP 1075621
by compulsory process under section 186{1) of the Local Government Act; and

(4) Make an application to the Minister and the Governor for approval to acquire the western portion of
the subdivided Lot 7018 in DP 1075621 by compulsory process under section 186(1) of the Local
Govermment Act; and

(5) (Oassify the land as operational land; and

(6) Proceed with the subdivision of the land described as Lot 7018 in DP 1075621 for the purpose of
compulsory acquisition of the newly-formed Lot in accordance with the requirements of the Land
Acquisition (Just Terms Compensation) Act 1991; and

(7) Arrange the survey of the formed road, known as Springfield Road, that traverses through Lot 7013 in
DP 1075621 and dedicate this as a Public Road; and

(8) Make an application to the Minister and the Governor for approval to acquire the newdy-formed Road
Lot that traverses through Lot 7013 in DP 1075621 by compulsory process under section 177{1) or
177(2)(a) or 177(2)(b) of the Roads Act.

(Brian Murray/Michael Petrie)

Notes

02 Dec 2021 1:26pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

15.10.20 TSC working with Crown Lands in relation to the compulsory acquisition.

6.11.20 Ongoing

4.12.20 Scoping the exact area required to negotiate with ALC. NSWALC providing advice on process.

9.2 21 Negotiations underway with local Abonginal Council requesting the ALC to be amended to exclude the part requred for the
project. Awaiting their response.

10.3.21 This is awaiting response. NSW LALC are the clamant but won't change the claim until MLALC agree to.
204 .21 Continues to stall awaiting advice from Aboriginal Land Council. Negotiations continue.

6.5.21 Project handover, negotiations continue.

11.6.21 Progect negotiations continue.

19.7 21.18.10 21 Negatiations continue, arrangements to visit site once lockdown ended.
11.11.21 Negoliations continue.

g = g

;’_:::... 3 :.' ﬁt’::gi K?uw: ﬁiﬁ:‘. A—..-:aa:mwx.—x:v..:.':;m:.'.m:."}_-z..-._ﬁ' Lif...: s ,.Eﬂ
NOTICE OF MOTION - SUBMISSION TO
| NSW NATIONAL PARKS & WILDLIFE
Keneally, Flona | gEpVICE REGARDING MT MACKENZIE
LOOKOUT AREA

Council 16/12/2020 16/12/2020 301122020

291/20 | Resolved that Council:

(1) Receive a report on possible upgrades to the Mt Mackenzie Lookout, including the upgrade of toilet
facilities (and where possible partnership) with NSW National Parks & Wildlife Service, with a view
to enhance visitor experience; and

(2) Include in the upcoming review of the Road Network Management Plan, the provision for upgrading
the current access to Mt Mackenzie Lookaout to a standard that will allow coaches to access the area.

(Bab Rogan/Gary Verri)
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R a— [Taret

Notes

19 Jul 2022 7:31am Keneally, Fiona

Grant appication submitted to BBRF program unsuccessful. Budget contraints limit Counal's ability to contribute to grant projects or
fund facility and road upgrades. Resource constraints imit staff capacity for further grant applications. No further action 2022/23

02 Dec 2021 1:43pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

18.2 21 Currently investigating Aboriginal Land Claim and potential grant application preparation for facilties and road upgrade

9.4 21 Abonginal Land Claim refused on 7/4/21. Appeal period expires on 29/7/21.

15.6.21 Appeal penod expires 29/7/21.

18.8.21 BBRF — application for $2.156 208 (Mt Mackenzie Tourism Infrastructure upgrade submitted.

Announcement due mid 2021!

8.9 21 An appeal has been lodged by NSW Aborginal Land Council against the refusal of the Abornginal Land Claim. A response o

a subpoena was sent 3/9/2021.
18.10 21 Ongoing
10.11.21 Meeting with crown solicitor to provide further evidence for the appeal.
[ Meeting Date. [ Officer’ Title_ Target
Council 16/12/2020 1612/2020 | Cooper, Mark | pemernield Shire - Draft Tree Management | 30,1200

278120 | Resolved that Council endorse the Draft Tree Management Plan and place on public exhibition with:

« Further information to be provided on tree species on Logan Street; and
* Additional Itemm (4.3) noting Liston community input in planting and providing trees; and
« Further information regarding Tenterfield Park.
(Greg Sauer/Gary Verri)

Notes

07 Feb 2022 11:48am Cooper, Mark

Ongoing

02 Dec 2021 1:41pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

1.2.21 Tree Managemeant Plan has been put on Public Exhibition for 28 Days finishing on 28 February 2021
9.3.21 Submissions now closed. Several received. Preparing to present to Council workshop in April.
6.5.21 Draft plan to be presented to Councilior workshop in May.

12.5.21 Presented at Councillor Workshop.

7.7.21 Need to update street trees planted in Villages in readiness for adoption.

17.8.21-18.10.21 Ongoing

e r——— — e e

[ Meeting Date_ Officer _ B T .~
, : quest to relocate the Band o Leec

Council 24/02/2021 2400272021 | Coonan, Nevile | & i Road (former Leechs Gully Hall Site) | | 2/0+2021

16/21 | Resolved that Council:
(1) Supports the gifting of the Band Hall to the Leechs Gully Progress Association subject to the assodation

being responsible for:

(a) Ensuring the Band Hall can fit on the property by conducting an identification survey;
(b) Ensuring the Band Hall transfer meets heritage requirements;

{c) Paying for all costs associated with the relocation of the Band Hall;

(d) All upkeep and maintenance on the band hall once ownership is formally transferred to the
association.

(2) Allocates up to $50,000 to the Leechs Gully Progress Association towards the costs associated with the
items in {1) above.

(3) Negotiates with the Leechs Gully Progress Association on the proposed relocation of the Band Hall.

(John Macnish/Bronwyn Petrie)

Notes
16 Aug 2022 2:57pm Coonan, Neville
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= [:m‘ rget

18 May 2022 5: 12pm Mollng, Ellnbdh
Ongoing - Chief Executive Office met with Grant Johnson for an update 12 May 2022

02 Dec 2021 1:47pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

24 221 Mr Rod Dowe was informed of Council's decison.

25.2 21 Mr Dowe will contact a surveyor re the recommendation of part 1 (a) as a first step in the process.

1.3.21 Mr Dowe provided with the names of some Heritage Consultants

12.3.21 The above is evidence of part 3 of the recommendation being enacted.

20 4.21 The Gem Club have been advised of the council resolution and provded with contact with Leechs Gully Progress
Asscciation for continued use of the hall if relocation takes place.

4.5.21 Survey to be complated and relocation quotes are being sought by Progress Association

11.6.21 Nothing fusther 1o report.

19.7 21 Committee to meet and review Constitution.

13 8 21 Ongoing waiting for Progress Assoc to become an ncorporated body

8.10 21 Meeting to be organised with Progress Assocaton and TSC

11.11.21 Meeting held on site to discuss the actions required to expedite the relocation of the Hail to Leeches Gully.
8.12.21 They have organised a heritage report which is due Feb 2022 PS is coordinating the matter.

- =K ) T b P g
Councrl 24/03/2021 24/03/2021 | Gibbins, Jessica | Snake Creek Road - Road Reserve Update 7/04/2021
60/21 | Resolved that Council:

(1) Proceed with the compulsory acquisition of the land described as part of Lot 7301 DP 1145839 for the
purpose of dedicating a road in accordance with the requirements of the Land Acquisition (Just Terms
Compensation) Act 1991;

(2) Make an application to the Minister and the Governor for approval to acquire part of Lot 7301 DP
1145839 by compulsory process under section 177 (2)(b) of the Roads Act 1993,
(Greg Sauer/Bronwyn Petrie)

Notes

14 Feb 2022 2:58pm Gibbins, Jessica

Collating documents for the new application to send to OLG

02 Dec 2021 1:54pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

10.5.21 Office of Local Government application required.

15.6.21-19.7.21 Office of Local Government Application being drafled.

18.8.21 Application and attachments sent 17/8/21 OUT21/61C3BASA.

14 10.21 Application rejected as need updated searches & correspondence. Being arranged for resubmitting.

Meeting ” . T!," m/ o ﬁ_ 5 T TTa 7
Council 28/04/2021 28/0412021 Counsell, David | Molesworth Street Drainage Easement 12/05/2021

86/21 | Resolyed that the matter of the Molesworth Street Draining Easement be deferred until the roles and
responsibilities are determined in relation to stormwater discharge onto Lots 1 and 13.
(Brian Murray/Michael Petrie)

14 Feb 2022 12:07pm Counsell, David

Further advice on responsbilites being resolved with planning authoriies and further report to be presented to Council in March
2022

02 Dec 2021 1:56pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

7.5.21 Matter referred to cross department meeting for dscussion with Counal's Planning and Bulding Departments for further
action.

7.6.21 Counal report trom April has been discussed at cross department meeting and assassmant of the extent of properties and
impacts is being investigated.

19.7.21-18.10.21 Council Report to be prepared by Engineering with input from Planning Dept.

SOUTHERN QLD INLAND & NSW BORDER
Council 2810472021 2810412021 g;':‘b&h m’gﬂ&cmi 12/05/2021
MEMBERSHIP
Tenterfield Shire Councd Page 7 of 14
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[oa — Tomeer [Tt Tramget

mq that Council endorse in principle:

(1) Tenterfield Shire Council as a member of Southem Qld Inland & NSW BorderRegional Water Alliance
Limited subject to approval of the Constitution of the Company; and

(2) Tenterfield Shire Council Mayor as a Director of Southern Qld Inland & NSW Border Regional Water
Alliance Limited.
(Gary Verri/Michael Petrie)

Notes

12 Aug 2022 4:19pm Melling, Elizabeth

Awatting legal advice on constitution.

02 Dec 2021 1:57pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register:

3.5 21 Letter provided 1o Mayar Antonio of Toowoomba Regional Council as Chair
31.5.21 Zoom meeting amanged for 2 June 2021.

15.6.21 Zoom meeting attended 2/6.

19.7.21 Awaiting legal advice regarding cross border (NSW/QLD) constitution and any associated issues.
18.8.21 Ongoing.

5.10.21 Border Mayors Water Alliance meeting in Toowoomba with Minister Butcher,
5.11.21 Meeting with B Joyce MP regarding funding 811721

- E er i - - r e
Coonan, Nevile | LEASING OF COUNCIL OWNED PROPERTY | 10/11/2021

Council 27/10/2021
OFFICER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That Council:

(1) Acknowledges that Council entered into a “Service Agreement” with NSWRFS which was executed
in December 2011. The Agreement provides NSWRFS a Licence to enter and use the premises at
50 Francis Street, Tenterfield.

(2) Notes the written concurrence provided by NSWRFS for the proposed Leasing or Licensing of part
of 50 Francis Street, Tenterfield (Lot 1 Section 37 DP 758959 - within the NSWRFS compound) to
BackTrack for a term of up to 5 years for the purpose of a Youth Hub and that NSWRFS agree to
share the toilet and associated facilities with BackTrack for the term of the Lease or Licence.

(3) Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to enter into a new License over part of Lot 1 Section
37 DP 758959 (within the NSWRFS compound) for a 5-year term, subject to the summarized
terms and conditions included in the Report,

(4) Authorises the Licence to be signed under the Seal of Coundil by the Mayor and Chief Executive.

LOST AMENDMENT

That Council defer ITEM COM25/21 be deferred until an onsite inspection with the Captain of the Steinbrook
Brigade and the Acting Manager Rural Fire Service - Glenn Byrnes.

Amendment Lost

(Bronwyn Petrie/John Macnish)

Resolved that Council:

(1) Acknowiledges that Council entered into a “Service Agreement” with NSWRFS which was executed
in December 2011. The Agreement provides NSWRFS a Licence to enter and use the premises at
50 Francis Street, Tenterfield.

(2) Notes the written concurrence provided by NSWRFS for the proposed Leasing or Licensing of part
of 50 Francis Street, Tenterfield (Lot 1 Section 37 DP 758959 to BackTrack foratermof upto 5
years for the purpose of a Youth Hub and that NSWRFS agree to share the toilet and associated
facilities with BackTrack for the term of the Lease or Licence.
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(3) Delegate authority to the Chief Executive to enter into a new License over part of Lot 1 Section
37 DP 758959 for a 5-year term, subject to the summarized terms and conditions included In the
Report.

(4) Authorises the Licence to be signed under the Seal of Council by the Mayor and Chief Executive.
(Gary Verri/Bronwyn Petrie)
ey ——

Notes

06 Jun 2022 10:01am Coonan, Neville

A request has been sent to BackTrack requesting an update on their review of the licence.

10 May 2022 9:47am Coonan, Neville

Backtrack has been issued with a draft licence. They have provided a copy to their legal advisors 1o review and then come back to
Council wath amendments if required.

03 Mar 2022 1:02pm Coonan, Neville

BackTrack have obtained the DA. More information has been requested by Planning {o issue a construction certificate. Jennings
and Kneipp have prepared a draft licence agreement to be provided to BackTrack to review prior to finalisation.

03 Feb 2022 1:35pm Coonan, Neville

Backtrack and RFS have completed the MOU. Backirack have lodged the DA More info has been requeasted 1o support the DA,
Licence fo be issued upon the DA being approved.

02 Dec 2021 2:19pm Fitzpatrick, Christie

Data imported from Resolution Register.

10.11.21 Progressing. Backtrack & RFS advised of requirement to prepare a MoU pnor 1o issuing a licence.

Backtrack advised DA is required prior to 1ssung a kicence

8.12.21 Awaiting receipt of completed MOU and lodgement of DA.

ACQUISITION OF PART OF PRIVATE LAND
. . . REQUIRED FOR ROAD WIDENING
Council 23/02/2022 23/02/2022 | Gibbins, Jessica PURPOSES - BRUXNER WAY, 9/03/2022
TENTERFIELD

45722 | Resolved that Council proceed with the recommendations as contained within this report to finalise this
matter regarding acquisition of land for road realignment purposes for Bruxner Way, Tenterfield.

(John Macnish/Kim Rhodes)
Motion Carried

Notes

14 Apr 2022 12:09pm Gibbins, Jessica
Caorrespondence sent to apphcable land owners

Council 2302/2022 2310212022 Counsell, David | MARYLAND CULLENDORE ROAD 9/03/2022
2422 | Resolved that Council defer the report until a later date.

Tim Bonner/John Macnish)
Motion Carried

Notes

08 Mar 2022 1:39pm Counsell, David
Matter deferred to another meeting to allow further information to be consikered by Coundl.

Council 23022022 23/02/2022 | Counsell, David | MCLEODS CREEK ROAD 9/03/2022
23122 | Resolved that Council

(1) Note the estimated costs in relation to survey of the MclLeods Creek Road Reserve; and

Yy

(2) Defer this matter to the next Council meeting to enable more information to be provided to allow
for further consideration.

(Peter Petty/Kim Rhodes)
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[Mesting [Date  TOffcer | Title [Target

Notes

15 Jul 2022 11:56am Counsell, David

Report included on the matter to July 2022 meeting.

08 Mar 2022 1:40pm Counsell, David

Matter to be considered at another meeting after Council has consdiered addttional information

be ofesr [T Torgt

Operational Plan 20222023 Including
Council 25/065/2022 2510512022 | Jones, Roy Statement of Rev. Policy 20222023 81062022
101722

Resolved
(20) That Council borrows up to $3,100,000 in 2022/2023 for
infrastructure projects,
{Greg Sauer/Tim Bonner)

. ied

Notes

11 Aug 2022 9:37am Jones, Roy
Actioned.

RETURN GRANT FUNDS RELATING TO
Council 25/05/2022 25/05/2022 | Counsell, David | PROPOSED SALEYARDS TRUCK WASH - 8/06/2022
TRANSPORT NSW GRANT FUNDING

92/22 | Resolved that Council:
(1) Agree to no longer proceed with the proposed Truck Wash; and

(2) Agree to return the grant funds back to the funding body and provide the Treasurer and the
Treasurer's Representative with ane (1) month’s notice to abandon the project.

(Peter Petty/Tim Bonner)

Motion Carvied
Notes
. R%T OF COMMITTEES &
. trie, DELEGATES - BORDER REGIONAL
Council 2206/2022 2210612022 Bronwyn ORGANISATION OF COUNCILS (BROC) - 6/0772022
MEETINGS OF 6 MAY 2022
136122, 137722 RECOMMENDATION:
That the report of the Border Regional Organisation of Councils (BROC) meeting Friday 6 May
2022 and assodiated presentations be received and noted.
AMENDMENT
(2) That Councdil seeks the reinvigoration of the cross border discussions with
the relevant stakeholders subject to the Memorandum of Understanding with Southem Downs
Regional Council, within the next six months.
(Peter Petty/Geoff Nye)
Amendment Carried
Resolved that Coundil:
(1) That the report of the Border Regional Organisation of Councils (BROC) meeting
Friday 6 May 2022 and associated presentations be received and noted.
(2) That Council seeks the reinvigoration of the cross border discussions with the
refevant stakeholder, subject to the Memorandum of Understanding with Southern
Downs Regional Council, within the next six months.
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Towie T offcar [ Tie T

(.Peter Petty/KI m Rhodes)

Motion Carried
Resolved that Coundil notes the status of the Councdil Resolution Register to May 2022.

(Greg Sauer/Tim Bonner)
Motion Carried

Notes
12 Aug 2022 4:26pm Melling, Elizabeth
Emailed Mayor Pennisi today vath dates and times next week Mayor Petrie is available.

18 Jul 2022 4:27pm Melling, Elizabeth
Contacted Cr Petrie with details of SDRC Mayor and assistant, asking for avalable dates to meet at Wallangama to further the

relationship.

[ Meeting Date [ Officer L —— [ Target
- econnecting Regional NSW Community

Council 22/06/2022 220612022 | Resd, Caxtiin Events Fund 6072022

125/22 | Resolved that Council:
1. Agree on allocation amounts as identified below, which are based on expression of interest forms
submitted by community and event committees.

2. Apply for the Reconnecting Regional NSW Community Events Program on behalf of identified
community events. Administer funds and acquit event grant, with required information supplied by
community and event committees.

(Peter Murphy/Peter Petty)
Motion Carried

Notes

05 Jul 2022 3:48pm Melling, Elizabeth
Grant Application submated 5 July 2022, Expect to have update from funding body by the end of July

Mestrg. — (oo 'i%a LT Toreel
i ns, ys ungu eserve -
Coumcil 2202022 200612022 | jo5sica Public Gate & Vehicle By-pass Applications | 5/07/2022

124122 | Resolved that Councll as the Roads Authority under the Roads Act 1993:-

(1) Approves the installation of a public gate and vehicular by-pass on McCliftys Road at approx.
0.316km west of the New England Highway intersection and Bungulla Reserve Road at the
intersection with Rosehill Road in accordance with Council Policy No 2.162 - Public Gates and
Vehicle By-passes; and

(2) Provide applicant with Council Consent as outlined in 4.2 Council’s Internal Administrative
Pracedures of Policy 2.162.

(3) Advertise the approval with proposed installation 1 month after advertising as required by the
Roads Regulation 2008.
{Glana SacconyTom Peters)
Motion Carri

Notes
: .. | Policy 2.130 Construction & Maintenance of
Council 27/07/2022 2700712022 | Counsell, David Property Access from Council Roads 10/08/2022

160/22 | Resolved that Council:
Place Policy 2.130 Construction & Maintenance of Property Access from Council Roads on public display for
28 days to seek community input prior to reviewing the policy.
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(Peter Petty/Peter Murphy)
. ied
Notes
12 Aug 2022 4:30pm Melling, Elizabeth
Policy on Public Display for 28 days - TSC Websde.
Council 2710712022 2700712022 | Counsell, David ;m"'."’“ Public Gates and Vehicle 100082022
159/22 | Resolved that Council:

Place Policy 2.162 Public Gates and Vehide Bypasses on public display for 28 days to seek community input

(Peter Petty/Peter Murphy)

Notes

12 Aug 2022 4:26pm Melling, Elizabeth
Put on Pubkc Display - Website. 28 days on display.

16 Aug 2022 3:48pm Coonan, Neville
16 Aug 2022 2:59pm Coonan, Neville
will be signed by CE.

Meeting Date [ Officer Title_ | Target
Application for a licence to install
Council 27/07/2022 27/07/2022 | Coonan, Nevilie | equipment on the Tenterfield Digital Tower | 10/08/2022
erected on Lot 5 DP 1007389
167/22 | Resolved that Councll:
1. Delegates authority to the Chief Executive to enter into a Heads of Terms (HoT’s) to be prepared by
Council’s appointed legal advisors and subject to the terms summarized in attachment A.
2. Delegates authority to the Chief Executive to enter into a new Licence to be prepared by Council’s
appointed legal advisors and subject to the terms included in the HoT’s.
3. Authorises the Licence be signed under seal of Council by the Mayor and the Chief Executive.
(Peter Petty/Giana Saccon)
Motion Carried
Notes

The HoT's has been executed by Council and Telstra. Councils sokcitors are instructed to prepare the licence agreement.

A draft HoT's agreement has been provided to AcquirecommyTelstra by Councd's solicitor. Once itis accepted/signad by Telstra it

[ Meeting (Date [ Officer_ Title [ Targst
UPDATE OF CITIZEN AND CUSTOMER
Council 27/0712022 270712022 | Bursford, Erka | CONTACT CHARTER TO CUSTOMER 1000812022
SERVICE CHARTER
162/22 | Resclved that Council:
(1) Place the draft Tenterfield Shire Council Customer Service Charter 2022 on public exhibition
for 14 days, from 27 July 2022 to 9 August 2022 and either
(2) Review any submissions received during the public exhibition peried at the August Ordinary
Council Meeting, or
{3) If no submissions are received during the Public Exhibition period, adopt the Tenterfield Shire
Council Customer Service Charter as at 9 August 2022.
{Giana Saccon/John Macnish)
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Notes
11 Aug 2022 1:58pm Bursford, Erika
Draft on public exhibition.
Commencement of Further Community
Council 27/0712022 2710712022 | Jones, Roy Consultation - Special Rate Variation 100872022
2023/24 and 2024/25
156/22 | Resolved that Council:
(1) Receive the report on Commencement of Further Community Consultation relating to an

application for a Special Rate Variation 2023/2024 and 2024/2025.

current rating structure to determine yield.
(3) Receive a further report in November 2022 that will include:

a. A report on the additional community consultation,

the finalisation of the community engagement process.

Motion Carried

(2) Commence community engagement to support an application to IPART for a proposed Special
Rate Variation comprising of a permanent increase of 43% (including rate peg) in 2023/24 and
43% (including rate peg) in 2024/25, representing a cumulative increase of 104.49% using the

b. Adraft Application to the Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal (IPART) under section
S08A of the Local Government Act 1993 for an increase to the ordinary rate income, following

(Peter Petty/Greg Sauer)

Notes

12 Aug 2022 4:28pm Melling, Elizabeth
Commenced organesation/offers of infofrmation sessions to the community.

Webpage updated with FAQ and Rates Calculator.

Tenterfield library on Saturdays;

AMENDMENT
That Council:

of the community's needs.

development when reconsidered,

c) Suspend the surplus assets sale at this time until further consideration
of the distribution to the community can be resolved.

Council 2710712022 27072022 | Mathers, Lee | SENIERTAELD PUBLIC LIBRARY BRANCH | 1008/2022
146/22 | RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

1. Permanent Closure of Library branches - Torrington, Drake and Urbenville and continue closure of

2. Re-call and re-distribution of all Council assets currently housed at the Branches; and the

3. Cancellation of any lease agreements in relation to leased area usage for the Library branches
(Kim Rhodes/Peter Murphy)

a) Defer ITEM COM11/22 until the August Ordinary Council Meeting allowing for further investigation

b) Consider the option to distribute the surplus assets to those communities to support their ongoing
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[Dste __[Offcer [T et
(Greg Sauer/John Macnish)

Amendment Carried
Resolved that Council:

d) Defer ITEM COM11/22 until the August Ordinary Council Meeting allowing for further investigation
of the community’s needs.

e) Consider the option to distribute the surplus assets to those communities to support their ongoing
development when reconsidered.

f) Suspend the surplus assets sale at this time until further consideration

of the distribution to the community can be resolved.
(John Macnish/Kim Rhodes)

Motion Carried

Notes

17 Aug 2022 B:56am Mathers, Lee

Councillor's have consulted with the Progress Committees from each of the branches Drake, Urbanville and Tomington. A new
report and recommendations are 1o be submitted to the August Ordinary Council meeting for consideration

12 Aug 2022 3:12pm Melling, Elizabeth

Currently consulting with Progress Ass of the Branch locations.

[ Meeting Date | Officer_ Title [ Target
Council 270712022 270712022 | Mits, Bruce | Review of Your Local News and options for | 4,05/52;

145/22 | Resolved that Council:

1) Undertake a three-month trial of a "noticeboard-only” Facebook page and review at the end of the
trial — with a report on findings back to Council; and

2) Note that the recommendation is made mindful of the Customer Satisfaction Survey showing the
preference for "Your Local News” printed brochure.
(Peter Petty/Geoff Nye)
PR ——
Upon being put to the meeting, the motion was dedlared carried. The record of vote was sought by Cr Peter

Petty and supported by the Chairperson. Recorded under the Model Code of Meeting Practice (Local
Government NSW) - Section 11 Point 6.

For the Motion were Crs TP Peters, G Sauer, 1 Macnish, TB Bonner, B Petrie, K Rhodes, Nye and PM Murphy
Total (8).

Against the Motion were Crs G Saccon and PP Petty Total (2).

Notes
12 Aug 2022 4:11pm Melling, Elizabeth
Facebook page created 2 8 2022 and live. Three month trial ends end of Oct 2022,

. ’ m :mk - & .‘uji
Council 27/07/2022 271072022 | Counsell, David_| AM White Drive reserve dedication 1080872022
148/22 | Resolved that Council proceed with action to formally dedicate Part of Lot 2 DP 815097 as a Public Road

Reserve along A M White Drive from New England Highway to Bolivia Hall.

(Tim Bonner/Peter Petty)
Motine Carried

Notes

17 Aug 2022 12:50pm Melling, Elizabeth
Matter to be raised with Crown Lands for discussion of process.
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